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IN THE HOUSE. 

(The stenographic Report) 
Monday, April 7, 1913. 

'I'll<: House met according to ad­
journment and was called tu ord,-r by 
the Speaker. 

Prayer by Rev. Mr. Mosher of Au­
gusta. 

Journal of previous sellsinn read and 
approved. 

Papers from the Senate dispos,o:l 01 
in concurrence. 

From t\w Senate: An Act rplativ< 
to the issuance of stock by corpora­
tions. 

In the House this bill was passed to 
be engrossed, and came fronl the i"en­
:tte in that brClnch indefinitpl~' post­
poned. 

On motion b:,( Mr. Quinn o[ Milli­
nocket. the House voted to recede and 
concur with the Senate in tlle in­
defmite postponement of th2 bill. 

From the Senate: An Act to amend 
Section 15 of Chapter 1G4 of the Pri­
vatl' and f\peciClI Laws of 1911, re:at­
ing' to the Houlton municipal court. 

In the House this bill was referred 
to the committee on salaries anu fee", 
:lnll in new draft passed to be> (·n­
grossecl, ann. came from the SenatL' il 
that branch indefinitely postponed. 

On motion b,' Mr. Putnam of Houl­
ton the, Housee vote] to recede an(: 
('011('111' with thc Senate in the indcfi­
nit" postponf'ment of the bill. 

Orders. 
On moLon by Mr. Thombs of Lin­

coln, it was 
Ordere(l, that the elerl;: of thc House 

he instructed to procurp from til" sec­
ret:uy of the S"nate, Senate, Docu­
ment No. ~g!I, entitled "An Act for the 
bettE'l' protpctlnn of automohilC' garage 
l..;.eepers and o"\vners." 

Passed to Be Enacted. 
An Act to amend Sect;:,n:, J anJ ~ 

of Cllapter 117 of the Public Laws 01 
190~, relating' to the compensation oj 
('ount~r commissi(lners; 

An Act in relation to t11l' assessmen l 
ano1 collection of inheritance taxes: 

.Au Act providing temporary eler~{ 
hir{e for tIle reg'ister of I)l'obate in 
Kennebec county; 

Au Act providing temporary clerk 
hire for the register of deeds in Ox­
ford county; 

An Act providing temporary clerk 
hire for the clerk of courts in Pis­
cataqUis lounty; 

An Act providing temporary clerl;: 
hire for the clerk of courts in Yorl, 
county; 

An Act providing temporary clerl~ 

hire [or the register of deeds in Penob­
scot county; 

An Act to provide temporary clerk 
hir<: for the register of probate in 
Aroostook county; 

An Act to provide for the recon­
struction of Portland Bridge; 

An Act creating a State board of 
chari tips and corrections and prescrib­
ing thf' powers and duties thereof; 

Finally Passed. 
Resolve', to provide for re-indexing 

thc House and Senate papers now on 
file in the Senate office; 

Resolve, to provide for indexing the 
Hous" anj Senate papers in the Sen­
atr' officc for the session of 1913. 

Orders of the Day. 
1\1,', S . .\NBORN of South Portland: 

~Ir. Speaker, tltl' secretary of the com­
mittc(' Oil pulllic health has been ob­
liged to have re-dr'afted a considerable 
number of the bills which have been be­
fOl'P that comlnittf'e, and. having no 
,;tellogl'apher for that committee, he has 
been put to the expense of $10 for that 
'work, and I ha,"C' here a resolve asking 
for that flUln in reinlbul'senlent, and I 
a~k unanimous consent tl,at it may be 
l'ecE.'lvl'd at this time under a suspension 
of the I'ules. 

The motion 'was agreed to and re­
"eiYe ill fin'or of H. D. ;\laxwell for ex­
penses ill('ul'l'ed for sb-'llographic R8r­
vie(·'s for tll(' committee on public health, 
,,'as rccPlvt'd undcr a su~pension of the 
rlll(.'s. 

On 1'111·the1' nlotion b;\" 1\lr. Sanborn, 
t 118 rc~olye reccjYed its t,vo readings 
aL tile IH'(>sent tinl€' and 'was passed to 
IH' engTossP(] \yHhollt reference to a 
('ornlni t tee. 

TLe f1PEAKER: The Chair will ~tate 
thai ill ac<.:ordanee \ylth the order intro­
duced by the gentleman from Vinalha­
,'ell, 1\11'. Doman, the papers in the mat­
V,]' of hill, An .\.ct providing fO!' the in-
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:spection of bakeries and confectioneries, 
have been returned to the House. In 
this matter the report of the commit­
tee was "ought not to pass." In the 
House the bill was substituted for the 
report of the committee and the bill 

gested can be entertained. 'rhe clerk 
will endeavor to find the papers. 

On motion by Mr. Smith of Presque 
Isle, the House voted to take a recess 
until 9.55 o'clock A. M. 

After Recess. 
was passed to be engrossed; in the Sen-
ate the report of the committee was At this point the Senate came in and 
accepted in non-concurrence; later, in a convention was formed. 

the House, the House voted to recede In Convention. 
and concur with the Senate in the ac- (The President of the Senate in the 
c<'ptance of' the report "ought not to Chair.) 
pass." The PRESIDENT: The Chair will 

On motion by Mr. Boman of Vinal- state that the time having arrived to 
haven, under a suspension of the rules, which recess was taken, the secretary 
the vote was reconsidered whereby the of the convention will call the roll of 
House voted to reeede and concur with the convention. 
the Seriate in the acceptance of the re- PRESENT:-Sen. Allan of Washington, 

Sen. Allen of Kennebec, Allen of Ma­
port of the committee "ought not to chias, Austin, Sen. Bailey, Bass, Benn, 
pass." Benton, Boman, Sen. Boynton, Bragdon 

O 
of Sullivan, Bragdon of York, Brennan, 

n further motion by Mr. Boman the Bucklin, Sen. Burleigh, Butler, Sen. Chase, 
House voted to insist upon its previous Chick, Churchill, Clark of Portland, 
action in the passage of the bill to be Clark of New Portland, Sen. Colby, Con­
engrosRed, and asked for a committee nors, Cook, Crowell, Currier, Cyr, Desco­

teaux, Doherty, Dresser, Dunbar, Dun-
of conference. 

The Chair thereupon appointed as 
such committee of C'o,nference, on the 
part of the House, Me~"r". Boman of 
Vinalhaven, '1'rimbl" of Calais and 
Brennan of St. George. 

The SPgAKEH: The Chair will state 
that the report of the committee of 
<'onference in the matter of bill, An Act 
for the better protection of automobile 
garage keppel'S and OW11P1'S, has been 
returned to the House in accordance 
'with an order passed by the I-Iouse. 

Mr. THO".IBS of Lincoln: Mr. Speak-
er, is this bill nov\' in a stage \vhere a 
motion to recede nnd concur with the 
Senate in the passage of the bill can be 
('niertained? 

ton, Eastman, Eaton, JoJldridge, Elliott, 
Elnf'rSOn, Farrar, Sen. Flaherty, Franck, 
Gallagher, Greenleaf of Auburn, Green­
leaf of Otisfield, Sen. Hagerthy, Han­
cock, Harman, Harper, Harriman, Has­
k(,]l, Sen. Hastings, Sen. Hersey, Hig­
gins, I-logan, IIutchins, Irving, Jenkins, 
Sen. Jillson, Johni'on, Jones, Kimball, 
Lawry, Leary, Libby, Sen. Mansfield, 
l\farBton, IVlason, Mathie;.;;on, Sen. Max­
well of Sagarlaboc, Maxwell of Boothbay 
Harbor, McBride, McFadden, Merrill, 
Metcalf, Mildon, Sf'n. Milliken, Mitchell 
of Kewport, MOONS, Sen. Morey, Mor­
gan, :'ITorsf', Sen. Murphy, Newbert, 
O'Connell, Sen. Packard of Knox, Pack­
fIro of Newburg, Peaks, Pendleton, Pc­
ten:;, Petel'~on, Pitcher, Putnam, Quinn, 
Sen. Hcynolrls of henncbec, Reynolds 0[ 
Le""i:-;ton, Sf~n. Richardson of Penobscot, 
Hjchardson of Canton, Rickel', Roberts, 
Robin:-;Oll, Roussf'ftU, Sanborn, ~andel'­
son. Skelton. Skillin. Sen. Smith of Pe­
nobscot, Sn1ith of A1Jburn, ~mith of Pat­
ten, Smith of I'ittsfiel(l, Smith of Presque 
181(-', Rno,,', :Spencer, Sprague, ~en. 
Stearns. Stf-'Yens, Stuart, ~turgis. ~wift, 
'Taylor, 'Thornbs, Tob!:')", 'rl yon, 'r·wOlnbly. 
Umphrey, Yiolette, Sen. 'Walker, ,Yash­
burn. ,\'aterhous0, \Vbeeler, \Vinchen­
btlllgh, Sen. "\Ving, "\\Ti~('. 

"\BSI<;XT:-Bither, Boland, Bowlcr. 
Brown, Chadboul'De, Sen. Clark of York, 

-:'.11'. 'J'nO:'lIBS: 111'. Speaker, I was Cochran, Sen. Cole, Sen. ('on ant, )laYis, 
Donoyan, Durgin, Sen. Dutton, Sen. Bm­

not on the comn1ittec of conferencf', but PI'Y, Estes, Farnham, Fols01n, Gamache, 
I understood S0111e geneltman 'VI10 "vas Gardner, Goo(l",'in, GorGon, Haines, 
on that committee, the other day, to Hod"don. Jenningc;, Kehol", Kelleher of 

'.I'll .. SPEAKER: Accompan~'ing this 
report is a memorandum from the spc­
retary of the Senate stating that the 
orig'inal papers were not returned by 
the committee of conference. 

Portland. Kelleher of 'Vateryille, Leader, 
"tate that they (Jid not ha\'e thE' pa- LeBel, Lp\'eille, Maybury, Mitchell of 

IZittery, ~lorn('all, ~Iorri~on, 80('11. MOUl­
ton, Xute, Sen. Patten of Hancock, Pea­
cock, Plummer, Price, Hamsay, Holfe, 
Sarf?;C'nt, ~catE's, Shennan. Rtrrnley, Stet­

per". 
'I'll(' SPEAKER: The Chair will state 

th~t the papers will have to be found 
befo1'e any moti.on of the nature ~,ug- Eon, ~hvett, rrhompson, rrrilnble, Yeaton. 
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The PRESIDENT: The Chair will 
state that owing to a minor accident 
to the engine on the train from Port­
land, thi;; morning, many of the mem­
bers of the convention as well as 
counsel and witnesses have been de­
layed, but will be in attendance in the 
course of a few minutes. 

A call of the roll reveals the pres­
ence of 130 members of the conven­
tion. 

Mr. SKILLINGS recalled. 
Examination by Jndge CLEAVES. 
Q. At the end of the session on 

Saturday you were giving the names 
of places that you visited, this year, 
in Portland, and I ask you to complete 
the list of such places and state brief­
ly as you can the conditions that you 
observed? A. Will it be all right 
for me to read from my minutes? 

Q. You can refresh your recolle('-
tion from your notes. 

Mr. PATTANGALL: 
a preliminary matter if 
to nse notes, it should 
him if his notes were 
time and by himself. 

I suppose as 
the witness is 
be stated by 
made at thp 

The SPEAKER: He can only us?­
his notes to refrnsh his recollection. 

The ATTORNEY GENERAL: That 
was stated the other day. 

Mr. PATTANGALL: That is, the 
notes the witness uses to refresh 
his recollection must have been mad" 
at the time and not some time since. 

The vVITN,EE:S: These notes weI'" 
not made in the places, but 'lfter I 
visited two or three places. I would 
then gO to some quiet place and 'nake 
notes of what I saw. 

Mr. PATTANGALL: On the same 
day? A. Yes, sir, within a half hour. 

Judge CLEAVES: You may only 
use such notes as v'ere made at the 
time, and not any made since that 
time. A. No, sir. Saturday, M'ar("l]. 
15, at 16 I<'ore street, one bar keeper. 
four or five in there, one or two quite 
drunk; same day, southwest corner 
Fore and Union streets, two bar keep­
ers, ten or twelve men in there, some 
drinking beer and s')me quite drunk: 
northwest corner Fore and Union 
streets, about fifteen men in there, 
some drinking beer and some quite 
drunk. I have not put down the num-

bel' of bar keepers. March 17, 65 
Commercial street, one bartend,,',', 
strong odor of beer outside, nine or 
ten men inside, some drinking beer, 
some partially intoxicated; March 17, 
40 vVashington avenue, proprietor 
Thomas F. McGee, one barkeeper, four 
or five men in there, one drinking, on'~ 
somewhat under the influence of .li­
quor. 

Mr. PATTANGALL: Are not the 
same places and dates and the same 
testimony that was given on Satur­
day? 

Judge CLEAVES: I will say throug]', 
the President, that I asked Mr. Skil­
lings, Saturday, to go through his list 
and bring this morning those he had 
not mentioned. 

The vVITNESS: It was a little hard 
for me to remember just what I had 
mentioned. I may possibly have meIl­
tioned duplicates, some. I do not 
think I have menti<med this one on 
\'Iashington avenue. I have it on my 
minutes. March 17, 21 Free street, oue 
harket'pf'r, six or eight men in there" 
some drinking and some drunk; north­
west corner of Free and Centre streets" 
18 or 20 men in there, some drinking, 
sume intoxichted, three barkeepers" 
two with white coats; March 17, 9:) 
to 97 Centre street, barkeepers, two in 
white coats outside the bar by the 
stove, only two or three men in there 
young man came in and was served 
beer, had quite a talk with him, he 
seemed to be under the influence of 
liquor; betw'~en 87 and 93 Centre 
street, bar mHn one, sp.emed to be :1. 

hop beer joint, old man drinking hop. 
beer, seemed to be the only one there, 
northwest corner Pleasant and Cen­
tre streets, otherwise 1 Pleasant. 
street, two barkeepers', one in white,. 
five or six men in there, some drink­
ing and some intoxicated. March 17. 
northeast corner, Fore and Summer' 
streets, one b3.rkeeper, eight or ten 
men in there, some drinking, some in­
toxicated. 13 to 15 Pleasant street; 
1 haven't the number of barkeepers, 
but there were eight or ten men in 
there, some drinking and some in· 
toxicated, as usual. March 18, 108 
Preble street, barkeepers one, six or 
eight men in there, some drinking" 
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beer, one intoxicated. 545 Commercial 
street, proprietor Patrick A. Sullivan. 
only two men in there, Patrick Sulli­
can, "Big Pat," So called, behind the 
bar, and apparently a barkeeper who 
came out of a back room; March ]9, 

50 Pleasant street, owner, Martin O'­
Hare, barmen 2, two men behind the 
bar, one playing cards with one in 
front, six or eight men in there, none 
drinking, one empty glass on bar and 
a bottle with a little brown liquor ill 
it. 75 Centre street, one man in there 
doing nothing. 

Q. Now, Mr. Skillings, during the 
time that you were a deputy of the 
sheriffs, did you visit in your otficial 
capacity a larg'e majority of these 
same places searching for intoxicating 
liquors? A. I did. 

Q. And what difference, so far a,; 
the openness and absence of watch­
ers and that sort of thing, IS concern­
ed, did you notice in these same plact's 
in your visits this last month and the 
times you visited the same places 
when a deputy sheriff? A. 

Mr. PATTANGALL: Is it going to 
be proper to take up a comparison, of 
enforcement conditions in Cumber­
land county under the different sher­
iffs for the past few years? 

The SPEAKER: Probably not. We 
think the Attorney General would en­
deavor to shorten the method and de­
scribe the conditions within a reason­
a ble time before the first of January, 
and as a preliminary show the change'l 
after the first of January. 

Judge CLEAVES: That is my pur­
pose, Mr. Speaker. 

Mr. PATTANGALL: This question 
goes back to 1902. 

THE SPEAKER: It seems as though 
the question should cover a reasonable 
time and ten years would be more than 
a reasonable time. 

MR. PATTANGALL: I can see where 
certain questions going bark to that time 
would be arlmissible, 1mt I suppose that 
any evidence as to events occurring be­
fore the first of January, so far as fix­
ing the knowledge of Sheriff Moulton is 
,concerned, would be confined to ,his tel'm 
of office. 

THE SPEAKER: Probably that would 
be the case. Two years would also ap-

pear to be a reasonable time, although 
it is a question of large latitude as to 
what is a reasonable time. The f'hair 
sug-gC"ts that the question be confined 
to two years before the first of Jan­
uary. 

(Question withdrawn.) 
Q. l-Iow long have )':.111 known Thr)mas 

A, Brownrig? A. Oh. about 12 years. 
Q. \Vhat has Deen his business during 

that time and up to the present moment? 
1. So far as I know,-

!VIR PATTANGALL: \Ye object to 
that: what M!', Skillmgs would have 
known of this man's business 12 year~ 

ago \vQuld seem to us as having no 
ben ring upon Sheriff ,Moulton. 

THE SPEAKER: The question is wnat 
a c:prtain man knows, and as prelimina'_'y 
thOlt cannot be objectionta,ble. 

MR. PATTANGALL: As to whr.t his 
business was 12 year.-:' ago? 

.Jl;DGl<J CLEAVES: I said down to 
the presen t time. 

THE SPl<JAKEH: The counsel asked 
what a certain man's busine,ss was and 
that sh0uld not Ilf' objectionable. It may 
be prellminary to ou]Cctionable testi­
mony. 

:VIR. P.\TTANGALL: Is it not the 
rule that if a pn<iminary question lead~ 
to an objectionable question that th2 
pn>:imlnary q'lcst:on is questionable? 

THE SPEAKER: This question is ad­
mis~ible. 

MR PATTANGALL: One other sug­
gestion: I supposed that the under­
standing was that all evidence relating 
to anything previons to January 1, 1913, 
the UIDe eITlbraced in the cnarges before 
the convention. was a(lmitte-a SImply (}s 
tending to show that the knowledge 'In 
the part of the s'heriff 'contmue~ WIWOUt 

change from the prior years. 
THE SPEAKEH: That is the general 

Idea. 
MR. PATTANGALL: And anything 

that occurred prior to the inauguration 
of the sheriff in office would have no 
bearing at all? 

THE SPEAKER: That is right. 
MR PATTANGALL: 'rnen consider 

this: If a man had been known to Mr. 
Skillings a,s liquor dealer for some eight 
or nine years before Mr. Moulton came 
into office. would tnat be admissible? 

THE SPEAKEH: The Ohair under-
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stands that the qUE'stion relates to the 
present time. 

IMR. PATTANGALL: But it is not 
confined to the present time. 

(The question was read ,by the re­
porter.) 

THE SPEAKER: Of cours<, the pl'riod 
of two years should be covered by the 
question. 

JUDGE CLEAVES: Particularly dur­
ing the last two years: 

MR. PATTANGALL: The question in 
that form does not eliminate the pre­
ceding ten years. 

JUDGE CLEAV,ES: During the last 
two years and three months what ha .. 
been the business of Thomas A. Brown­
rig? A. As far as I know, he has beem 
In the Jlq uor business. 

Q. And at what place have you known 
him ,to be in the liquor business during 
that two years and three months? A. 
The only place is the lIorthwest corner' 
of Franklin and Commercial streets. 

Q. And is he the only Thomas A. 
Brownrig you have known during that 
time as having been in business at that 
place? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. During that same period of timp, 
have you known Patnck A. Sullivan? 
A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And is he the one to wnom you 
referred a.s "Big Pat"? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And is that a name by which he is 
quite generally known in Portland? A. 
Yes, sir. 

Q. vVhat has been his ,business during 
the last two ycars and three months '? 
A. Well, as far as I know, he has been 
in the liquor business. 

Q. And at what place have you known 
him. A. I forget the num;ber now. 

Q. On what street is it'? _'.. On Com­
mercial street. the corner of Clark and 
Commercial; northeast corner. 

Q. Is he the same Patrick Sullivan 
whose name 'was read by ::\1r. Owen as 
holding a retail liquor dealer's license, 
41 Commercial street, and a wholesale 
malt liquor dealer's license at the same 
place'? A. I tlllnk so. 

Q. You unclcrstand him to be the same 
parlY? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And during the last two years and 
three months do you know what has 
bee:1 the common reputation of Patrick 
A. Sullivan's place at that number, so 

far as th,. sale of intoxicating liquors is 
concerned'! d. The last 18 months? 

Q. No, two years and three months. 
A. The reputation has been that it has 
be,'n a drinking saloon, and a place 
whf~re intOXicating' liquors 'were sold. 

Q. Do you know what the reputation 
of Thomas A. Brownrig's place has been 
during that same period of time, as far 
as doing business is concerned, and if 
you do know you may state, in regard 
to the use of intoxkating lIquor. A. 1 

cio not remember how long ago it was 
that that place was an express office. 

Q. Si nce it has been an express office 
and within two years and three months, 
what has been its reputation? A. It 
has been a place where liquors have ;])een 
retailed, intoxicating liquors, and wheth­
er ,they have been wholesaled there or 
not. I can't say. 

Q. I ask you If you know what has 
been the reputation, so far as the sale 
of liquors is concerned, of the place at 
the ,corner of Free and Temple streets 
on the right ,hand side as you go dOWJ1 

Free and Centre streets, as you go dOWIl 

from Congress, the one that has th3 
Icigar Sign and a front and back dO/Jr. 
A. know where you mean. It has 
b<ecn the reputation of the place for 
somp time. I do not remember just ihow 
lung, as being a drinking place where 
liquors were sold. 

Q. Longer than this year? A. Yes, 
sir. 

Q. On the opposite corner of the same 
street, what has been the reputation 
of that place? A. That has been a 
drinking saloon, a drinking place. 

Q. Upon the right hand corner of 
Center and Fore streets coming down 
from Congress street-do you locate the 
place? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. ,Vhat has been the reputation of 
that place for two and a half years? 
A. That has been a drinking place. 

Q. Upon the opposite corner of the 
same streets, what has been the reputa­
tion of that place? A. That has had 
a reputation of being a drinking place, 
a regular bar room. 

Q. And Fore and Cotton streets, has 
that the same reputation? A. Yes, 
sir; a regular bar room. 
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C,.oss- Examination. 
By Mr. PATTANGALL. 
Q. Mr. Skillings, the number of 

places you visiteC:, on March 15 17 18 
and 19, have been bar rooms for ~ow 
long a time? A. Most of them for at 
leagt 12 years. 

Q. And that dates back to your first 
work as a deputy sheriff? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Now what sheriffs did yOU serve 
under? A. Samuel F. Pierson. 

Q. He died before his term of office 
Ilad been completed? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And what sheriff was appointed 
in his place? A. Sheriff Dunn. I 
served undel' him. 

Q. 'Vhat sheriff came next? A. If 
my memory serves me right, it was 
Shf'l"iff Pennell. 

Q. He served two terms? A. I 
think he served three term~ I am not 
sure. 

Q. EitllPr two or three terms? 
A. Yes, sir. 

Q. ,\nd during his term of office do 
you remember that for a part of his 
term at least the Sturgis deputies were 
in I'ortlanel? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Do ,'Oll remember ,,'hat sheriff 
followed :'1,.. Pennell? A. Yes, sir, 
MpiYin ,Yo Trefethen. 

Q. He H('lTed one t(,1'1n? A. Yes, 
sir. 

Q. l)uring a pal't of his tenn ,vprE~ 

the S! urgis deputies assisting' in Port­
lano? A. I do not rememher. 

Q. And then Mr. :'IIoulton was clect-
ed,! .A. Yp:;:;, Rir. 

Q. And Ht'I'v(-~d 0110 term and so much 
of this as has f'xpire<1 since .Tanuary 1? 
A. Yf'S, f'il'. 

Q. Now tllOsp diffPrent sheriffs "'hom 
,,:e have named ,,"'pre men of different 
political parties"? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. -:-11". PiNson was a Prohibitionist? 
A, -Yes, sir. 

Q. Ana Mr. '.rrdetlIPn was a Repub­
lican, an(l Mr. Dunn and Mr. Pennell 
\Yf'l'P DC1TIOeY'ats? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And those terms of office covered 
1 ~ ~'('arH? A. Yf>R, sir. 

places, were they not? A. Yes, the;' 
were. 

Q. You remember a liquor seller by 
the name of John Halloran? A. Yes, 
sir. 

Q. And where was his place? 
A. 65 Commercial street. 

Q. That is still a liquor saloon? 
A. YeH, sir. 

Q. And was when you were a deputy 
sherilI? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And when both Mr. Dunn and 
Mr. Pierson were sheriffs? A. It was 
in the first part of Mr. Pierson's ad­
ministration. 'Vhether it was in Mr. 
Dunn's, I can't say, I rather think that 
place I"('mained open. 

Q. During the two years you were 
deputy sheriff? A. I rather think so, 
although I will not be sure. 

Q. Don't you know that Holloran's 
place remained open right along 
through those years? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And during Sheriff Moulton's 
term, do you know that John Holloran 
received a jail sentence? A. No, sir, 
I don't remember it. I may have 
known about it at the time, out I don't 
recall it. 

Q. Nothing of that kind happened to 
him before that, that you know of? 
A. No, sir. 

Q. That was one of the well-known 
pl:"·,,s in Portland? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Do you remember at 011e time 
while yon were an official that ?-11". Cur­
tis, now mayor of Portland, called that 
particular place· to your attention and 
a~k('d you ""hy it ,,"'as not closed? 
A. I do not remember. 

Q. ,Vould it refresh your memory if 
I asked you if you recall that you saiel 
to him that it was impossible to close 
it? A. No, sir; I don't ren1ember any­
thing about it. 

Q. Or would it refresh your mind if 
J ask you if you said to him that you 
did not know the reason why it was not 
closed? A. I do not remember any­
tiling ahout it. It may have happened. 

Q. .As a matter of fact, was any at· 
tempt mnde to closl' it? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. '\,110 by? A. "''lyself. 
Q. Dic1 yon succeed? A. No, sir. 

Q. During that 1 ~ years a ("onsider­
abll' nnmllcr of those placE'S "\vhich you 
have men! ioned were conducted as liquor 
saloons, iycre they? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. The,' had tllat reputation? 
A. Yes, sir. 

Q. An(l iYf"l'C fairly well known 

Q. SO til at from your experience as 
an Official, did Y011 ascertain the fact 
that "yen when :-,"011 were attempting to 
close liquor saloons, that it was im-
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possible to do so? A. Not impossible, 
but hard work sometimes. 

Q. You tried to close this man? 
A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Did you succeed? A. I didn't 
succeed. that is, I didn't succeed. I can't 
remember whether anyone else succeed­
ed or not. 

Q. And whether that place was closed 
or not you know you did not close it? 
A. No. sir. 

Q. You do not know that :1nyuody 
e/1,c clc·sed it? A. I don't remember. 

Q. And your general recollectiGn is 
t'1<1t John Holloran's place has been 
open from then to now'? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Do you m('an to include the tim'.~ 
wh('1i the Sturgis deputies were there, 
'c.'ns HellcJran's place running then? 
A. As far as I know, it has not been 
clos[(;; it may haye been closed. 

Q. 'Would you be rather of the opin­
ion that it h:1d not been closed? A. I 
wruld not express an opinion. 

Q. You expressed the opinion that 
the place was running right dong. A. 
1 may be mistaken. 

Q. 'Vould you say you may be mis­
lRken as to ether places referred to as 
olrt-timers? A. No, sir, this is an old .. 
timer. 

Q. In a general "'8.y, all those vld­
time;-s' places have been running right 
alon~ ff,;" 12 y~ars? ~~. Yes, sir. 

Q. 'Vould th"t include the Pierson 
T('gime and the Sturgis deputies' time? 
You dQ not I,now cf any places that 
j,aye been cksed during those 12 years. 
do you? A. Yes, in thE' la tter part of 
Mr. Pit'rscn's administra tion, a nd Sher­
iff Dunn's. 

Q. Who was closed of the places you 
tes-tHit'd. Saturday, had been open 1) 
or 12 years? A. No.1 Pleasant street, 
James Wdch or vValsh. 

Q. \Vhat husiness did he go into aft­
er he Wt'nt out of the liquor husiness'~ 
A. I don·t now th:1t he ever went out 
of the liquor business until he di"d. 

Q. Was that caused by his plac,' 
closing? ,Vas that the caus" of his 
place closing or did the sherif( close 
it? A. No, f'ir; he died some years 
after that. It was the deputy sheriff 
under Sheriff Pierson who closed it. 

Q. W'ha t (:0 you mean by ciosed it? 
A. Why, made it so disagrpeable to 
st'!l liquor there that they shut it up 

Q. How long did they keep it shut'> 
A. I don't remember. 

Q. Not V<'Ty long? A. Yes, sir. 
Q. HGW long? A. I can't say. 
Q. Giye the convention some idea; 

:you must haye some idea in your mind. 
A. It mi;;ht have been six months. 

Q. That was during the latter part 
,)f :lfl'. Pierson's term of office',' A. YeH, 
~ir, !lull in :"Ir. Dunn's. 

Q. Yuu think that place was clc.sccl 
about six mGnths? A. Yes, Rir. 

Q. l\'ow can you t~ll me some other 
."nes of the old-timers that have been 
open during the "'hole of these 10 or 
12 years? A. 10 India street. 

Q. .VGO ;-un that place? A. I don't 
remember. 

Q. "Neil, how long was that closed? 
A. I couldn't say. 

Q. \V.IS it closed at all? A. It ":as 
closed, yes, sir. 

lc2. 1\0'" yc:u mean by closed that the 
shop was not run for any purpose? A. 
"Vasn't run for any purpose. 

Q. No,,, I~ow long a time? A. Per-
Iwp::: that was six months. couldn't 
say pusitiYt' just how long. 

Q. W'ho was in business next door 
to this last place mentioned? A. I 
don't remember now. 

Q. Somebody was, wasn't there? A. 
Yes, that was closed and this place was 
closed. 

Q. ,\\,ho \\'as in business at the next 
door, en the otIwr ~ide, do you re­
member? A. India street? 

Q. Yes. A. ()n th,- same corner? 
Q. No, right next door to it. A. On 

til(, same side of the street '! 
Q. YE·S. A. And aboye? 
'0/. Yes. A. Andrew Eagan. 
Q. 'Vas t.hat phce elcsed, Eagan's? 

.A. 1 think it was. 
Q \\'hat do you know about it? that 

is, I mean to say, do you know that 
it was" A. Well, 1 can't say posi­
tively as to that. 

Q. Let us see-Andrc>w Eagan was 
the m'm Whom you spoke of, Sll.turdll.Y. 
as ha'.'ing riln a liquor business for n 
years? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. That is on India street? A. Yes, 
sir. 

Q. Do YOU mean by that tha t he has 
run it at times, or that has been his 
business for 13 yt'ars there, at that par­
tic~ilar place? A. That has been his 
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OL'Slil~S" there for 1~ years in i hat par· Q. But they sold liquor? A. W, 
tic'l:la1' place, but at times tllere rna". 'Tldom could find any liquor in the 
na ve been weeks, or mnnths, possibly, oar room. 
tktt the place was closed, that ii', th3 Q. They sold liquor didn't they? 
saloon on the corner. A. Tiley did, I think. Couldn't say 

C.z. You ha ven't any Im()\"ledge of positively as to that, but it is my 
ni1~ sueh tim,s" A. I couldn·t say opinion they did when we were not 
pesi tive. tl1"re. 

Q. Looking back for 12 ypars yuct Q. \Yell, Mr. Skillings, you were 
haven't any recollection of <iny tim" about Portland a good deal in those 
that Andrew Eagan was not sellin.:; two years. Didn't you see any indi­
liquor OiL India street, in Portland, cation that liquor Was beIng sold in 
;1ave y(,u'! A. No, sir, I have not. Portland during those two years? A. 

Q. (Tnder all these different shEriff,~ I oid. yes sir. 
'lnd Sturgis depllti(>s-now isn't that Q. Of course you did. I know you 
true Mr. Skillings in a gent'ral way, or a re going to be fair with me and franl, 
a large numb{>r of the places you Illt':" with the commission on those matters. 
n.,'ntioneu '? A. Yes, sir. J\"ow as a matter of fact, with all the 

Q. Going back to the timE' you were effort that could be made and that 
dnplOYf'd therc, how many liquor dep- was made, liquor selling was far from 
llti,'~; did you use': or ho\y many dcp- being supressed in Portland, wasn't 
uti( s w(>r(; engaged in suppressing tlk it? A. \Yhy, it was not supressed 
'Sale of liquor? A. There were t11re(' at altogether. There was a great deal 
[iT'd. and then there ,,",'re two mor" of pockpt peddling. 
:,ddc·d. I think. Q. And when some of these places 

Q. And how m'lny pEople did you WET,' elf,sed, other places sprang up, 
ha-,'( employ",} in assisting you? A. (Iidn'! they'.' A. Yes, sir, kitchen b:u 
011, I couldn't say. 1'0')111S. 

(~. \Vell, n good number? A. Quit<:, Q. Quite a numbel'? A. Quite a 
a nt:mbfT, yes. numbcr, yes s'!'. 

Q. Officers, or men whom you just Q. Kitchen har rooms became pret-
tde;; as aids, spoit('l's? A. Men ,,,110m t,' extensive? A. Yes, sir. 
we took as aids. Q. And those, as an official you 

Q. And you C'mployeu detectin'>1, [('und it practicall,' impossible te 
<lid you? A. Yes, sir. H;nch. didn't you? A. ""ot altogether. 

Q. Spotters, we call them, I don't Q. I don't mean that you couldn't 
mean the term as a reproach. A. De- "pt an off"nder here and theTe. but 
te'ctives, I thinl;: is a better namc'. to do an,' thing toward,-anything that 

Q. But not regular detectives-they IO(lked lik" supressing them and 
were men employed in that partieul,u Rtampint:(' them out? Do I make my­
linee of work, weren·t they'? "\. Yes, ~01r cIe·ar? A. \Vhy, I think so. J 
sir. COUldn't say as to that, I know we 

Q. And you took in your countn f"'UH\ <]uitp a number of places. 
u<'puties. and used those mcn with Q. You didn't by any means suc­
whom the liquor men were not se ('ced in eliminating that featur2? A. 
well acquainted? A, Yes, sir, I thinl, No sir, we did not. 
to ~ome extent the~' werp used. Q. Or in preYenting drunkenness b 

Q, ""ow then. with all that assist- l11Q eity'? A. No, sir. 
Dnee, did you find it possible to keep Q. Do you know where the Cum­
these li<]uor saloons elosed in Port- hc'rlan:} Club iR located? A. Yes, sir. 
land? A. Not all of them. Q. During the last 12 years, have 

Q. A good many of them were open ,ou known that the Cumberland Club 
WE're they not? A. Well, not open has h'en maintained as an institu­
in the sense they were not guarded, tion? A. Yes, sir. 
and in the sense that the barkeep<'r Q. Ever know of its being disturbed 
did not get out when some of us came hy any official? A. I don't remem-
in. ber. 
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Q. You don't remember of its eV21 

having been disturbed? A. I don't 
remember that it ever has been. 

Q. Do you know where other Club~ 
are located, without naming them, 
other clubs in Portland, Social Clubs? 
A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Some of them have existed fO! 
J2 years haven't they? A. I think so. 

Q. And some of them have never 
lJeen ,Usturbed by anybody? A. ] 
couldn't say. 

Q. As far as you know? A. As faJ 
as I know, I don't know that tlley 
have. 

torl10Y in rpgard to these nlatters? A~ 

No, sir. 
Q. You kno\v Hle county attorney? A .. 

~ir. 

Q. Mr. Bates? -'-~. Yes, sir. 
Q. You haven't taken any oJ the;;e 

matiers to the grana jury? A. No, sIr. 
Q. From your expPriel1c'e and knowl­

edge of affairs in Portland with relation 
to liquor Inatters emb!'Llc'll,g a period of 
1'~ years, what do you say in a general 
way has been the effect of attempted 
CnfDr{'(>'nlent, :18 far as these bar rooms 
are concerned?, ,Yhere has the traffic 
gone? ,Yhat conditions have obtained? 
A. ,,'hy, pocket peddling a nd kitchen 

Q. A t least they were not duriJ;1g ba r rooms. 
tile timc in which you were activel:, Q. And what has [h"t condition reo 
engaged in the work? A. Well. J suHc'd in? ,\'hat ,have you seen as an 
think there were some that were dis- evidence of it? A. Hardly know what 
lurbed. 

Q. Ann some that were not? :\_ you mean. 
Q. IIave you investigated~havE' you 

Snme that were nGt. as all officer or as a citizen, and I know 
Q. You spoke of a place called the theet [lS a citizen you take a good deal 

C;aff TO]Jsail. Do you know when that of inlerest in those things. properly, 
place was first opened? A. I don't have you visited, invesligated these 
remember. kitchen hal' rooms? A. 1 did while I 

Q. Now, Mr. Skillings, after ascer- was an offi, f'l', when 1 was an officer. 
taining the present conditions in POl't- Q. "',hat did you find there? You 
land, (lLl you mak(, any report to the 
sheriff? A. No, sir. 

Q. Or any request of him? A. On· 
ly in the matter of-No, no personal 
request to the sheriff,-a matter of 
complaint. I complained of this place, 
-",here I saw the man purchase a 
half pint. of liquor. 

Q. Yon complainej of that to tile 
}oung lady? A. To the young lady 
in the sheriff's office. 

Q. And he was then in the city of 
vVashington? A. I was told that he 
was in \Vashington. 

Q. That is during the presen 
month? A. In MarcIl. 

Q. And excepting for that one mat­
ter you have never made a'lY com­
plaint to the sheriff or his officers, 
have, you? A. I have talked with the 
sheriff about his doing his duty in th( 
citv of Portland. 

Q. Have you made any specific com­
plainU; of any places to him? A. I don't 
know that 1 have. 

Q. Have you made any complaints to 
the Court? I mean to your Municipal 
Court? A:. No, sir. 

Q. Have you been to the county at-

elidn't find bar tenller5 with white aprons 
on? A. ~o, sir. 

Q. \\ ho did you find? A. \Ven, many 
times it WdS women. 

Q. And children? A. 'Yell, no, I nevep 
S;l\V any children handling liquor. 

Q. But in many c"ses women? .c\.. 
n1<lny cases women. 

!n 

Q. An,d in housps? A. In h~)uses, yes~ 

sir. 

C~. Children about there? A. Y('s, ;:.::i1'. 

Q. Taking part in th" ",·oceedings. 
hidin~ liquor, 0r anything of that sort? 
A. 1 clon't remember any particular 0"­
casion wherf'--I 'mig-Iht po::;sibly have seen 
some childrl'n engaged in hiding or tak­
ing care of liquor, but I don't remember 
any particular occasion where children 
had anything to do 'With the liquor. 

Q. Tn tnose days when some of these 
bars were t8mporarily closed, as you ob­
served ('onclitions about Portland, was 
there any improvement so far 'as liquor 
drinking, t,.e evils of liquor drinking was 
.con<::prned? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. 'l'here waH? Yes, sir. 
Q. Less arrests for drunkenness? A. 

I couldn't say as to that. I don't remem­
ber. 
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Q. You know anything all wat point? 
A. ~o, sir. 

Q. You ha ven't looked that up? A. 
think that there was a marKeu improve­
ment, and if 1 may :be allowed to state 
it, ","as told, I was pointed out, men in 
the gro'C'ery store:-:;-a man in a g-rocery 
;--',t01'(' was telling-be says, "there comes 
it man nOlN-" 

Q. Pardon HlP, YOUI' o\vn obspr\'at ion. 
of eourst> w(' \vant. uecLluse it is f'f 
value. l,1on·t think it would be right 
to n-'}Jf'at Wilat others .ave said. 1\11'. 
Skillings, you ;Ire Jalnilia)' \vith tIle fact 
that there is a goverllnlcnt fort there. 
Fort Preble i~ it? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. ~~ c:Jll~id('ral)lt' number of soldiers 
located there'? A. r think that the most 
of the soluilr~ ll'\, locat0d at Ft. "\Vil­
lianl. I should (Joubt jf thrs Ih:typ rnany 
~l t Ft. PrplJle just it t present. 

(J. 1)0 you kll(q,y snnH',\vhpl'e ncar the 

llUITIUer'? i\' I c\l) not. 
Q. ft runs up around nearly one or 

i wo thous:ultl. pE'rh~l})s? .\. I think not. 
but I am not ::-;ure. 

Q. 1 t is a (:()nsill~'l'able nUlnoer? i-\' 

Quite a considerablE' I1Ullli1er. 
Q. And goin~' auout as you h:lye 

around these drinking places ha Vf' you 
~ef'n mOf(' or Ip;-:s of tht~ ~wl(1iers tl1{~rt-'? 

A. Yes, sir. 

(J. Now as an offL_·t~r you learned, and 
a s a citizen of Portland jrOll know that 
there is a large floating population in 
Portland-that is trup, isn't it'? r mean 
people "\V110 (,OIne and go and who are 
not re::-;idents of the city? _-\... Quite a 
Llrge floating" populauol1. 

Q. Ana at cprtaill tinles of year are 
thl:::1'(' quite a goou nUl.ny people .. vho 
('0111(, chf're on the trains anu boat:.::, for 
,\ (lay or two. working rn(,ll? .. \. Y('s, 
sir. 

Q. Nnw LIt ~llch times hayc you 011-
~ervf'c1, say during t.he month of ).:iarch, 
rather Inorr> drinking and drunkenness 
,,])out the city tL.ln the average for the 
year on account of rnt::l1 cOIning out of 
the woods and from the ice, and all 
that? .\. r couldn·t say that I hau noted 
that, that I h:l\Ve nlade any-

Q. You neYf'r had anything to do 
,\'ith the police work there? A. Xo, 
sir. 

Q. Nothing to do with making ar­
rests for drunkenness? A. No, sir. 

Q. Speal{ing of Thomas Brownrig, 
one of the men mentioned to you, you 
have known him for 12 years, you say? 
Am I correct in that? A. Yes, sir, 
I have known him by sight at any 
ratf'. 

Q. And do you know what businebs 
he was in last year? A. Not frOl,1 
personal knowledge. 

Q. Do yOU know anything of it. 
from an:,-thing that anybody who is 
familiar with you and with him has 
told you'? A. No, sir. 

Q. SO that neither by intimate 
IWal'say nor by personal knowledge d·, 
,'ou ]UHl\\' what business he was in 
la~t year '! A. Xo, sir, I testified as 
far as 1 knew he was in tho Jiquo" 
business. 

Q. I nolpcl the phrase, and I want­
ed to set' if yoU had any means of in­
formation. No,,' as a matter of fact 
,'OU don·t know what business he was 
in last year, do you'? A. Xo, sir. 

Q. Or tlw year before? A. No, 
sir. 

Q. Xo\\' i!,;n't that also true with re­
gard to Sullivan? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. That you don't know what bus­
iness he \\'as in last year or the year 
I)(,fol'e'! A. Xo, sir, not from person­
al knowledge. 

Q. Or through anybody stating it 
to you, with whom you are familiar 
and who is also familiar with Sulli­
yan's business? A. Yes, sir, I thinl~ 

1 have in the case of Sullivan. 
Q. You think you have some re­

putable hearsay on that point? A. 
YE'S, sir. 

Q. And do you recall anything in 
regard to it '? A. I cannot recall til" 
time or place. 

Q. Under ,,-hat circumstances any­
body told you what business he was 
in, or when? A. I couldn't recall the 
time or place. 

Q. Isn't it a fact that when you 
in a general way say that those men 
have been known to be in the liquor 
business that you are referring not 
"specially to this year, or last year, or 
the },par before but to the fact that 
\\'hen you were active in that work 
or familiar with it, and in the years 
lllat have gone by since those men 
have been !{nO\\'n as liquor sellers-· 
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isn't that what YOU mean? A. I member whether I heard of it or not. 
mean that they are known as liquor I know it was news to me. I may have 
sellers now. known of it and forgotten it, but when 

Q. You don't know whether they I saw it in the paper it was news to 
are selling liquor now or not, do you? me, and news to me that I had signed 
A. Well, I do not from personal it. 

knowledge. Q. I didn't mean that yOU did sign 
Q. And you don't know whether it. I think you didn't sign it, Mr. 

they were last year or not? A. They Skillings? A. No, sir, I didn't sign 
are known, I know that they are it. 
known as liquor sellers now. Q. It wasI.'t presented to you t') 

Q. You don't know whether they sign was it? A. It was not presented 
were selling liquor last year or not? to me. 
A. I didn't see them selling liquor. (~. it wasn't generally circulated 

Q. You don't know, do you now? about Portland en'mgh so that you 
A. I know well enough. recall hearing about it until you saw 

Q. What do yOU mean by well it in the newspaper? A. No, sir, I 
€nough? A. Because I don't know don't recall hearing of it. 
that they have been engaged in any Q. Was it on 'your own initiativi!, 
(lther business. or at the request of some person that 

Q. There are a lot of men in this you visited these various places, Mar. 
Convention that you don·t know have 15, 16, 17 and 19, and made the min­
been engaged in any other business, utf'S that you have presented? A. It 
but vou don't think they arc liquor was at th" request of some person. 
selle;s, do you? Haven't you known Q. Who? what person? A. Am i 
in your experience in Portland, men obliged to answer that person? 
to be engaged in the liquor business. Mr. PATl'ANGALL: Well. I ha\'i~ 
and to be known as such, and then go asked ihe qu~stion. The Chair wIll 
out of it and be engaged in some oth- rule on it. 
€r line of work? A. I don't recall any The SPEAKER: I think you may 
instances of that kind. 

Q. A Portland liquor seller, is al­
ways a liquor seller, is he? A. They 
stick to it pretty close. 

Q. That has been true, though they 
had Pearson for sheriff and Dunn for 
sheriff and three years of Sturgis dep­
uties-they stuck right through the 
whole game didn't they? A. There 
may have been cases-

Q. You never knew any of them to 
change their business, either for 
Pearson, Dunn or the Sturgis depu­
ties, did you? You don't recall any? 
A. I can't recall anyone now. I know 
of one man who went out of business, 
I don't know where he is now. 

Q. Well, one exception proves the 
rules, you know. You had nothing to 
do, Mr. Skillings, with circulating the 
petition with regard to Sheriff Moul­
ton, had you? A. No, sir. 

Q. You signed it? A. No, sir. 
Q. Wasn't your name on it? A. 

No, sir. 
Q. Did you know of such a peti­

tion being circulated? A. I don't re-

ans'wer. 
A. Hr. Charles A. Plummer. 
Q. \Vho is Charles A. Plummer? A. 

He is n. citizen of Portland. 
Q. What is his j::msiness? A. In-

surance burliness. 
Q, \Vas he at one time a deputy 

sheriff? A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Und. r whom? A. Sheriff Pear­

son, Sherilf Dunn. 
Q. Co-deputy with you? A. Yes. 

Q. And like you, I suppose, became 
familiar with these old timers when 
their places were running 
days? A. "i' es, sir. 

in those 

Q. Now prior to the 15th of March, 
how long had it been since you had 
had visited any of the p'aces which 
you have named? A. Oh, I had visited 
some of them quite recently. 

Q. How recently? A. Not a great 
many of them, perhaps. 

Q. Well, how many and how re­
cf'ntly? A. Oh, I couldn't say how 
many. 

Q. Well, you can give an approxi-
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malion? ... '\. 
ly. 

Q. HaVE' 
place': A 
.A. ? 

I drop in quite frequent-

you visited Su!livan'~ 

\Yhieh Sullivan, Patri('], 

Q. The onl,' one you have spok"n 
of, Patrie-k Slllli\'an, Big Pat? A. Xo, 
sir. not recentl,'. 

Q. Or Eagan's, or Brownrig's? A. 
Xo, sir. 

Q. Or Coleman's? A. Yes, I thinl' 
I have been in there sometime-l 
COUldn't say just when. 

Q. ,Vho has the place on the corn"l" 
of FrH' anll Center streets, Northeast 
Corner? A, I could only give that 
answer as a matter of opinion. 

Q. vVell, who do YOU understand, or 
Who did you understand, was conduct­
in",' the place? A. A man by the 
name of Feeney, John Feeney. 

Q. That has always been-I mear. 
I,y always. within your knowledge 01 
affairs, a liquor saloon? A. Yes, sir, 
as fa I' as I know. 

Q. For 12 years? A. And still, I 
couldn't say but what in that 12 years 
it might have been used for a short 
time for something else, there mav 
have been lunches, may possibly hav~ 
been a restaurant there for a time. 

Q. Might have been a restaurant 
there last ,'ear, mightn't there? A. 
Possibly. I couldn't say when. 

Q. Or the O"'ar before, but during a 
large part- A. Oh, I don't thing it 
,vas last year, I think it was earlier 
than that. 

Q. During- a large part of the 1~ 
years, that has peen known as a sa­
loon, hasn't it. A. Yes, sir. 

Q. No longer'? A. I don't know, I 
couldn't say. 

Q. Yon wouldn't say that it had 
not been for a good deal longer than 
tha t? A. I wouldn't say it had not 
been, no. 

Q. Northwest corner of Fore and 
t.:nion? A. vVell, I couldn't say as to 
that, that was occupied as a tailor 
shop at first. It may have been a 
liq uor saloon there for a year or less. 

Q. Now, 87-93 Center street,-that 
W3 s a hop beer place you say? A. It 
seemed to b0 like that. 

Q. You took it to be that? A. Yes. 
Q. You didn't see any sign of any­

tiling els" about it? A. No. sir. 
Q. You didn't see any indication 

that it was anything more than that? 
A. Nu, sir. 

Q. I pass you this paper-it is a 
plan similar to the large plan which 
Bro. Cleaves showed you-House Doc­
ument No. 667-and on Center street, 
T want to ask you if you visited 93 
Center street? A. I think I did. 

Q. Now is that a bar room? A. It 
is fitted up as a bar, yes. 

Q. Are they selling liquor there? 
A. 'I'here was none sold there when 
1 was there. I think there were two 
men in there. 

Q. vVere there indications that it 
was a liquor saloon? A. Why. noth­
ing only the bar, and the man there, 
it was an open place with a bar, I 
don't remember seeing anything be­
hind the bar. 

Q. Did you visit 89 Center street? 
A. I think I did. 

Q. vVhat did you find at 89 Center 

Q. And been open and running? 
Yes, sir. 

Q. I don't want to go into unneces­
sary details, but I want to run these 
places down as rapidly as I can, 
places that you mentioned in your 
note: 416 Fore street, how long have 
YOU known that as a saloon? A. Not 
a great while, I couldn't say just how 
long. 

street" A. About the same as at 93. 
A. Q. That is, yoU saw no liquor 

there': A. Only the men drinking 
beer, I couldn't say what kind of beer 
ji was. 

Q. "VeIl, how long? Somewere neat· 
how long: A. Oh, perhaps a year. 

Q. Southwest corner of Fore and 
Union? A. I should say that had 
been a drinking place for at least ~ 
years. 

Q. At 93 did you see men drinking 
beer? A. No, sir. 

Q. The 89 wasn't like 93 in that re­
spect? At 89 you saw no signs of 
Iiq uor at all? A. It was fitted up 
about the same, had a bar JUSt the 
same, 

Q. At 89 did you see any sign of 
liquor'! A. I did-I may not have the 
same number-there were two placeE 
there on Center street at about that 
locality. At one place there were two 
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men sitting at the table, no men at 
the bar, and no signs of drinking. Al 
this other place, up the street a little 
further, an oldish man took up ,a glass 
of beer out of a brown pitcher. 

Q. Now YOU memorandaed the 

those. They were fitted up-they had a 
bar, both of ,those had bars. 

Q. I have got to start all over that 
again, then. At 93 you said you saw no 
liquor, none exhibited, and none sold of 
any kind-you saw no liquor there at 
all? A. None that I thought intoxi-number of the street and the places 

There might have been ginger you went into-put them on a memo- caling. 
randum? A. I did, I may have got ale. 
the numbers wrong. Q. 

any? 
Hu.\'en't you said you didn't see 
A. I don't remember about that. 

Q. But it is important to get them Q. 
right, if we are going to pursue this 
investigation intelligently. Now have 
you anything to indicate that there 
was any liquor sold or anything look­
ing like liquor selling going on at 93 

You remember what you said a 
minute ago, don't you? A. Yes, sir. 

Center street? A. No, sir. 
Not a thing? A. No, sir. Q. 

Q. And that on this chart (indicating) 
is one ot the black places, put down in 
black? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Now at 89 Center street you saw a 
man served with beer out of a brown 
pitcher? A. Ye3, sir. 

Q, Now there are in Portland places 
that you refer to as 'hop beer joints? A. 
There are, yes, sir. 

Q. Now do you know whether 89 was 
a hop beer joint or a bar ruom"!' .L",,-, No, 
sir, I don't. 

Q, So rar as your observation went, 
it might have been one of those hop 
beer joints? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Now r come to ~1 Center street. 
,Vhat if anytlhing did you find there to 
indicate liquor sellin:;? A. I don't re­
member that I went into that place. 

Q. Didn't go in there at all, so rar 
as ,'ou remember? A. No, I don't think 
I did. 

Q. Now at 59, what did you find, It 
anything, there? A. T'hat was fitted up 
with bottles l'ehind the bar, and glasses 
behind the bar, and white-coated bar 
te.nders. They were Sitting ou t by the 
t,:. ... He 'w~len I went in but when a man 
came in and asked for a glass of beer 
one of them went llehind the bar and 
aerved a glass of beer. 

Q. That had the appearance of a bar 
room? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And not a hop beer jOint? A. No, 
sir. 

Q. SO that o.f t'hese four places you 
only saw evidence of one of them being 
a bar room, is that C'JITect? I mean a 
liquor saloon? A. I saw no sales in 

Q. You of course haye a right to cor­
rect your testimony at any point, if you 
make a mistake. At 00, , ... , you or did 
you not, see any liquor of any kind? 
A. I couldn't say. If I made the state­
ment that I didn't see any, a positive 
statement, I want to retract; I couldn't 
say. 

Q. Yon have a right to. Do you recol­
lect having seen any? A. I don't recol­
lect, and all I recollect is that there was 
no sale of liquor of any kind. 

Q. Can't you make that stronger than 
that? There was no sale, and you don't 
recollect seeing any to sell, do you? A. 
A. I couldn't say as to ginger ale; they 
most all of them have giIlger ale. 

Q. You and I won't quarrel about 
ginger ale. Even Ed Emery c1rin\{s tl1at. 
A. I don't. 

Q. Kow at 93, 1::\1r. Skillings, you have 
no recollection of seeing anything that 
in any way resembled intoxicating liquor, 
clo you? A. No, sir. 

Q. At 89, you haven't any recollection 
of seeing anything in the way of liquor 
a t all excepting liquor poured out o.f 2. 

brown pitcher? Is that right? A. Yes. 
Q. And 71 you didn't go into at all, 

as rar as you know? A. As far as 1 
remember I didn't. 

Q. But 59 had th., appearance of a bar 
room- that is, t,here was liquor there, 
apparently. A. Yes, sir. 

Q. SO that in these four places, ~o far 
as your observation went, you saw evi­
dence of there ,being one liquor saloon­
isn't that right? A. Winy, in my opin­
ion there was evidence in all t'hree of 
L,ese places that I went to. 

Q. Any more eviden<!e than you have 
told the convention? A. No, sir. 

Q. Now, if Sheriff Moulton or any 
other sheriff should sear.ch No. 93, for 
instance, and should carry off all the 
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1iquor there \Va~ in it,. provided there 
~va:-; any there, and he got the propri­
etor in .iail, tha t b" r would still be there, 
wouldn't it? A, Yes, sir. 

Q. And that was all you saw in there 
to indicate that it was a liquor saloon. 
vvas the bar, wasn't it, in 93? .A. Yes, 
sir. 

l,!. I won't go oyer the details of it. 
No\v on Frep street did you go to No. 23? 
A. I think I have at 21 on my minutes 
-the number on the place is 21. 

Q. Yon think that it means the same? 
A. I think it does. If it doesn't 21 isn't 
(lol"wn there, Blat is all. 

Q. And there you fOllnCl indications of 
a j)ar room? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Appeared to be a saloon, with all 
the paraphernalia? A. Yes, sir, with all 
111 e paraphernalia. 

l,!. Is that true of 14? A. )<"0, sIr. 
Q. \\"ha t did you find at 14? A. r 

Ili<1n't \"bit 14 at that time; I ha\"e been 
tl1('l'e sine(', 

Q. II hat did you fln(l there? A. Sort 
of a restaurant. 

Q. )<"0 inclications of a bar room? A. 
There was a small counter; I didn't no­
tice whetl1er there was any display or 
liquors there or not; t'11ere were cigars. 

Q. II hen did you go there? A. It was 
Ii,,.;t week. 

Q. Don·t you think that if there had 
been a display of liquors \\·t~f.lrt you 
'Y('nt there, last ,,'eek, you "'unld ha',-":' 
noticed it; thnt is ,,-nat you y\ '_"l'€ look­
ing for, ,vasn't it '? A. I "llOUI<I think 
~(). 

Q. You \,"ould hayE' made a memo­
randum of it, wouldn't you? A. Possi­
hiy-, yes; I didn't make any memorail­
(!um. 

Q. Ko, und you 11avt>I1't the slightest 
f'\~jdence, ha \-e you, 8£ a sign (1£ liquor 
Helling around H Free Etreet? A. );I (l, 

sir. 
Q. That is one of the places marked 

in blHck on th(e chart. );la,\", :\0. ~9-1 
take it to be-after going up Free 
~treet from 21 or 23, \vhiche\'er it is­
(lid you ,'isit there? A. I think not. 

Q. You didn't visit there at all"? _-\. 
No. 

Q. And Xo. --It was something 
like 51 or :J5-you visited and ha "e te8- I 

lifted about? A. Yes, sir. 
Q. And on the corner of Cotton and 

Fore, you Ilaye testified about? A. Y'?~. 

Q. And the corner of Center and 
Fore? A. Yes, ~ir. 

Q. And the corner of Center and 
Pleasant'? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Tllat number (indicating), I 
tlllnk, is 32 Center street, which would 
be the corner of Center and Free-you 
kno,,- what that is? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. \\'iiat is it? A. A drug store. 
Q. And that is one of tllA places 

marked in black on the chart, isn't it? 
A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Did you go In therc? ~~. :\0, sir. 
Q. Have you ever been in there? A. 

Yes, sir. 
Q. Is it a salocn or a liquor joint, 

lOr is it a rt:-gular drug store'? ~.\. It is 
cL regular drug store. 

Q. ,Yere you s11O\\"n " list of places 
tllat \yere printed in the Honse Doc­
ument <,s ])"ing places "'here liquor 
was bold in violation of la \y in the city 
of Porlland--hR\"e you been sho\\"11 
t.ha t": A. I don't rem em ber. 

Q. ~'ou n("\'er examined that list ~ A. 
T don't remember. 

Q. 1 cIon't knO'.\" that. you could lo­
cate it by street number-that is pret­
ty difficult \\"ithout a directory-but I 
shu ii' it to you, if that ha 5 been called 
to :' our attention, places where it is 
c1aLilul that intoXlcating- liquors are 
solei in violation of law in the city of 
Portland? A. No, sir, that has never 
br,en called to my a itention. 

Q. You ha \'e ne\"er examined i t ~ A. 
No. 

Q. If you should ftnd in that list the 
rnion Depot, you wouldn't call that 
one of the olcltime barrooms in the 
State of Maine? A. It is my opinion 
they ha\"e sold liquor there. 

Q. 'Within the last three months? A. 
Yes, sir. 

Q. ,Vhat do you baSe that opinion 
on'? A. I don't know. 

Q. You ,,'ant to base it on something. 
You \\ ouldn't just Ila ve an opinion tha l 
they solcl IiljUOr there at the Union 
Station unless you had something to 
base it on. vVhat have you to base 
snch an opinion on? A. I couldn't say, 
.mly wha t I think, that is all. 

Q. Are you willing to state to this 
convention, without any pos'Sible rea­
son for thinking so, that they sell li­
quor at the Union Depot, in the Arm­
strOllg" restaurant in Portland? Do you 
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w'cnt that to go into your testimony·, 
A. 'Vhy, yes. 

Q. But you will add to it, will you, 
that you haven't any reason for think­
ing se, or \\-ill YOU give some reason '? 
Do one or the two-either say you 
haven't any, or give liS a reason. on8 

of the two, I don't care which. A. I 
don't l{now that I can. 

Q. You can't giYe any reason? A. 
Possibly I might take that back. 

Q. 'That is, that you don't think that 
lhey sell thHe7 A. I don't want to say 
that; I can't give any reason. 

Q. You say that you haven't any 
reason for thinking so, won't you? A. 
Ko reason outside of my own mind. 

Q. vYhat got your own mind into 
that positIOn? You are too good a fel­
low to go around: imagining that peo­
ple sell liquor, whether they do or not. 
You don't do that. You have something 
to base your opinion on. You haven't 
any ba1lis for intimating then that they 
sell liquor at the Armstrong restaurant 
in the Dllion Depot at Portland at the 
present time or during the last two 
years, have you? A. No, I don't know 
that I have. 

Q. vVhy, of course you haven't. A. I 
Lave helird that they did previous to 
that. 

Q. Previous to what? A. Previous 
to two years ago. 

Q. Back in the old times? A. Yes, 
sir. 

Q. 011, certainly. But not since Moul­
ton was sheriff. You are going back to 
when they had the Sturgis deputies, 
aren't you? A. Perhaps farther than 
that. 

Q. Back to Pierson and Dunn's time? 
A. Possibly. 

Q. But not lately. Now if you shoui<l 
fiud in that list the Falmouth Hotel, 
wh.1t would you say in regard to that 
being properly included in the list of 
!places where intoxicating liquors are 
sold ill Portland at the present time in 
violation of law? A. I couldn't say. 

Q. You haven't any reason for think­
ing that liquor is sold there at the 
present time under Mr. Pooler's man­
agement, have you? A. No reason ex­
cept the reason that I have for the 
Union Station restaurant. 

Q. That is, that liquor used to be 
sold at the Falmouth? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. But you haven't any reason for 

suggesting to this convention that liq­
uor has been sold at the Falmouth, dur­
ing the past two years, haye you? 1 
mean HineE' 1\Ir. Pooler took the hote;! 
A. 1 haven't been there, no. 1 d"n't 
know. 

Q. You know tha: it WU3 sold there, 
years ago? ... '-\. Yes, sir. 

Q. That was at the time the Sturgis 
deputies 'Yere there? A. ·1 don't re­
member about that. 

Q. And when Pearson and Dunn were 
sheriffs? A. No, sir; there was no bar 
room therf', at any rate none sold oyer 
the bar. 

Q. The bar room has always be<:11 
there, hasn't it, whether they sold liq­
uor or not? A. \Yell, yes, the bar room 
has been there, but it was close'] dvr­
ing Sheriff Pearson's administr"tion. 

Q. Do you know .Toseph \V. Mitchell, 
who has a place in Monument square'? 
A. I don't know him personally. 

Q. Do you know the place? A. 1 
know where the place is. 

Q. You know who 1 mean when I 
speak of him? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Have you any reason to suppose 
that liquor is sold there? A. I don't 
know whether it is or not. 

Q. You don't know anything about 
It? A. No. 

Q. If that place is included in a list 
of places in Portland where intOXIcating­
liquor is sol<1, you would say you hayen't 
any knowledge of its being sold there? 
A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And in investigating Portland at 
the request of ex-Deputy Sheriff Plum­
mer, yOU didn't go there? A. I didn·t. 

Q. You went to the places whel'e yOU 
thought you would find liquor? A. 1 
went to the regular bar rooms: -chat 
isn't a regular bar rOOm. 

Q. That isn't a bar room at all, is 
it? A. They have a counter there; 
they serve lunches. 

Q. That is true of a good many 
places in Portland that they have a 
counter? A. Yes, sir, 

Q. You woufdn't infer that there was 
a bar room because they had a counter 
-take the Dairy Lunch, for instance? 
A. No, it isn't a regular bar room. 

Q. It isn't a bar room, regular or ir­
regular? A. I couldn't say as to that. 

Q. You have testified as to reputa­
tion-has Mitchell's place got the repu-



LEGISLATIVE RECORD-HOl;SE, APRIL 7. 16~7 

tation of being a bar room? A. I the next morning-I couldn·t see where 
couldn't say. the man got it, that morning-but the 

Q. You couldn't say what its rep uta- next mOl'ning I went into a place on the 
tion is? A. I couldn·t >lay what its other side of the yard and saw him 
reputation is. come down and get the liquor out of a 

Q. Never heard people talk about it? hide in the yard and take out a pint 
_~. No, sir. uottle and went up into the house. 

Q. Do J'ou know where the Evening Someone told him that I was there, and 
Express office is loca ted? A. Quite he came down to where I was, and I 
neal'. IlUd him come up to the office with me. 

Q. Is it in ::>Ionument square? Q. Did you have any cases where you 
A. Yes, sir. found women handling liquor at that 

Q. And how far would it be from tim" with it hid about their clothes? 
the Evening Express office over to 23 A. Y ps, sit·. 
and ~9 Free stl'eet-I mean in a straight Q. ,Von't you describe that, just in 
line? A. Oh, it would he- a urief way'? A. \Vell, there was one 

Q. Couple hundred feet? A. Yes, woman had a dress with pockets around 
two 01' three hundred feet, perhaps. the bottom-she had a number of half 

Q. Something around ]00 yards? pints in the pockets around the bottom 
A. Yes, sir. of her dress. 

Q. You speak in a general way of Q. And those cases that you ha\'e 
when there was >lome SOl·t of enforce- mentioned-wel'e they typical of a large 
ment in Portland that pocket peddling majority of the cases that came to your 
resulted. ,\'on't you des('l'ihe so that aU"ntion at that time? A. Quite a 
the convention will understand it, how large number of them. 
that pockl't peddling was aarried all, by Q. In all those Cases that people 
what kind of people, and in what kind Were selling hard liquor, not beer? A. 
of a way? A. Perhaps I might de- Yes, sir, whiskey generally. 
~crillC' n cas,' that I found one day. I Q. You never knew pocket peddlers 
went out of the office and went up on j" handle beer? A. 'Vell, I have 
l<'l'l~e street, and saw a fellow leaning have found beer on men. 
against a tree and looking up the "trect, Q. But as a general rule it wa~ 
and I saw that his pocket "Tas bulged 'Yhiskey"! ... t\.. As a general rule, yes 

sir. out, and I placed nlY hand on his pocket, 
and it felt like a hottle. I took him np 
to the office and found eight half pints 
in his pockets. Of course I never saw 
him seJl any, hut that is the way it was 
carried on, that is it was carried on by 
lliding liquor undl'l' a platfonn, and 
taking it out from there and putting 
it in their pock"ts. I watChed, one day, 
one man that went on, at 4 o'clock in 
the morning, and stayed until 4 o'clock 
in the afternoon. and I saw him >;,,11 

eight half pints. 

Q. Can you giYe some more indica­
tions of it just in tllat brief ,yay? 
A. Yes, I watched a kitchen, one morn­
ing. I stood >;0 that I could look in, and 
some one-I won·t say whether it was 
a man or woman-brought out the Iin­
uor and placed a glass on the stove-I 
think the woman was combing the little 
girl's head, and the man brought out 
the glas,; of liquor and placed it on the 
~tove and turned out a glass of liquor 
and gnve it to tllE' I11fln. ~-\fter'ward, 

Q. They didn't have any wllite 
('oats on'? A. No, sir. 

Q 'Vhat do you say as to the age 
(of these peddlers who handled the 
traffic under those circumstances­
were they middle aged men or boys? 
A. Thc~' were young men, anywh('re 
from 18 to 2;; or 30. 

Q. And that sort of thing, as you 
have described, continued down to 
the time O"'u went out of office? A. 
Yes, sir. 

Q. '''hen ,'ou were doing your very 
best to control-or rather enforce-the 
liquor traffic'? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And aside from the fact that 
~'ou sllcc('eded in actually catching 
some of these pocket peddlers, did you 
have eVidence that they were dOing 
business when you were unable to de­
tect them, just how they were dOing 
it, by finding a good many bottles 
around the streets mornings and 
arounel the squares. A. Yes, sir. 
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Q. That was quite 
it? A. Yes, sir. 

common, wasn't hluff beer was what was apparently 

Q. And noticeable? A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Where they had been thrown 

down after being emptied? A. Yes, 
sir. 

Q. Mr. Skillings, can you tell me 
how many jail sentences were im­
posed upon liquor dealers during the 
two years you were deputy sheriff, 
and by liquor sellers I mean all grades 
and kinds. A. No, sir, I couldn't tel! 
just the number. 

Q. Could approximate it? A. 
couldn't approximate it, I don't realiy 
know of more than half a dozen. 

Q. As a matter of fact do you know 
that there were only seven straight 
jail sentences given in the county 01 
Cumberland while you were deputy 
sheriff? A. I don't know, I know of 
some that were sent to jail. 

Mr. PATTANGALL: We can put 
that in from the record better, per-' 
haps. 

Direct examination resumed. 
By Mr. CLEAVES: 
Q. Bro. Pattangall asked you, Mr. 

Skillings, in regard to whether or not 
vou were able while you were a depu­
ty sheriff under Mr. Pearson and Mr. 
Dunn to close up all of these places. 
At that time were any of these run­
ning open, and did they have their 
stock displayed and fitted up, or did 
they have it in a basket where the~ 
could get at it quickly and run when 

, they heard a deputy sheriff coming? 
A. They did. 

Q. That was the way? A. It was. 
Q. And did you find any places 

with stocks of liquors behind a bal 
or barkeepers in white uniform. A. 
No, sir. 

Q. Or any battery of faucets? A 
They had faucets. 

Q. But not running in those days~ 
A. In some cases they were. 

Q. How was it in a large majority 
of the cases in those old time places 
as to whether they had beer on 
draught, in the Pearson time? A. 
There were some places that had been 
on draft. They had a hide and a two­
way faucet. could draw two kinds of 
beer out of one faucet. 

Q. The good beer was hid. and the 

drawn. 
Q. Do YOU know of any of those 

two-way faucets that have been in 
use during the past two years? A. 
No, sir. 

Q. Has there been any pocket ped­
dling about Portland, or have you 
observed any pocket peddling about 
Portland during the last two years? 
A. Not until the last few days. 

Q. Since last Monday morning? A. 
Yes, sir 

Q. Now you spoke about having 
had several talks with the sheriff-I 
meant to have asked you about that­
what did YOU say to Sheriff Moulton 
upon these several occasions in re­
gard to doing his duty? A. I don't 
remember just what I said, but the 
gist of it was that he ought to do his 
duty, not only for the good of the 
county, but for his own good. That. 
if he couldn't do his duty, he ought to 
resign. 

Q. When was it you had these 
talks with Mr. Moulton? A. I could­
n't say just when it was; I think the 
last one might have been in February. 

Q. February of this year? A. Yes, 
sir; this year. 

Q. And you had some previous to 
that time, had you? A. Yes, I had 
talked with him once or twice at any 
rate. 

Q. 
say; 

Q. 
sir. 

How far back? A. I couldn't 
perhaps a year from that time. 
A year before that? A. Yes. 

Q. Th'1t is. before he was elected 
the last time? A. Yes, it might have 
been. 

Q. And yOU thought he was not do­
in.e: his duty? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And told him so? A. Yes. sir. 
Q. That is to say, under his regim(' 

they were selling beer on draught in­
,:tead of women selling whiskey from 
thpir petticoats? That change had 
come about, had it? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And pocket peddling had disap­
peared, had it? A. Yes, to a largE 
extent; there might have been somE 
pocket peddling. 

Q. But none that you observed? 
A. No. sir. 

Q. And you didn't find any empty 
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pint bottles scattered around the 
square in the morning? A. I have 
seen some! yes. 

Q. You saw them before. So they 
attracted your notice? A. No, not 
quite so many. 

Q. You didn't find boys leaning UP 
against a tree with a bottle in their 
pocket waiting for customers, nothing 
of that kind? A. No, sir. 

Q. And this change caused you to 
gO to the sheriff and tell him he hadn't 
done his duty. Now in the meantime 
after you had this talk with him you 
had an election and he was re-elected, 
wasn't he? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Now, Brother Cleaves asked you 
if during the time you were a deputy 
sheriff they had any beer on draft, 
and you answered him that they onlv 
had that beer on draft, that is, that 
they were using this two-way faucet, 
the open faucet and they could let 
out "Gno on one turn and lag'or beer 
the other. And you say they haven't 
any of those now in Portland? A. Not 
that I know of. 

Q. You don't know anything abont 
it? A. No, sir. 

Q. Not a thing? A. No, sir. 
Q. And do you think there is any. 

particular advantage to the community 
to have this t,yo-way faucet? Is there 
an impro,'ement, or what is the sug­
gestion, that Portland would be bet­
ter off with a two-way faucet than it 
would be with a one-way faucet? A. 
The suggestion in my mind is that 
when they have the two-way f'auce·. 
the sheriff is doing his duty, and that 
is all he has to do. It is not his bus­
iness to look out for the community; 
it is his business to do his duty, 

Q. As long as the sheriff is getting 
them to use the two-,vay faucet he 
is doing his dut,', and you think Mr. 
l\loulton has succeeded in getting theYl1 
to do that'; A. That is a 'Hong im­
pression. 

Q. 'Vhat is a ,vrong impression? 
A. 'Vhen you enforce the law and do 
your duty they use the two-,,'ay fau­
cet. and the~' were enforcing the la "'. 

Q. Do you call it enforcing the 
law when you get it so that whiskey 
is sold by women? Is that enforcing; 
the law? Yes. 

Q. It is? A. Yes. 
Q. Well, it is a beautiful law tea 

enforce then. That is all. A. That 
isn't our business, about the law, our 
business is to enforce the law. 

Q. Well, let us get back to that a 
little. When you were a deputy sher­
iff under Pearson did you enforce the 
la w. A. Tried to. 

Q. Well, did you? A. I did. 
Q. And when you were enforcing 

the law they were still selling whis­
key, women selling it from their cloth­
ing on the streets of Portland, weren't 
they? A. Yes, some few. 

Q. And women selling or men sell­
ing it in kitchens where the mother 
was combing the little girl's hair when 
you looked in? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And boys selling it from their 
pockets on the street? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And then the law was being 
enforced. A. Yes, sir. 

Q. That is all. 
EMERSON H. DOUGHTY, called 

and sworn, testified as follows: 
By Mr. CLEAVES: 
Q. What is your name? A. Emer­

son H. Doughty. 
Q. And you live in Portland? A. I 

live in Portland. 
Q. And you were formerly as dep­

uty sheriff? A. I served six months 
under Sheriffs Pearson and Dunn. 

Q. And during the last three 
months, during this present year have 
you made any investigation in the city 
of Portland as to liquor selling? A. 
As I recall it now, it was the first Sat­
urday in January. 

Q. And was it day or evening? A. 
It ,yas in the evening. 

Q. 'Vill you please tell us what 
place you first visited, and where i: 
was? A. On Saturday evening I left 
my home with the intention of going 
to some of the saloons in Portland to 
get a little e"idence to give to the 
people on Sunday afternoon, at a tern· 
perance meeting. I first yisited the 
place at 236 Federal street; I found 
in there six men, one man at the bar 
had just turned a glass, a small glass 
out, and it looked to me like wine. 
and the man behind the bar-there 
were t\\'O men there, ,Yent to the cash 
register. pushed the cash register and 
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brought the man back his change, and 
laid it on the bar and he picked i.t 
up and put it in his pocket. The pro­
prietor of that bar was so drunk that 
night that he couldn't get away froLl 
the wall, and his name I think was 
Thomas. 

Q. ,Vere there any men in there, 
any of the men in there who were un·· 
del' the influence of liquor? A. There 
werc some standing at the bal'. 

Q. ,Vhere next did you go? A. 
went to No. 13 Temple street. 

Q. How many bartenders there? A. 
There were three bartenders at No. 13 
Temple street. 

Q. Did you count the number uf 
men that were there? A. I counterl 
the number of men in there, and I 
found there were 28 men in there lined 
up to the bar, most of them; 'lome 
of them were in the corner apparent­
ly under the influence of liquor, a good 
many of them; I saw glasses of ale. 
I took them to be, on the counter turn­
ed out; and from there I went to No. 
416 }<'ore street, and I found a man 
behind the counter and three men in 
front with a glass each, just turned 
out full of beer or ale, I couldn't swea!" 
'vhich. 

Q. Now, somewhat earlier in th<' 
winter at that same place what dis­
play of liquor if any had you seen? A. 
I think it was in December. 1 was do­
ing a job for a man that met me on 
the street and he took me into that 
place, and 1 saw on the bar seven bot­
tles standing on a shelf behind the 
bar, and the label on them, whiskey. 

Q. What place did you next visit 
upon that Saturday evening? A. I 
went to No. 9 Exchange street, and I 
found five men in that place, one man 
behind the bar; didn't apparenlly ap­
pear to be intoxicated, these men 
didn't. There 'were two standing at. 
the bar and 1 think they had a glass 
each, apparently drunk, and it seemed 
to be beer. 

Q. 'Yhat other places did you go to? 
A. I went to No. 342, I think it is, Fore 
street, in t,he Gaff Topsail corner run by 
Frank Sherman. 

Q. How many bar-keepers there? ;\. 
There were two bar-tenders there dressed 
in white coats. 

Q. \Yhat if anythir:g about any drink­
ing th2re did you see? A. I.3a w three 
glasse~, apparently ale, on the ('ounter, 
some men under the influence of liquor 
so that ~'ou would notice it. and most 
of the men were standing in .front of the 
bar; there were 11 men in that place I 
think. 

Q. How many? A. Eleyen men. 
Q. Did you go to the 2\!cGlinc.hey 

wace, or perhaps I ,hayen't it in my mind 
right, or have YOU mentIoned that al­
ready? A. I have mentlonen the pla ~e 
on Federal street, and also the plaec 
where Mr. Coleman run. 

Q. Now did you go to -:\0. 65 Com­
mercial street? A. N ", on tl1Clt Smur­
day night; no, sir. 

Q. Did you at any other time this 
ypar, or \vithin a year? ~-\.. I wpnt a 
"reek ago last Saturday night. 

Q. \\'hat did you obsen'e there? A. 
I found Mr. Patrick Halloran behind the 
bar, and -there were 11 men in front of 
the ,bar, som(~ standing at the bar, and 
some against the 'wall oPPo8ite the b~'lr. 

Q. '''hat if any exhibition or display 
of whiskey did you notice in that place"? 
A. 1 didn't see any whiskey in tha t 
place. I ~aw one glass and one of th):;e 
sm:111 g'Q·blets with a large top ~etting' on 
the counter about llalf full of liquid red 
l~flUid, ale or beer, one or the othe'l'. 

Q. Did you see any bottles behind the 
bar labelled or marked? A. =,,"0, I didn't 
a t that time. 

Q. Haye you during this year? A. I 
don't think so; I think that was in De­
cember. 

Q. \Yhat did you see in December with 
reference to bottles? A. As I stated be­
fore, this man got me to do the job and 
took me there, and I went in there and 
J .found it on the shelf behind the bar 
with Mr. Halloran in there himself and 
I think it was six or seyen bo'tTle. 
.marked whiskey; and while I was i~ 
there there were men that knew me, and 
a man come up to me and he says, '\~Ir. 
Halloran, giYe Mr. Doughty a hot drink " 
and I says, "I don't see any reason Wl~y 
I couldn't have it if I wanted it bv the 
looks of the array on the shelf," al;d he 
ne,'0r made any answer to tha t. 

• Q. Upon any of these pla{'es YOU haye 
mentioned, upon either of those Sa tur­
day nights was -there any evidence of 
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any ,vatchers around the place? A. ~o, 

sir. 
Q. Doors locked or in any W,1Y 

guarded? A. Doors were open; the out-
er door in most 'Of theee places were 
open and the inner doors were swing-
ingo. 

Q. During the present year have you 
lwen down to the freight office or sta­
tion '? A. Ye~. sir. 

Q. And in the early morning? A. 'Ye!l, 
I have beell there as early as perhaps 
half past st.;\"t"n in the morning. 

Q. And your duties kept you about 
there more or less during how many 
days? A. I used to go there rrequently, 
sometin1es two or three times a day and 
tJ1eJl somdimes j wouldn't get there 
more than-perhaps 1 would miss a day 
or t\VO ~ometimf'~. 

Q. ~\\,hat do you know in regard to 
liquor being hauled from freig,ht cars 
Clll(l fn·ight sheds? _-\. 1 observed in 
that station that year, perhaps not so 
much as the latter part of last year; 
.but thL.; year 1 have seen them .haul it 
frtHn t11Pl't' in ca rtloads; I 11a V8 also 
;;:(:'811 a great many barrels o.f whiskey 
marked C. E. Odiorne Company, Por~­

Inn,l, :'\iainp. 
Q. Anel marked whiskey? _~. Marked 

"'lli~l{(~y on Hle barrels, yes. \vant to 
~ay that I ha"e counted as hig,h as 108 
<[uartc'r barrels piled up in one v1ace in 
the ,Bostun & l\/[aine shed, and others be­
ing aLlded to it IWulle I ,vas standing 
there; that was beer or ale. 

(..!. 0\, a deputy sheriff for six months 
and as Sturgis ,C'ommissioner for such 
tinl€' "IS you ,,"'erE' such, ~:ou got in tOU(,~l 

there with old-time places, did you? A. 
Tes, sir. 

Q. Or you knew whC're t11ey were? ~:1,. 

Yes, sir. 
Q. ~ow during the 1JI~eSellt Yf'ar ha\'e 

you travelled around at near the hour of 
]1) o'e-lock at night upon many oceasions 
to see whether they closed up at a ce1'­
Llin hour regularly at that time? A. 
~n, I haven't been around as late as 
that. 

c.!. You haH'n't been around to observe 
,,,hether they closed up at 10 o'clock or 
not? A. 1 haven't; no, sir. 

Q. Ha \'e you noticed whether th"y f t 
any times have closed at 6 o'clock O!l 

Saturday? A. ~ot from my personal 
k:lOwlec1ge J lIa yen·t notice(] that. 

Q. ~What about the 22nd of :.\Iarch, 1 
mean, this year? A. 1 understand, but 
that is merely hearsay. 

Q. T don't mean that. 1 thought yon 
knew about it? A. I don't wan to give 
that to this cOllvention because I don', 
know that to ,be a fact. 

Q. You have given us now what per­
sona obser\'ation you Inade this year~ 

have you'? A. ~ot all of it; no, sir. 
Q. vVh;!t otber place did ~;ou \'l;;it·~ 

A. I "ellt to 2'\0. :l60 Fore street, " 
place called lV[clVlenniman's, and foun,l 
III there 1 think 11 men or nine men 
then, were in there, und as I ,vent inru 
Uw uu tel' door bet\veen the outie'r doOJ' 
and tl,e single doors that go into tl1\> 
bar I found thret' men, as I recall it, 
drunk in the vestibule going from th" 
outer aoor into the :,alool1. 

Q. How many bartenders': A. Tlwrt' 
\yere two bartE'ilders at that placE', :-3:11\1 

they had white coats on. 
Q. Any display of liquor there ex­

cept what yell saw (In the bar? A. 
didn't see only a pint on the bar. 

Q. 'Vhat was the next place Y<ll. 
went to, \~, l1&t otl,,'r place did you go 
to'! A. I went from there to the cor­
ner of Silver and Fore streets, Xo. :;·Ii1 
F"r" street, J think. 

Q. Run by "'hom, i;S }OU understood 
it, at that time? A. Mr. Coleman, T 
think was the man. I don·t just reca II 
IIU\V 11lany lnen I found in there, lHlL 
there were quite a nUlnber. I think 
there \yere seven men in there, 80m·> 
01 them \\ere quite drunk and some <If 
therl1 kne,,' me, and one man \\'anted 
me to take a drink with him and I toW 
him I w~sn't drinking at that timt'. 

Q. Did you see Mr. Coleman at th,' t 
place that night? A. I did; yes, sir. 

Q. And as you left-or, by the~ ,yay, 
did he kn"w you? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And 111 the old days 11a\'e YOll 

Yisitui his place in your oIncial ca­
~acity? A. When I '\'3S a Sturgi" 
commissioner I yisited the place "'hile> 
I ",as that. 

Q. Did Mr. Coleman follow vou ont 
and make some talk to you?' A. H (> 

foiloweu me out to the street door and 
out onto the sidewalk, and then IJp 
CBP-le alng and spoke to me and \\ ant­
ed to know if I was going to make a Jrl 

trouble with him, :md I says: "Xo, nul 
tllat I kno\\r of no,,,,." 
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Q. vViII you give us the rest of your 
personal observation? A. A week ago 
Saturday night I visited-I have already 
gh'en one of them, seven places. The 
tlrst one I visited was on vVashington 
street, a place that a man run ,by the 
name oJ Eagan, and I found in the bar 
room proper .four men. 

MR. PATTANGALL: Can you give 
the street number so that we can get 
it? A. I couldn't give you the number 
of t'hat place, no, sir. 

MR. CLEAVES: Is it William F. Ea­
gan, 68 \Vashingron avenue? Should you 
think tnat was a:bout the location? A. 
I think it was about that. There were 
ten men in ,the place altogether, and 
there were four of ,them in the regular 
bar, and in the cigar place there were 
six or eight, and at one end of the ·bar 
there was one of these go,blets poured 
out full of what I ,called ale, and on the 
other end there was a quart can, which 
I man took as I went in and went out 
with it. 'We went .from there to India 
>'treet, and I think the number on In­
oia ;,;treet was 66-it is near the corner 
of Xewbury. 

Q. Do you know the name of the 
suppused proprietor? A. No, I don't 
know; and we found six men in that 
'place, one glass of ale apparently on 
the counter half full, and one man 
standing at the bar real drunk, and the 
other man had seemingly been drink­
ing some. And we went from there 
across on to the other side at· the 
street into-,I think it was No. 43 In­
ella strtet, and I found 11 men 111 there, 
and I think tllere were four or fiv" 
glasses of ale on the bar at that time, 
and sarno of til" men were quite drunl;:, 
one was so drunk that he was stupid 
"nd iaid oyer on the counter at the 
further end of the counter; and while 
I was in there the bartender drew ,'I 

glass of some kind of liquid out of the" 
faucet and passed it up on the Imr ,tu 
some of tile men. And I \yent from 
tilPre tu ;\;0. 51 Commercial stl'E'Pt, and 
1 think t!'le man there by the name \)f 

'Yelch runs that place, and I round 1. 
mel, 111 there, and some o[ them \I'ere 
qUitl dn,nk; there was a number of 
glassl'l; partly full of liquid, and one 
of the men in there I,new me. and he 
says: "Come over here, Donghty, and 
han' a drink," and I says: "1 am nOl 

drinking," and walked out. And I 
think I have giyen you about the other 
one, the one at 65 Commercial street; 
and we went from there to the corner 
of Guion and Fore streets, and that 
place is run by a man by the name of 
Taylor I Lhink, and we didn't find very 
much evidence there of anything going 
on that was very wrong; there were 
two young men in there and one man 
'went 111 ahead of us, beside the pro­
prietor and bartender. There was n,) 
liquors in sight and all there was was 
one glass setting on the bar apparent­
!y just emptied and a few dregs in the 
bottom of it, and that was all. I thin[< 
that incJude~ a list of the places that 
I was into that night. 

Q. During this present year have 
you been into thc saloon of Thomas A. 
Brownrig? A. I haven't; no, sir. 

Q. Have occasion to go by it from 
time to time? A. I g,) by it to the Bos­
tun boat and the Xew York boat. 

Q. Do you know Mr. Brownrig? A. 
I have met the gentleman but am not 
versonally acquainted with Ilim. 

Q. You know him by sight? A. I 
C~01l't know whether I know him now or 
not. I han'n't met him for a couple of 
:lears. 

Q. D0 you know Patrick A. Sulli­
"an? A. Yes, I know him. 

Q. Are you familiar with his place 
on Commercial street? A. Quite fa­
miliar. 

Q. Or during the last two years and 
three munths has Patrick A. Sulliyun 
heen in business at that same place on 
Commercial street? A. I have seen hin, 
there during the past two years a good 
many times at that place. 

l~. And is Patrick A. Sullivan en­
gs gld in business in any way except 
:J.t that place'? A. I don't know of any 
oth(·\' business. 

Q. That if; all. 
011 motion by Mr. Smith of Presqne 

Isle, a recess "'as tal,en until t\H1-
thirty o'c1ock in the afternoon. 

After Recess. 

Convention callE·d to order by the 
President. 

Tile PHESIDEXT: The secretary .)f 
the convention will call the roll of the 
ron venti on. 

PRESEN"T:-Sen. Allan of Washington 
Sen. Allen of Kennebec, Allen of Ma: 
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chias. Au~tin, ~en. Bailey, Bass, Benn. 
Benton. Boman. Bowler, Sen. Boynton. 
Bragdon of Sullh'an, Bragdon of York. 
Brennan, Bucklin, Sen. Burleigh, Butler. 
Sen. Chase, Chick, Churchill, Clark or 
Portland, Clark of New Portland, Coch­
ran, Sen. Colby, Connors, Cook, Crowell, 
Currier. Cyr, Descoteaux, Doherty, 
Dresser, Dunbar, Dunton, Durgin, Sen. 
Dutton, Eastman, Eaton, Eldridge, El­
liott, Emerson, Farrar, Sen. Flaherty, 
Franck, Gallagher, Goodwin, Gordon, 
Greenleaf of Auburn, Greenleaf of Otis­
field, Sen. Hagerthy, Hancock, Harmon. 
Harper, Harriman, Haskell, Sen. Hast­
ings, Sen. Hersey, Higgins, Hogan, 
Hutchins, Irving, Jenkins, St. Jillson, 
Johnson, Jones, Kehoe, Kelleher of Port­
land, Kimball, Lawry, Leary, Libby, 
Sen. Mansfield, Marston, Mason, Mathie­
son, Sen. Maxwell of Sagadahoc, Mc­
Bride, McFadden, Merrill, Metcalf, Mil­
don, Sen. Milliken, Mitchell of Newport, 
Mooers, Sen. Morey, Morgan, Morrison, 
Morse, Sen. Murphy, Newbert, Xute, 
Packard of Newburg, PeaCOCk, Peaks, 
Pendleton, Peters, Peterson, Pitcher. 
Price, Putnam, Quinn, Sen. Reynolds of 
Kennebec, Reynolds of Lewiston, Sen. 
Richardson of Penobscot, Richardson of 
Canton, Ricker, Roberts, Robinson. San­
born Sanderson. Scates, Skelton, Skillin. 
Sen. 'Smith of Penobscot, Smith of Au­
burn. Smith of Patten, Smith of Pitt"­
field, Smith of Presque Isle, Snow. 
Sprague. Sen. Stearns, Stevens, Stuart. 
Sturgis. Swift. Taylor. 'J'hombs. Tobey. 
Tryon, Twombly, 'Cmphrey, Violette, Sen. 
'Valker. Washburn, Waterhouse, Wheel­
er. Winchenbaugh. Sen. Wing, 'Vise. 

ABSENT:-Bither, Boland, Brown. 
Chadbourne, Sen. Clark of York, Sen. 
Cole, Sen. Conant, Davis, Donovan, Sen. 
Emery, Estes, Farnham, Folsom, Ga­
mache Gardner, Haines, Hodsdon, J en­
nings,' Kelleher of Watervi!le, Leader. 
LeBel Leveille, Maxwell of Boothbay 
Harbor Maybury, Mitchell of Kittery, 
Mornea'u. Sen. Moulton, O'Connell, Sen. 
Packard of Knox, Sen. Patten of Han­
cock, Plummer, Ramsay, Rolfe. ~ous­
Beau, Sargent, Shennan, Spencer, ~tan­
ley, Stetson, Swett, Thompson, Trimble, 
Yeaton. 

The PRESIDENT: The call of the 
roll disclosed the presence of 141 mem­
bers of the con\·ention. 

The Chair desires to state that in re­
sponse to suggestions from several 
members we will have a short recess, 
about 4 o'clock, in order that the mem­
bers may be conyened. And members 
are requested at the close of the recess 
to come back promptly. 

:\Ir. PATTANGALL: ::\11'. President, 
with the permi"sion of counsel for the 
prosecution, Bro. Gulliver would like to 
suspend Mr. Doherty's examination to 
put in some matters of record through 
Mr. Gately, so that he can take the train 
to Portland. 

:Mr. THOMAS H. GATELY; recalled 
for further cross-examination. 

By Mr. G'CLLIYER. 
Q. Mr. Gately, have you at the re­

quest of the defence made an examina­
tion of the criminal court docket show­
ing the collection of fin(ls in liquor cases 
since the commencement of Sheriff 
Moulton's term of office? A I haye. 

Q. Will you kindly read it to the 
convention. A. At the January term, 
1911, there were collected $7103.4~. At 
the May term, 1911, there were collect­
ed $5600.73. At the September term, 
1911, there were collected $8518.84. At 
the January term, 1912, there were col­
lected $3,804.88. At the May term, 191~, 
there were collected $3,049.07. The fines 
for the September term are already in 
record. I gave them here, Saturd;y. 

Q. Those are already in and yoU 
have not the record of those terms with 
you? A. No, for the September term, 
last year, Or the JanualT term of this 
year. 

::\11'. GCLLIVER: Now, :\Ir. President, 
so that the purpose of the next inquiry 
may appear clear, it was stated by coun­
sel for prosecution in his opening that 
certain Italian places were raided, and 
that these Italian places were next door 
to well-known bar rooms, and it was 
argued from that that the purpose of 
the raids was protection for the bar 
rooms. The purpose of the present of­
fer is to show that owing to the num­
ber of crimes of violence committed by 
Italians that raids Were instituted b;' 
the sheriff at the request of the judge of 
the superior court, alld this result shows 
a comparison between the enforcement 
of the law against these special Italian 
places and the increase or decrease of 
crime by those of Italian names. 

Q. Have you, Mr. Gately, at the re­
quest of the respondent. prepared a list 
of crimes committed by persons holding 
Italian names? A. I have, beginning 
with the year 1909. 

Q. And without taking the time of 
the convention, will YOU rpad from that 
list, term by term, commencing with 
the year and the term and the number 
of such cases at each term? A. I will 
say that these are general crimes, or in 
other words, cases wherein Italian re­
spondents were brought in for violation 
of other laws than the so-called liquor 
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law. Beginning with the January term, records already has the amount of busi-
1909, at that term there were five cases. ness. 
At the May term, 1909, there was one 
case. At the September term, 1909, two 
cases. At the January term, 1910, theFe 
were two cases. At the May term, 
1910, there were two cases. At the 
Heptember term, 1910, there were two 
cases. At the January term, 1911, there 
were two cases. At the May term, 1911, 
there were three cases. At the Sep­
te1nber term, 1911, there ,,'ere six cases, 
A t the January term, 1912, there were 
two cases. At the May term, 1912, there 
,vere two cases. At the September 
term, 1912, there were four cases. At 
the January terms, 1913, there were 
none. 

Q. Now if you have it in your pos­
~esRion, will you also read to the con­
vention the list of seizures and indict­
ment~ found against persons holding 
Italian names? A. I begin with the 
year, 1912. At the January term of 
that year, there were no Italian~ there 
brought in for violation of the liquor 
laws. At the May term, 1912, there 
'Vel'e 20 respondents, 15 upon appeals 
<lnd five upon indictments. 

Q. Can you give t1H~ names of the 
persons so that we can tell whether 
lTIen or \yomen? A. I shaH haye to 
read from the docket. 

Q. Read that first. A. At the Sep­
tember term, 1912, there were four 
cases upon appeal, and at the January 
ternl, 19] 3, there \vere 16 cases upon 
appeal, and two upon indictments. 

A. Now commencing with the May 
term, 1911, have you prepared a resume 
or abstract of the number of appeals 
and nuisance cases in the superior court 
relating to violations of the liquor law'? 
A. I have. 

Q. Xow, Mr. Gately, as I :.mder­
st.and it, the list of appea.led cases ill 
t.lle superior court of course do€s not 
include such fines and search and 
seizures and other cases as are paid 
in the inferior courts? You haVe no 
record of them'? A. I have no i'econl 
of any fines that are paid in the mu­
nicipal court. Of course we get noth­
ing but appealed cases and indict­
ments from the grand jury. 

Q. And your record shows nothing 
as to libels against persons unknown? 
A. Xo, sir. 

Q. You testified at the hearing-, 
Saturday, that it was YOUI' impres­
sion that most of the witnesses be­
fore the grand jury in liquor cases 
since the commencement of Sheriff 
Moulton's term were from the liquor 
deputies. 'Vill you state whether you 
have made an examination and what 
the examination disclosed? A. I so 
did testify and wish to correct it, aft­
er having examined the record sinr:c 
Saturday. I wish to correct it in this 
respect: That at the May term, 1911, 
there were five appealed cases that 
,,,ere brought in by officers other than 
the liquor deputies. At the Septem­
ber term of that year, there were 1 ~ 
appealed cases brought in as I hav'! 
stated. 

Q. All the others \ye1'e brought in 
by the deputies of Sheriff cvloulton ns 
I understand it '? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Just one further question, 
whether or not this list, we \vil! enll 
it Italians without any offense in ref­
erence to the Italians as a race, in­
cludes crimes such as assault, intent, 
to kill and manslaughter, and other 

of a violent nature '? .-\.. The~' Q. Please read it. A. At the May crimes 
term, 1911, there were 86 appealed cases do. 
and 16 indictments, making a total of Q. The total of these crimes of vi-
102 cases. At the September term, 1911, olence up to January, 1913, and at 
there were 65 appeal sand 27 indict­
ment", making a total of 92 ca~es. At 
the January term, 1912, there were 38 
appeals and 15 indictments, making a 
total of 53 cases. At the May term, 
1912, there were 63 appeals and 21 in­
dictments, making a total of 84 cases. 
For the September term of last year 
and thl' January term of this y(>ar the 

which there were none, amounts t J 

33? A. Thirty-three is right. 
:Mr. GULLIVER: This list may be 

used by either side. 

By the ATTORNEY GEXERAL. 
Q. Have you the lists here of the 

January and May terms that ~'o'l 
1)rought with you, today-I mean the 
September and January terms? A. 
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haye nothing but the judge's docket. 
Q. You ha\'e that with you? A. 

ha\'e these dockets here since 1909. 
Q. Perhaps yoU can state from rec­

ollection whether or not at the Janu­
ary term there \yere ;;ix or eight ap­
pealed cases from the \Vestbrook 
court·? A. I do not think there was 
an appealed case from vVestbrook. 

Q. And ,,-hether or not there were 
indictment:; of parties liYing in 'iVest­
brook some six or eight cases? A. 
There were, 

Q. And were the witnesses in those 
cases Sheriff Moulton's deputies? A. 
Deput~· Sheriff Leighton, I think is h;s 
name, was in those cases. 

Q. And whether or not most of the 
\yitnesses were citizens or outside 
parties in vVestbrook? A. I think so. 

Re-Cross Examinatjon. 
By Mr. GCLLIVER. 
Q. You say it was Deputy Sheriff 

Leighton'? A. He is one of Mr. Moul­
ton's deputies. 

Q. It quite frequently happens, 
does it not, that other citizens, busi­
ness men, testify in liquor cases? A. 
Yes, sir. vVe were referring to prose­
cutions that were initiated by a cer­
tain class of officers. 

E:.vIERSOK DOUGH'l'Y, recalled. 
Cross- Examination. 

By Mr. PATTAXGALL. 
Q. Mr. Doughty, yOU served as a 

deputy sheriff in Cumberland county 
at one time',' A. I served six months, 
190~. 

Q. Lnder both lVIr. Pearson and ::\11'. 
Dunn'? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And later served as a Sturgis 
deputy'? A. 1 did. 

Q. During what period of time 
were you employed in Cumbel'lan,l 
county as a Sturgis deputy? A. I 
came in, in March and went to Brew­
er in June, I think it was, came bacl~ 
to Portland in August. 

Q. What year? A. 1910. 
Q. In March 1910, you were a Stur­

gis deputy detailed in Cumberland 
county until June? A. Yes, sir, un­
til June. 

Q. And .then went to Brewer? A. 
Went to Brewer, l\Iaine. 

Q. And returned to Portland at 

\,-hat time'? A. In August. don't 
remember the date in August. 

Q. And how long did you serve 'lS 

Sturgis deputy in Cumberland count~' 
after August? A. Up to last of DC'­
cember. 

Q. Xow \"ho was sheriff in Cumber­
land county? A. 1\1r. Trefethen wa' 
sheriff at that time. 

Q. Before ::VII', Moulton came into of­
fice? A. Before Mr. Moulton came into 
office. 

Q. The first investigation you made of 
conditions in Portland during Mr. Moul, 
ton's term of office, the investigation 
which you first testified to occurred on 
January 4th, last? A. I think it was 
January 4th last, yes, sir. 

Q, An on that evening you visited sev­
eral places? A. Yisited six places. 

Q. For the purpose of preparing some 
remarks that you had to make at a pub­
lic meeting? A. Yes, sir, 

Q. At that time was the grand jury in 
session in your county? A. I think the 
grand jury went in session on Tuesday. 
I think this was on Saturday. 

Q. And your public r"marks weI'" 
made on Sunday? A. Made on Sunday 
afternoon. 

Q. The grand jury went in 
Tuesday? A. I think it was 
they went in session. 

seSSion 
Tuesday 

Q. Did you take any of tile evidence 
which you discovered on that Saturday 
evening before the grand jury? A. No, 
sir, I did not. 

Q. Did you call the attention of the 
sheriff or county attorney to what Y011 

had discovered? A. I didn't call any­
one's attention to it any more than 1 
spoke of it in the public meeting as re­
corded in the newspaper. 

Q. Was your entire speech recorded in 
the newspaper? A. I think the whole­
entire speech was. 

Q. 'What newspaper? A. I think it 
was in the Press for one of them; I thlnl{ 
the Argus had an Item. 

Q. Yes, but not your speech, no paper 
had your speech? A. Didn't have the 
whole of it. 

Q. Well, did it have any large part of 
it? A. I thinlr they had in the Press tl1f' 
largest part, what they thought was 
proper to put in the newspaper, perhaps, 

Q. Now was the sheriff present at 
that meeting? A. I didn't see him there. 
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Q. Well, was it a very large meet- Q. 'Yhy do you say "fairly'?" \\"asn·t 
ing? A. I preSU111e there 'vas a hundred 
and twenty perhaps in the meeting. 

it a large quantity? A. ::\"0, it wasn't 
with present conditions, as it l1as been 
running for the last two years. Q. You would probably have recogniz­

ed him if he had been there, wouldn't Q. Xow, Mr. Doughty, when you were 
there as a Sturgis deputy, you made no 

present"! seizures at the freight depot, did you? A. 
you? A. I certainly should. 

Q. 'Vas the county attorney 
A. I didn't see him. 

Q. And you know 11im well, of course' 
A. Yes. sir. 

Q. Previous to January 4th, when you 
visited places for the purposes yOU have 
stated, you had during the year before 
been about Portland, and visited som'e 
of the same places, had you? A. 1': ot 
the year before, no, sir. 

Q. During the year before? A. 1':0. 
Q. You hadn't? A. Yes, I did, too. In 

December I was in a few places. 
Q. During December? A. December. 
Q. And your evidence given here in 

regard to the places you visited Is con­
fined to December and January 4th? A. 
And March, two weeks ago. 

Q. And you did not bring any of the 
information which you discovered in Ve­
cem bel' to any officer or to tile grand 
jury? A. No, sir. 

Q. Do you reside in Portland'l A. 1 
live in Portland, yes, sir. 

Q. \Vhat Is your business? A. I am 
a furniture and piano mover for the last 
26 years, except about two years inter­
vening with other business. 

Q. You spoke of Ilaving seen a good 
deal of whiskey hauled from the freigut 
office during the past two years? A. 
Yes, sir. 

Q. Now during tile years wilen you 
'~rere an officer, '''hen you were In Port­
land as a Sturgis deputy, what did you 
observe, if anything, in regard to the 
hauling of whiskey from the freight of­
fice? A. There was some hauled from 
the freight shed at that season that I 
was in as deputy. 

Q. And also beer? A. Beer, yes, sir. 
Q. Is that true of tile express com­

pany? A. That was express company's 
goods as I understand it. 

Q. vVell, the express teams were hand­
ling beer and whiskey, aside from the 
freight, the truckmen's teams? A. They 
handled practically all the beer and wl1is­
key that came into the depot at that 
time-the express companies handled. 

Q. That was a large quantity? A. 
Fairly large quantity. 

I did not. 
Q. Or at the Express Company? A. 

No. 
Q. SO there was nothing in your Iwork, 

01' the work of your co-laborers in the 
vineyard that kept the freight depot or 
express office in any better shape tl1a'l 
now? 

THE '\'ITNESS: ,yith the permission 
(}f the Chair I woulLl like to make a 
stat8m0nt. The statome'lt will answer 
(.he question. 

:\1R. PATTANGALL: "lYe will have 
(he question read, and if you can't an­
swer it say so; if you can, answer it. 

(Question read.) 
THE ·WITNESS:·"·as that your ques-

"Linn? 
::\IR. PATTANGALL: The lady just 

read it to you. 
A. 1 didn't understand it before. I 

wHnt to say that the conditions under 
the SturgiS Deputies in the city of Port­
land ,'verc a great deal better than they 
are under Sheriff l\1oulton. 

Q. And you think that answers this 
question? A. I think it. answerS the 
(luestion as I understand it. 

Q. Let ,me ask it again. assuming that 
you understand plain language, and see 
if we understand each other. 

Q. \Vas there anyt,hing in your work 
tllat affected the delivery of liquors by 
freight into the city of Portland? A. 
There was nothing in my work hindered 
it coming into the depot, but there was 
something in my work that hindered it 
being delivered from the depot. 

Q. Did you make any seizures, or did 
your associates, of liquor prior to its 
.;lell\·ery to the consigneeY A. Not out 
of the shed. 

Q. Did you make any from teams? A. 
I dia. 

Q. Did you make any trom express 
teams? A. Yes. 

Q. And from Express Companies' of­
fices? A. None in the Express Com­
panies' offi .. ees. 

Q. But in the teams, in the delivery 
teams? A. I took the Teams, a number 
0:::' them. 
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",. That part of the ,work you did 
something in, but nonc ,from the freight 
depot? A. No. 

Q. In your opinion there was very 
much less liquor delivered in Portland 
depot than no\v? A. Yes, a gre·at deal. 

Q. ~ow at that time did we have the 
United >:>catcs law which compelled 
packages 'containing liquor to be plainly 
marked what they contained, and with 
the consignee's name? A. ....-\t our first 
appearance in Portland, t,here was noth­
ing of that kind. 

Q. "\"as there at your last appearance"? 
A. Last appearance there was a law 
passed in the United States Body, I 
think, that compelled every man to have 
his package marked to him dired. 

Q. Xow when did you come under the 
rulings of that law? A. I don't just 
remember, sometime perhaps in Septem­
,ber, I don't just reoollect the date. 

Q. September, 1911? A. 1910. 
Q. So that prior to September, 1910" 

you could not tell just what all the 
boxes anet barrels contained that came 
in to the Port, and depot for de Ih'ery to 
various people in town, could you, as 
reauily as you could afterwards? A. 
No, not exactly so. 

Q. lYell, could you tell pretty well? 
A. I could myself tell pretty well, what 
was in the packages when I saw it. 

Q. And whenever a package contained 
whatever you believed to lJe liquor, did 
you seize it when it was on the teClm 
on the way to the conSignee? A. ""he" 

stand? A. I want them to understand 
that there was less liquor delivered in 
the city of Portland, in 1910, than 1911 
and since. 

Q. How much was there delivered, in 
1910? A. I couldn't tell you because 
I haven't the records. 

Q. Can't yOU estimate it? A. Xo, I 
don't know aH I can. 

Q. Can't rou estimate it within 10,-
000 gallons? A. No. 

Q. Now, how much was there deli\'­
ered there, in 1911? A. lYell, you 
might put 20 times 10,000 galolns and 
YOll might come somewhere near it. 

Q. Do you say 20 times 10,000? 
A. r did say it. 

Q. Of course I heard \"hat you said. 
Do you say to the convention that in 
your opinion there \"as 20 times 10,000 
gallons delivered, tn 1911? A. That is 
what I said. 

Q. Can you make it mare definite? 
A. I can't make it more definite than 
that. Q. You would estimate it at 
about 200,000 gallons? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Let us see how much you I<now 
about it? How many times did you 
go to the freight depot? A. Anywheres 
fl'om one to fOllr times a day-not eyery 
day. 

Q. And you kept some check on it, 
did you? A. Any more than what I 
saw at the depot. 

Q. Did you take any account, any 
memoranda of the barrels? A. Once in 
a while I would count a pile that stood 

I coulrt get near enough to 
,ca teh it 1 would seize it. 

the team to . in the floor. 

Q. How many men had you helping 
you? A. There were four, I think, at 
the last part of it. 

Q. And the four all followed that 
same proces.q did they? A. I presume 
so, although they didn't go ,,·itll me all 
the time. 

Q. But yOU worked on the same ba­
sis? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. So that as a matter of fact you 
would have the convention understand 
tllat during the time that you were 
there as a Sturgis deputy there was yery 
little liquor delivered into Portland, 
either by freight or express, but what 
you seized from the teams, is that cor­
rect? A. I don't wish to have the con­
yention understand any such thing. 

Q. 'Vhat do you ,,'ant them to under-

Q. And then you would go along a 
few clays and not count. A. Yes. But 
I could see the stuff there just the 
same if I did count it. 

Q. Certainly. To the best of ~'our 

jlHlgment, in 1911, there would be ~OO,-

000 gallons of whiskey? A. Xot all 
,,·hiskey. 

Q. lYell, liquor? A. Liquors of ya­
J'ious kinds. 

Q. Including beer? A. Beer, ale, 
,,'hiskey, gin. 

Q. Now, what is your estimate for 
1912? A. I shouldn't say it "'as any 
less than it was in 1911. 

Q. Approximately 200,000 gallons? 
A. Somewheres in the neighborhood of 
tha t, yes, sir. 

Q. Now, in 1910, it was part of your 
business to watch the delivery of liq-
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WH', and how much do yOU estimate was A. I will answer it. If you will give 
deli\'ered in Portland, then, when you it to me correctly, I will answer it. 
were not moving furniture, but attend- Q. You are doing first rate. Now 
ing right to it? A. Attending right to you visited on January 4th, 236 Fed-
business? eral street? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Yes, what is your estimate of Q. Hall you been there before? A. 
that? A. Oh, I couldn't COme very Not since 1910. 
11c>ar that I shouldn't suppose, because Q. When you were a deputy? A. 
I ,,-asn't there at the depot so often, 'Vhen I was a deputy. 
]JE-l'haps, as I was before. Q. And you had been there as a 

Q. Not when you were a Sturgis dep- deput~'? A. I have been, yes. 
II t ,-? A. Quite often I would go there Q. 'Vhose place is that? A. It is 
in the morning early, sometimes in the cOlllmonly calIed McGlinch's. 
€,·cning. Q. And is that one of .the places 

Q. Now when yon were there as a such as Bro. Cleaves has referred to 
"turgis deputy, watching liquor, what a8 old timer places? A. That has 
is your estimate of the amount deliv· been running a good long while, I 
ered in the city of Portland, during that don't know how long, but a good 
period? A. I might say, perhaps, a while. 
quarter of the amount I have named, Q. Running back in the days when 
already. you were a deputy? A. It was open 

Q. You would feel safe in that? J.t the time. 
A. I ffiink so. Q. And down through since then? 

Q. That you saw? A. I think that A. As far as I know. 
"'ould cover it easy enough. Q. WelI, you knew about it while 

Q. That is, that you saw? A. That ~'ou were an officer, of course? A. 
I saw. Yes. 

Q. And you were employed as a Q. Ann it was running when you 
Sturgis deputy in Portland about half were an officer? A. Yes, sir. 
of that year? A. I came in March, 
left in June, went back in August and 
was there till the last of December. 

Q. That is about half of the year? 
A. Yes. 

Q. SO you saw about a quarter as 
much as you estimated last year dur­
ing half of the year, and you say that 
YOU were not there alJ the time? A. 
Not to the depot all the time. 

Q. Well, were you there half the 
time? A. No. 

Q. Well, if you were in Portland 
six months of the year and only 
watching these shipments half of the 
time and you saw only a quarter as 
mnch coming in as come in last year, 
wouldn't you estimate that the trade 
hadn't changed much? That brings 
"ou about the same results, doesn't 
it? A. I ask the privilege to make 
a statement, I would like to have per­
mission. 

Mr. PATTANGALL; You are on 
the stand. 

The WITNESS; I could make it 
clear, if you please, to the Convention, 
what I mean. 

Q. If you will answer my question-

Q. And when you were a Sturgi~ 
deputy? A. The doors were open. 

Q. And also when you were a Stur­
gis deputy? A. Yes. 

Q. And did the proprietor have any 
other business so far as you know 
'excepting running that place when 
you werE' a Sturgis deputy? A. I 
don't know that he had any other 
business. 

Q And when Mr. Pearson was 
she;iff, and Mr. Dunn was Rheriff, did 
he apparently have any other busi­
nE'SS than running that place? A. I 
don't know that he did. 

Q. And so far as your recollection 
goes McGlinch's place and 236 Federal 
plac~s has been open for 12 years? A. 
BE'en open as far as my knowledge 
goOE'S along that line. 
- Q. Do you work on that street? A. 
The place where I used to work was 
on that street. 

Q. You are fairly familiar with the 
conditions there? A. Yes. 

Q. And Mr. Doughty, is there any­
thing in front, a cigar store or any-
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thin,,'. ,," i'3 it plain bar room'! A. 
.Just " plain bar room. 

Q, ~\" :cuu come in from the street, 
whet t do you find lirst? A. Thel'e is 
a Yl'srihule. tVi-O doors, you might say, 
the outside door and the inner door, 
s"'ingin2' doors, I thin]" and then yOu 
C1lll1f' to the bar room proper. 

1910, you ,Yent in as an officer? A. Yes. 
Q. And did you not haye reason to 

suppose that they had receiYed notice 
of your con1ing? A. Possibly they Inigllt 
have. 

Q. 'l'hat is to say, when you started 
to go there you expected to lind liquor 
or you wouldn't haye gone? A. I ex, 

Q. :\'0 restaurant, or cigar stor'! or pected to find it if there was any tllE'l·e. 
annhing A. No, Q. And when you got there from some 

Q. c\nd that place in that way .. witll cause or other the place had been cleanec1 
ju;-;t the n::-:tibule hetween the street and out? A. It ,"as swept and garnisl1ed. 
the bar, lm, existed for the past 12 years Q. Now when you went in tIle oUler 
has it'? ~\. Ye~, ~ir. It has been on night you ¥lent in as a private citizen'! 
the street a good deal longer than that. A. I did. 

Q. Alltl eYell back of that, yearB De­
fore? ..:-\. ~\s far as I kno·\\". 

Q. _,,-, an officer under the Sturgis dep­
uties while :\Ir. 'l'refethen was sheritt, 
did you succeed in closing ::VlcGlinch's 
place? A. :'\0. 

Q. It ,,'as open, was it? A. Yes. 
Q. ~"-nd the bar was there"! A. The 

bar wa3 there. 
Q. And the mirrors? A. Yes. 
Q. And the glasse!'l? A. I coulcln't 

say as to the g·lasses. 
Q. \"ell you were in, wer",n't you'! A. 

Yes, but I don't remember whether we 
ga thered up any glasses there or not. 

Q. 'Vell, you could see them there 
when you went in, couldn't you? I will 
put it generally-there was all the para~ 
phernaila of a bar? A. Presumedly so, 
as far as I know. The bar was there, 
and the mirror behind the bar, and tlw 

man in charge. 
Q. Haye a white coat on? A. Xo: no 

·white coats on. 
Q. When you went in there on .Jan­

uary 4th waE the bartender dressed in a 
white coat, A. There were two. They 
were not either of them dressed In white 
coats. 

Q. ""ell, now, Is that place any dltter­
ent now from what it was in prior years, 
when you went in on January 4th; ~". 

The condition between January 4th and 
1910? 

Q. Yes. A. The difference was when 
we went in in 1910 there was no one In 
there but one man, nothing in sight, 
nothing upstairs except a few bottles of 
ginger ale. When I went in on January 
4th last I found men in there intoxicated 
and glasses of liquor on the counter and 
two men behind the bar. 

Q. Now when you went in in January. 

Q. And your approach was unherald­
ed? ,\. Cnlmown to them until I ap­
peared. 

Q . ..:\!\d T suppo!-\e it is eommun in your 
experience, is it not, that when an offi~ 

eer gcts a searen warrant .for a place 
and ;-;tarts out to ;-;earch it that by SOlne 

meri ns or n1 hf'r the proprietor frequently 
hears of it and cleans 'out his stuff? A. 
That has been the case in a good many 
C<-lses in my experience. 

Q. o() th,lt one ordinarilY would ex~ 

ped Ii, fllld not quite the same situa­
tion. going as an officer 'as ,he would as 
a pri\·.:lte ,citize'll-lw'oul'll1't that be true? 
A. I f he ,has been an officer, that would 
be the result. 

Q, He would realize that from his ex~ 
pel'iencC"? ~\. 'There would be a clean­
ing up, if he ,"yere an officer and 'meant 
bll~in('~~, from the time he was appoint­
ed and got his warrants out, there ,,"ould 
be a c]('aning up, nothing to find in t,hat 
place. 

Q, And that being so it is more or 
less a. waste of time for an officer to get 
out warrants against places that are 
well posted, isn't it? A. Place;; that 
are well guarded ,by men-that is the an­
swer I believe you want, isn't it? 

Q. Yes. I think so. Now take this l\'Ic­
Glinch place, did you search it more 
than once as a Sturgis Deputy? A. I 
think we were there on~e m that pla,ce, 
if J remember right. 

Q. But you Had reason to suspect that 
it ,,'·as a Ibar room during all the time, 
,hadn't ,'ou? A. The bar was ther~, and 
the ,building was there. 

Q. And McG-linch was there? A. But 
there was no signs of liquor in there or 
around about it. 

Q. That was the time you went? A. 
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The time went and as far as I ob­
served, and on outside information that 
1 got there from people on the outside. 

Q. SO you think that place was really 
ou t of business for several months? A. 
T think it was. 

Q. 'Vith nothing to sell in there but 
ginger ale? A.. Ginger ale, and perhaps 
a little hop beer; I think he had a bar­
rel of hop beer. 

Q. XOW how about 13 'Temple Place? 
'Who runs that place? A. I think his 
name is Lowry, if I remember correctly. 

Q. Is that one of the old places or a 
new one? A. I am not prepared to say 
how old it is; it was in 1910 anyway. 

Q. 'Vas it closed in 1910? A. I think 

the doors were open. 
Q. And the same proprietor there? A. 

I (lidn't see ,him there at any time I 
know of. 

Q. 'Veil, do you know whether the 
same man was then doing business there 
that is nOIW! A. I think it was always 
called his place. 

Q. Lowrey's place? A. Yes. 
Q. And did he have any other :business 

in 1910 as far as you know, ex,cept run­
ning the saloon? A. As far as I know, 
he didn't have, no. 

Q. Now IS that a restaurant or a cigar 
store there? A. There were some tables 
in there, I Ibelieve, on one side. 

Q. Do you know anything about the 
restaurant ullsiness, whether there Is a 
substantial restaurant business does 
there are not? A. I will say in 1910, 
there were no signs 'Of grub in there of 
any kind to my '(nowledge. 

Q. In 1910, so ,far as the place is con­
cerned, it was just a plain bar room? 
A. Just a plain bar room. 

Q. Xow it has got at least a semblance 
of a restaurant? A. I won't say-the 
ta bles were there in 1910, the tables were 
in the same ,building, the same room, but 
no sign of food. 

Q. -"10 sign of food? A. No sign of 
food. 

Q. Now they have foo,d about there, 
do they? A. That I don't know. 

Q. 'Yell, what difference do you see 
in regard to the restaurant part of it, is 
there any? A. I didn't go in far enough 
to fin{l out. I didn't go ba'ck into the 
inner room 'Where ihesto\'e was at the 
time I was there before. 

Q. Is the restaurant in the rear or 

the front? A. Tables are in the front 
room, a large room. jj 

Q. Now, on January 4th, you went 
from the front rooms where the tables 
are to the rear room where the bar is, 
didn't you? A. There is no rear room 
excepting the little place boarded off in 
the rear of the big room. As yoU go in 
the outside door you come practically 
into the bar room itself, where you \yill 
find the tables on the left as you go in, 
and the bar is on the right. 

Q. Now do you know if that place 
\Vas running vlhen you were a deputy 
there? A. There ,vas no place l'unning 
when I was a deputy under Pearson and 
Dunn, excepting two on Federal street, 
and the place across the street was run 
by :\Iurphy. 

Q. ,Yhat business ,vas going on at 
13 Temple street at that time, do yoU 
know? A. I don't know. 

Q. Now you went to 41,; Fore street, 
next? A. Yes. 

Q. ,Vhose place is that? A. Ingra­
ham was there the night I \yas there. 

Q. And do you know how long that 
place has been running? A. -"10, I 
don't. 

Q. 'Vas it running, in 1910? A. The 
building was there but the doors were 
closed and we went in there once, I be­
lieve, and searched the building from 
the top to the bottom, into the sub-cel­
lar, but couldn't find anything. 

Q. And do you mean by that that 
the store part wasn't opened again dur­
ing that time? A. Not that I know of, 
I don't know that it was. 

Q. Now when you \yent to Portland 
first as a Sturgis deputy, in March, 1910, 
there \yere, I assume, a certain number 
of places where liquor was being sold, 
weren't there-you found some places? 
A. lYe found some plae-es, yes. 

Q. Now how many places of that 
kind did you succeed in closing, during 
that year? A. I don't know that we 
succeeded in closing either 'One of the 
places up, that is, shutting the doors; 
I don't know that we done that. 

Q. That is to say, the places were 
kept open, and the paraphernalia of the 
bar was left in them and the proprietor 
apparently had no 'other business-is 
that correct? A. The bar was there, 
and the liquor glasses behind the bar, 
but so far as anything in the bar, there 
was nothing there. 
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)~. B\,[ the proprietors '''(>re all there, A. Tllat is a peculiar question to an­
,,'e1'ell·t they? A. I couldn't tell you. s,yer. In answering that I might make­

Q, And the clerks? A. They had a a statement. 
l'lprk in some of them. Q. Is there anything about that 

Q. And the doors were kept open question that you can't answer? It 
for custom? A. In some cases the there is, let me ask it again, that is 
<lOOl'S were oppn and the men stayed on the better ,,·ay. A. I understood the 
tlle sidewalk and went in when they saw (juestion correctly. 
anybody go in. Q. ,Von't you anS'Yer it? A. In 01'-

Q. Did you succeed in closing the del' to answer it correctly I would 
doors of any of them, in 1912, or were haye to make a statement. 
the doors of all of them kept open and Mr. PATTAXGALL: There are 
some sort of trade kept up? A. So far counsel here-and very able counsel-­
as I know the doors were open, to argue the prosecution's side of th(~ 

Q. Of all of them? A. SO far as case. If you will answer the question. 
I know. and if I didn't make it plain, let me 

Q. And somebody there to tend --no,Y-
store? A. Somebo(ly on the outside Attorne,' General ,YILSOX: I. 
or the inside. Sometimes they would wou1cl submit that the ans,Yer to that 
be on the outside and sometimes on question is a matter of argument, 
the inSide. simply asldng for his conclusion. 

Q. And "'as tiwrE' any sign of any '1'he SPEAKER: TIl(> ,yitness i::l'-
gooc1s displayed for sale during that asked to giYe his conclusion from that 
time? Any sort of goods? A. In th0 state of facts which he observed. Of 
building? course he should give it, but he OUgh;.. 

Q. You know what I mean. I mean to have some latitude in his methodE' 
in these barrooms yOU have described. of giving it. 
~..... I ,Yant to say that ,yhen ,Ye fin:t 'YIT~ESS: That is \yhy I wanted. 
came in there were signs of liquor to make a statement 
but after we had been in there a lit- The SPEAKER; Y,', not g,) 
tIe while these places were cleaned outside the limits of the ,~"."s';()n, but 
out and there was nothing in ther" you can give your conclusiulis that 
exc('pting \,"hat they COUld take in you drew from the facts within your 
their hands and run ,,,ith it. observation. 

Q. I understand that, and there Mr. PA TT A1'\GALL: It YOU drew 
,,,asn't any sign of anything else be- any conclusion, tel! me ,yhat it was. 
ing sold-dry goods or boots and shoes A. '1'he conclusion I drew ,,'as that 
or anything of that sort? A. Xo. the places would be cleaned up when 

Q. So that during that time that we approached and there was no one-
you saw these places open there ,,'ould inside or around about it. 
he somebody apparently tending store Q. You don·t mean that? A. I mean 
and no goods of any kind to sell-i~ just that; if I hadn't I shouldn't have 
that right? A. That is right, no <'aid it. 
goods so far as I could see. Q. ,Valt and see. Dou you mean that 
- Q. ,Vhat did YOU conclude from there" ould be a ,'acanl store and not, 
that that they were keeping the e,,",'1' a clerk in it? A. That is ,,'hat I 
stores open for? A. I don't know as mp~n to say. 
I just get that question. Q. ~or a proprietor? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. As an officer ,'011 were watch- Q. 1'\01' a customer? A. Yes, sir. 
ing these places 1110re or less, weren't Q. That is' true of how many cases?' 
you. A. Yes, sir. A. Once in a great while I wouldl 

Q. Xow when you sa,,, a place that catch a man, but we would have to. 
YOU had known to be a bar, and had get down like a snake in the grass to< 
~earched as a bar, and you saw the do it. 
door open, and the clerk or somebody Q. ~"'nd the doors open? A. The 
else in attendance, and nothing dis- doors open. 
played for sale, what kind of business Q. And the proprietors therE: so sel­
did yOU suppose was going on there? ,10m, 9nd the customers there so se1-
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clc'm, lhat ;,'cu had to get down like Q. \\'as the place open? A. It \yaS 
,,), snake in tl',e grass to catch anyon', apparently at times, and other times 
tn tl'ere? A. That is correct. shut. 

Q .• \nd that was true in all yonI' ex- Q. I mean the doors open'? A. ::\ot at 
gerience in 110? A. Yes, sir. all times, no. 

Q. That "asn't true of ::IlcGlinchy's, Q. But how as a general rule? A. 
was it? A. That ,,'asn't true of Mc- Nearly every time I would go <lawn there 
Glinchy's, no. the doors would be locked. 

Q. And you never went into Me.. Q. And noboby in it? A. ::\obody ap­
Glinehy's but once to see ,yhether you parpntly. 
had to go in like a snake in the grass? Q. iou have searched it? A. I haYe 
A. No. when there was anyone in it. 

Q. And are there any other placE'S Q. How many times? A. 1 couldn't 
that you haye described as "old-tim- say. 
('1'8" that you didn't go into but once Q. Several times? A. Several times. 
during that year? _\. I don't know of Q. You have found liquor in it'! A. 
<:lny Of them except that once. 'es, sir. 

Q. Did you go around every day? Q. ,\Vhen? ,\\Then you first went there, 
A. Xearly every day. wasn't it? A. I found something there 

Q. And found the stores entirely ya- the first time and I found some there 
cant? A. In nearly eyery place they once or twice afterwards. 
'would be out, nobody in them. Q. After you had been there a while'? 

Q, Do you know the Coleman place? A. Yes. 
_t>,.. Yes. Q. In that place? A. Yes. 

Q. Where is that-corner of Silver Q. Do you mean liquor? A. Liquor. 
and Fore streets? A. Corner of Silver Q. How in the world do you think it 
,;l,nd Fore streets. got there? Do you suppose it came from 

Q. And is that one of the old-time the depot or the boat? A. It was there, 
"Places'! A. I tbink that has been a that is all I know. 
:rum shop since I can remember. Q. How much of it? A. I think tilero 

Q. And during the time that you were seven or eight bottles in a hide in 
were there as a Sturgis deputy was the washtub. 
Coleman's place habitually and entire- Q. Then you made other searches? A. 
1y empty? A, Not all the time it And we found once before that, just prior 
'\I~asll't empty. to that time, some kegs in a hide away 

Q. Was it most of the time'? A. out in the shed, overhead. 
1\10~~ of the time I went tllerc it was Q. Any other times? A. We haVe 
.empty. found liquor at other times than that, 

Q, Nobody in it at all: A. Very yes. 
",eldom anybody in it. Q. SO from your searches you would 

Q. When there was somebody in it, conclude that Patrick Holloran kept 
"iyho would it be, Coleman or a clerk' pretty steadily in the liquor ("usiness 
,A. Once in a ,,,hile I would see Cole- during that year? A. I presume he \vas 
;man lhere. in nothing else. 

Q, When 'you sa'" Coleman there, he Q. On \Vashington avenue, a weel .. 
'would be doing absolutf'ly nothing? A. ago Saturday, you visited 'William Egan's 
He would be doing absolutely nothing. place? A. Yes, sir. 
'SometilU:>s he would be on the sidewalri: Q. Is that a comparatively new place, 
'before I went into the building and go or is that an old place? A. 'l'hat is an 
in the building and find nobody. old place. 

Q. You know Patrick Holloran, 65 Com- Q. And was that running when you 
mercial street? A. Yes, sir. were there as an officer, a Sturgis depu-

Q. During the time you were a SturgiS ty? A. No, sir; it was closed. 
,deputy, what was his business? A. So Q. After you went there Or before? 
far as I know he was in the rum busi- A. I don't know just when it was clos­
ness. ed, but it was closed after we went 

Q. And where? A. At 65 Commercial there. 
street. That was his headquarters. Q. Do you know whether your officers 
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had anything to do with closing it, or 
was it closed when you arrived in the 
city? A. I couldn't tell yoU as to that. 

Q. Kow when you went there as a 
Sturgis deputy was Sherman's place run­
ning? A. Frank Sherman's bar was run­
ning; that is, when we first went there 
we found liquor in the barroom hid over­
head, and then it was taken away. 

Q. That is the place called the Gaft 
Topsail? A. Yes. 

Q. And that was open in 1910': I mean 
the business itself was open'! A. The 
bar when we first went there was open, 
and then it was closed, and he moved 
upstairs. It was a dwelling. 

Q. What business did he go into dur­
ing that year other than rum selling, it 
you know'? A. I think he went across to 
the old country hunting for a wife at 
that time. 

Q. How long was he gone? A. I thinl, 
somewhere in the neighborhood of three 
or four months. 

Q. OutSide of that what did he go 
into? A. I don't know that he had 
any business outside of the rum bus­
iness. 

Q. During that year? A. During 
that year. 

Q. Was that his first start in bus­
iness or had he l{ept a place in some 
other business before that? A. He 
has been in other places. 

Q. In thp same business? Liquor 
business? A. Liquor business. 

Q. How far back do you know of 
him"! A. As far back as I was a dep­
uty sheriff, in 190~. 

Q. Was he in the liquor business 
then? A. ,Ve made seizures at his 
place and brought him in as a re­
spondent. 

Q. Had him before the court? A. 
Yes, sir. 

Q. And he still continued in the 
business? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Now when you worl,ed under 
Sheriff Pearson and under Sheriff 
Dunn, a strong effort was made on 
the part of the officers to enforce the 
prohibitory law? A. There was. 

Q. Did you succeed in stopping the 
sale of liquor in Portland? A. No. 

Q. ,V here did the traffic appen!" 
when yOU drove it out of some places '.' 
A. The most of it \yas on the streets 
and in back yards. 

Q. And in kitchen barrooms? A. 
There were a few kitchen barrooms. 

Q. Mostly on the streets and in 
back yards. A. Yes. 

Q. How was it conducted? A. In 
various ways. 

Q. Won't you describe some of 
them? A. This Thomas Brownrigg 
was in the business at that time as 
an express company. He used to haul 
it and deliver it at back yards or any­
where else they wanted it, on tbfl 
street or anywhere. He used to horse 
it up and haul it to them. 

Q. He didn't haul it to the consum­
er, but hauled it to places where they 
retailed it"! A. He hauled it and put 
it in back yards, presumably to sell. 

Q. Not to somebody to us~ for them­
selves, hut for them to sell? A. Yes. 

Q. And \nlS that carried on pretty 
pxtcnsivel,v? A. Quite so, until the 
1;::st part of that year. 

Q That \Yould be 1902, would it? A. 
1902. 

Q. 1\0\\" that was the way Brownrig­
handled the trade, was it? A. Yes. 

Q. How else was the trade carried 
on"? A. Some others' that dealt in hant 
gOOd,; would bring a basket clown the 
street and ~tand around the corner 
and stand tilere until they saw a cus­
tomer coming and go around the cor­
ner <end go to the basket and I would 
see them get something" and deliver it. 

Q. VVh'.lt that trade comparatively 
pxtem;ive or very limited? A. Very 
limited. 

Q. Did you eatch some of them at 
it '? A. Xot yery many of them. 

Q. Did yeu some. Have some before 
the courts? A. I think we had a Mr. 
J!'lmes 'Ve!ch up for sales on the strecet 
corners. 

Q. Of course whenever you kne\v of 
11 m:tn selling you had him before the 
court? A. If \\"e knew his name and 
eould get hold of him and there was 
.,vidence enough to satisfy the court 
he was in the business. 

Q. It was somewha t difficult, of 
eourse, to Jetect that J{ind of ""ark? 
A. It was ditficult to satisfy the court 
that he \Vas in the business. 

Q. Well, if you could have gone int'.) 
co'u't anJ sworn nnder oath, as you 
h~,\"(' llf're to this convention, that \~ 

man had a basket hid H,,'ay in the back 
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yaru and stood on th" corner waiting fOt' 

a, customer ann when he found him 
went and got the whiskey and sold it, 
.the court wouldn't have had much 
trouble in convicting him, would he'> 
A. The court wouldn't have had much 
trouble if I had seen him pass the 
monoy, 

Q. Just \"hat court is it that ha;; 
ruled that they have to pass the mon­
.ey? A. The municipal eourt. 

'Q. Well, the State can't appeal, so I 
:;;uppose you 'had to accept the ruling? 
Did you bring many ,such cases before 
,the court where the court turned you 
<down because you didn't see the money 
passed? A. No. 

Q. Did you know anything about wo­
men handling liquor for sale in those 
days? A. There Were a few. 

Q. That you detectea? A. One or 
two. 

Q. And of courSe you might imagine 
that there was more or less going on 
-that you couldn't get hold of as an offi­
cer? A. There would be some pretty 
hard to detect. 

Q. D,d you run into any of this busi­
ness o,f young boys and girls ;being in 
the traffic at that time? A. I don·t ,',,­
member recalling any young girls ()l' 

boys regularly in the business, but I do 
recall of their calling out "blow" to call 
the attention of t.he PJople that was sell­
ing, to give them warning that we were 
corning. 

Q, And usually after this warning was 
,given you didn't get hold of anything? 
A. The bird would fly and we couldn·t 
catch it, 

Q. And that would make it pretty dif­
ficult to detect that sort of thing, or 
even to detect the extent or It" A. \'I'hy, 
yes, in a sense. 

Q. Do you remember how many of 
you worked ,with lUr. P=rson or ~lr. 
Dunn or under him at that time? A. 
During •.• e time that I ser"ed as dep­
uty? 
~. Yes, sir. A, There was four of us, 
Q. Did you gi\'e your entire attention 

to it? A. Pr:,ctically every moment. 
Q. Haye you any idea how many 

kitchen bar rooms were being run in 
Portland at that time? A. No, I don't 
have anv idea how many there were. 

Q, D; you have any idea .how many 
men, women and children there were en-

gaged in !locket peddling at that time? 
... """1-. No. 

Q. Do you have any idea how many 
people there were who were standing 
around and watching in the employ 
of these pocket peddlers? A. Oh, 
I couldn't estimate how many there 
were. 

Q. The~' had some regular watch­
ers? A. They had a few of what we 
called bums on the corners. 

Q. Could you give any estimate or 
judgment to the convention of the ex­
tent of that illicit traffic? A. No, I 
don't know that I can. 

Q. It would be practically impossi­
ble to do it, wouldn't it, it was car­
ried on in such a way. A, Yes, 

Q. Is it or not true that when en­
forcement is attempted from a differ­
ent standpoint, as for instance, when 
conditions are as they are now in 
Portland. that pocket peddling practi­
cally ceases? A. I don't quite under­
stand. 

Q. Is pocket peddling going on to 
any extent in Portland now, in your 
opinion? A, I couldn't tell you. 

Q. You don't notice any? A. I 
don't notice any pocket peddling as I 
know of, but I notice men divvy up 
and run up a street-1 don't know 
where they go or how they go about 
it. 

Q. I mean when you were about in 
December or January-did you see 
any indication of pocket peddlers'? A. 
I didn't. no. 

Q. Or during the last two years? 
A. I have seen men drinking out of 
a bottle quite frequently, I don't 
know where they came from or any­
thing about it. 

Q. But you have seen that in Port­
land under all kinds of times in cer­
tain part,; of the city? A. Yes, somE 
parts of it. 

Q. V,'hen you were working as " 
Sturgis deputy and when you were 
there undpr 1\1r. Pearson, did you have 
reason to believe that the druggists 
werp'many of them doing a substan­
tia! business in hard liquor? A, V,'e 
did. 

Q. Anll did you have a great deal 
of difficulty in reaching that part of 
the trade? A. We had difficulty in 
bringing in evidence that the court 
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would accept, in convicting them. 
Q. S0 that practically, you were 

unable to effectively enforce the law 
against druggists, weren't you? A. 
Yes. 

Q. That is true, isn't it? 
Q. How was it about the hotels when 

~'ou were operating as Sturgis deputy, 
did you have much trouble with them? 
A. vVe didn't have much trouble with 
them. I think the Preble House gave 
us all the trouble that we had, except 
the Goodrich House, so called, on Free 
.street. 

Q. ),"ow it is a fact, isn't it, that what 
we would call the first class hotels in 
Portland weren't selling liquor at that 
time. I won't say the Preble House 
isn't first class but I mean, speaking 
of the first class hotels, they gave you 
no trouble, such as the Lafayette and 
Congress Square? A. They didn't as 
a hotel. 

Q. It is also true that these first 
·class hotds aren't selling liquor at the 
present time? A. I don't think they 
aI'''. 

Q. You have no reason to think they 
are? A. )'"0, I have no reason to thinl, 
they are. 

Q. You ha\'e made no investigation 
that would lead you to think so? A. No, 
r haven't. 

Q. SO that conditions so far as the 
hotels art?, concerned, haye not mate­
rially changed under the present admin­
istration'? A. r haven't been into them 
so that I could state. 

Q. I don't know whether you ha\'e 
IJeell asked. but some witnesses haYt~ 

testified to the reputation of places as 
being places where liquor is sold, and 
I think tllP President has ruled the evi­
c1el1cP to bt~ admissible. Whether any of 
the first class hotels in Portland haye 
the re-putation of maintaining 
nuisances at the present timf'? 

lirjUor 
A. I 

think th>'- Congress Square and the 
Lafayettp do not haye the reputation. 

Q, Th" Falmouth doesn't, dot'S it? 
A. I don't kno,\" at the present time. 
hut it used to hav". 

Q. I mean since Mr. Pooler has 
managed it, A. I don't kno\\" any­
thing a bout it since Mr. Pooler has 
managed it. I don't think I have 
heard anything of that kind since :\lr. 
.Pooler has managed it. 

Q. Or the Columbia? A. Xor the 
Columbia Hotel, no. 

Q. Or the Xew Chase House? A. 
I haven't heard of any. 

Q. And the West End? A. I think 
they have had the reputation of keep­
ing a bar. 

Q. At the present time? A. I 
wont say at the present time. I will 
say three months ago. 

Q. Within the present administra­
tion? A. Yes. 

Q. Did it have that reputation in 
years gone by? A. It has had that 
reputation in years gone by. 

Q. So that there has been no 
change in that hotel. Now have you 
made any observations with regard to 
the drug trade in Portland so as to 
know whether the drug stores are be­
ing conducted as much in accordance 
with the law as formerly, or more so, 
or how they compare? A. I can only 
tell you from what I see on the out· 
side in regard to druggists. I have 
seen men, three or four of them com­
ing and going and divy up, and I 
have seen one rna!:! ~etailed and g::J 
into a certain drug store and I have 
watched that crowd and the malil. tnat 
went into the store would come out 
and go around with them and some­
times I have passed around quickly 
and seen them take a bottle and drink 
out of it. 

Q. So that your observations would 
lead YOU to think that there is some 
business done in the drug stores? A. 
I think so. 

Q. And did YOU find it impossihle 
to deal with that when you were an 
officer? A. Yes, in a certain sense 
it was impossible to get at that. 

Q. You spoke about seeing 'lIar",,, 
quantity of goods marked for the Od;,­
orne Bottling Company if I ha\"e the 
name right. A. Yes, sir-. 

Q. Was the Ordiorne Bottling Com­
pany doing business in Portland when 
yOU were there as a Sturgis deputy'! 
A. They were. 

Q. And was the Ordiorne Bottlin~ 
Company doing business in Portland 
when you were a deputy sheriff un­
der Pearson and Dunn? A. A small 
business. 

Q. Have you really any data as to 
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the amount of business they do? A. 
'Vhy yes, under the Pearson admin­
istration, they had it come in sugar 
barrels and jUgs. In the administra­
tion of 1910 they had it in bulk bar­
rels, fifty gallons to a barrel. 

Q. Now do you know how it came in 
the Pearson administration? A. I have 
watched it and seen it come. 

Q. And seized it? A. And seized It. 
Q. You don't know how much they 

had come that you didn't get? A. No, 1 
don't know how much they had come 
that I didn't get. 

Q. Now, if they continued to do busi­
ness during the two years of that admin­
istration they must necessarily have 
done it on goods that you didn't seize'! 
A. They done business, of COUN'll:!' I dida't 
seize it all. 

Q. They couldn't do much business on 
what you had seized. You didn't have 
any way of telling how much business 
they did except that you seized certain 
liquors. Now is it true that the Odiorne 
Bottling Oompany has been doing busi­
ness in Portland not only for the last l~ 

years, but for a longer period '! A. They 
had been doing business as 1 stated, but 
in years gone by a small business. 

Q. Were they doing a small business 
when you were a Sturgis deputy? A. 
They were doing what I considered a 
small business. 

Q. Did you ever make a seizure there'! 
A. Not in the building. 

Q. Did your deputies make a seizure 
there? A. Not in the building proper. 

Q. Were you ever in the building? A. 
Yes. 

Q. Been through it? A. Been through 

Stllrgis Deputies? A. Yes, they ran a 
bottling business besicie the liquor traf­
fic. 

Q. And they still do? A. They do 
a larger business. 

Q. I wish you 'would tell the conven­
tion how you «now how much busines~ 
the Odiorne Bottling Company are do­
ing. A. The only ,way is what I see 
coming into depots anu boats and what 
1 see around and about the building a!! 
I watch them. 

Q. How much have they had ·for the 
last three months? A. 1 haven't watched 
them very much but I have been there 
very <early in the morning. T·he first 
Saturday in .. ,arch at abou~ 5 o'clock in 
the morning I was at tl1at :building and 
stood in the passage and saw them load 
several cases of beer on to the team and 
a few barrels of beer. 

Q. That was lately? A. That was 
lately; that was in ::.1arch. 

Q. Now 'When you were a deputy Stur­
gis Commissioner, didn·t you see the Odi­
orne Bottling Company loading beer and 
dellvering beer right along in Portland, 
just .as you rec( ntly saw them? A. X ot 
from the buildir g there. They kept it in 
storage in sym_! other place. 

Q. Y.ou saw ("em loading it on teams 
and delivering it? A. I never sa w them 
loading it, I have caught the teams af­
ter it was on. 

Q. Now do you know at one time 
they did their deliveries through the 
American Express? A. I don't know 
it, no. 

Q. You wouldn't question it? A. No, 
r presume they might have done it. 

Q, Can you tell this convention the 
it. name of any bar room in the city oX 

Q. When? A. When I was a Sturgis Portland doing business now that was 
deputy. not dOing business "'hen YOU were a 

Q. And they employ several men? A. Sturgis deputy? A. Doing business 
A number of men. now that was not doing business when 

Q. And they employed a number of I was a SturgiS deputy? 
men then? A. I don't know how many Q. Yes. A. Why, yes. 
they had. Q. Tell us one? A. \Vell, there is 

Q. Do you know how many they have two on Indian street. 
got now? A. No. Q. Just tell us the proprietor of one? 

Q. And you don't know that they A. J ~ouldn't tell you 'the proprietor's 
have got any more now than they had name, but perhaps I can gh'e you the 
then? A. r don't know, no, because r number of the street. 
haven't been there and 'counted them up. Q. 'Yhat is the number? A. One of 

Q. But they did business enough so them is 66 and the other is 43, I think, 
that they were a growing concerning India street; and I think yoU will find 
with a number o.f emplo~'es under the another on the corner of India and Fore 
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streets, OIl the northeast corner. question. ~-\. I am going to ans,,~er 

Q. Just tell me what you know. your question. 
'Vhat was the business that these men Q. No. you are not. A. Yes, I am. 
were in, in 1910, that are running the Q. I am perfectly willing for you 
places now at 66 and 43 India street? to take the time to make the state­
A. I couldn't tell you. ment you want to. A. I have got 

Q. You don't know but what they through with the statement and I was 
were in the rum business? A. I just going- to answer your question. 
couldn't telI you what they were do- Q. Didn't you misunderstand me? 
ing at that time. _~. I don't think so. 

Q. In 1910 the Falmouth Hetel was The 'SPEAKER: You had better 
one of the places that had a reputa- answel' the question. Counsel on the 
tion of keeping a bar ,;Jom, wasn't it? other side will permit you to explain 
A. I don't recalI it now, as it was. later. 

Q. You remember at one time the Mr. PATTANGALL: I will ask you 
proprietor of that hotel v,as before the this: If the conditions which you 
court and was sentenced for liquor sell- havt' described here were sufficiently 
m~"? A. I understand that he was. notorious, that is, open bars and so 

Q. I don't mean the present propr;,." fortb that in your opinion they wert' 
tor'! A. J understand that. fairly well known to the people of 

Q. That "'as for an offenct' commit- Portland? A. 'Vhy, yes; a man un­
ted in "nnttter eounty, in York county. less he was blind couldn't help seeing 
":8sn't it? A. In York county, yes. them. 
sir. Q. And they haven't changed much 

Q. Did you look over the lists of in the last six months, have they? A. 
places where liquor was said to hay"~ If he wasn't deprived of his smell. he 
l)cen sold in Portland that has been couldn't help smelling it. 
p':'inted and put before the convention" Q. That doesn't answer the ques-
A. 1\"0, sir. tion, does it? 

Q. Do ~'ou know anything about th9 Mr. CLEAVES: He didn't finish his 
jwtitioll tha t was circulated in Port- former answer; that was part of his 
bnd for Sheriff Moulton's removal, former answer. 
Hnd whic:l has been printed and pre- Mr. PATTANGALL: The conditions 
sented to the Hou~e~ A. T don·t; I l111.ven·t materially changed in the last 
didn't see it, no. sir. six or eight months, down to the mid­

Q. And you have been in Portlan(1 
Yight along for some little time? A. I 
have been in Portland-I have lived in 
one lIeu:;,e for 21 years. 

Q. Keep yourself pretty well inform­
en ahout what is going on there? A., 
Oh, I couldn't say; I hardly IUIOW any­
thing only what I observe myself. 

Q. Now just onc or two other ques­
tions upon the same suhject. From 
your observation of matters in Port­
iand should you say that the condi­
tions tha t have been described there 

dle of March? A. They haven't been 
any better the last three or four 
months than they were in the first 
part of the year. 

Q. Have they materially changed In 
your opinion? A. They haven't changed 
up till last Monday. 

Q. And do you think that last Mon­
day was before the middle of "'farcll, or 
were you just anxious to put that in your 
answer? A. That was after tIle middle 
of March. 

Q. I ask you if for the six months 
prior to the middle of ~Iarch there had 

Were i'uft1ciently notorious that they been any material change of condition" 
were generally known to the people of in Portland? A. 'V ell, not for the bet­
the city? A. Under this adrninistr:~- tel'. 
tion" Q. Had there been any material 

Q. Yes. change? That is the question. A. Therp 
A. 1 w2.nt (0 say to this convention had been for the worse. 

that I have lived in Portland in the Q. During the last six montlls? A. 
neighborhood of 28 years and- Yes. sir. 

Q. I asl{ that you will answer my Q. Ro that six montlls ago conclitions 
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there you think were better than they 
were in March? A. Slightly better. 

Q. Had there been very much differ­
ence? A. No, I don't mean very much 
difference. 

Q. No material change? A. No. 
Q. Now last summer, take it back last 

summer, and were conditions about as 
they were in the latter pallt of the year? 
A. I guess they were somewhere in the 
neighborhood of the same, practically 
changing, might change a little at times. 

Q. But nothing to speak of? A. No, 
nothing to speak of. 

Q. And during the fall were these 
matters with which or about which you 
have testified called to the attention of 
the public at meetings and through the 
papers, I mean, during campaign? A. 1 
think they were. 

Q. Mr. Ed Emery, you know him, 
don't you? A. Yes. 

Q. He campaigned the county, didn't 
he? A. Some parts of It. 

Q. And other men, ,with the idea of 
letting the public know just what has 
ueen rehearsed here? A. They took up 
some of the evidence that was seen and 
founo, that was in the county, and told 
i l to the people. 

Q. And with those ,conditions existing 
and the information that has been given 
this ,convention ha yjng ibeen given to the 
people of Cumberland eounty on the 
stump and throug'h the press, Mr. Moul­
ton was elected sheriff again? A. He 
"",'as. 

:.'vIR. ,CLEAVES: ,Yith the consent of 
the presiding officers Mr. Doughty would 
like to be eXcuseLl final\,-, ana Mr. Skil­
lings also would like to be excused fin­
ally. 

MR. PAT'iANGALL: I may want to 
a~k sIr. Skillings a ff'"r questions. 

On motion by Mr. Putnam of Houlton 
a reces~ ",'as Laken for 10 minutes. 

After Recess. 

Q. During the last part of December 
last were there various searches and 
seizures made upon places in the city of 
,Yestbrook? A. The last of December'! 

Q. Yes. A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Did Sheriff Moulton or either of his 

deputies initiate any of those proceed­
ings? A. They did not. 

Q. Do you know the Leo P. Cote place 
at 184 Main street? A. I do. 

Q. Was that a bar room where Intox­
icating liquors were sold during the last 
part of December of last year? A. It 
wasn't a bar room; it was a gambling 
joint, and they sold liquor there. 

Q. Do you know the place of Joseph 
L. Dow at No. 16 Fitch street? A. ~es, 

sir. 
Q. 'Vhat was the character of that 

place during the last part of December 
of last year? A. It was an open rum 
shop. 

Q. Louis Fornier, 31 Bridge street, 
what was the character of that place 
at the same time? A. Mr. Fornier 
hadn't b!'en in business long; tue place 
had been run as a saloon for a long time 
off and on. 

Q. The place ltself was a saloon? A. 
Yes, slr. 

Q. Anthony Garon, 16 Fitch street'! A. 
That was over Dow's, upstairs. 

Q. 'Vhat kind of a place is It, what 
was it used for? A. Saloon. 

Q. J. C. GeUett, 904 Main street? A. 
That building has been used for lifjuor 
selling; it was used at that time. 

Q. In the place of Joseph Dow, 16 
Fitch street, was there a seizure made 
the last part of December of last year 
which was begun by citizens of ,Yest­
brook? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. "'"hat quantity of liquor was found 
and taken away by the officers? A. The 
place was full of liquor; there 'Yas a 
two-horse jigger load taI(en from that 
building, and the empties weren't touch­
ed; there was probably a jigger load of 

KIXG S. GRAHAM, being duly called empties. 
and sworn, testified: Q. At 31 Bridge street was there any 

By Mr. CLEAYES: seizure made at about the same time? 
Q. Your name? A. King S. Graham. A. Small load, I should sayan one­
Q. You live in 'Westbrook? A, Yes, horse load; I didn't see the liquor taKen 

sir. away. 
Q. You were the somewhat unsuccess- Q. At Xo. 16 Fitch street was there 

ful candidate for sheriff of Cumberland any seizure made, upstairs, at Xo. 16 
county last fall? A. I was one of the Fitch street? A. Yes, sir. 
defeated candidates. Q. At what other places were any 
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seizure, of liq"or made at about that 
time~ A. At two other places on Fitch 
street, at the place rUn by Gerard and 
at the place run by Foster; I can't give 
you the numbers, I can't recollect the 
numbers just now, but both of them 
were on Fitch street, seizures made at 
both places. 

Q. What portion of the year 1912 had 
all these places been run as open rum 
shops? A. Please repeat your question. 

Q. During what period of 1912 had each 
of these places been run as an open rum 
shop? A. They had been run all we 
time as far as my knowledge goes. 

Q. Had you been sufficiently In tOUC!l 
with the situation so that you had made 
observation from time to time during 
the year~ A. I was back and forth by 

print. A. I understand what you ,me~n. 
Q. I mean, generally? A. I under­

stanu, but you remember that the press 
of Portland are Republi-can and Demo­
cratic sheets. 

Q. The E,'ening Express wouldn't f,or­
bid you access to its columns to expose 
the bad conditions there, would it? A. 
I don't know; I wasn't refused; all I 
say, the reports ot our public meetings 
were not printed very ,fully. 

Q. Even in the Express? A. No. 
Q. SO that what talk you made or 

y,our friends made, what appeal you 
made to the public had to ,be largely ,by 
word of mouth? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Now, after that appeal ,had been 
made to the publk and they had ,be."n 
as fully informed of the state of affairs 

the place~; I never entered. 
Q. And had that condition 

ness resulted in a great deal 
clamor? A. It had. 

as you saw them as you were able to 
of open- inform them, d,o you recollect how much 
of public plurality Sheriff Moulton had in the 

Q. And was the activity of the cItizens 
of Westbrook the result of that, together 
with the failure of the sheriff to do anv-
thing~ A. It was. 

er-oss- Examination, 

By :.vIR. PATTAXGALL: 
Q. :.vIr. Grahwm, you sUlted that you 

were a ,candidate for the office of sheriff 
of Cumberland county in the last fall 
'campaign '? ~\. Yes, sir. 

Q. No,w. did you go about the county 
Cluring the campaign? A. I elid. 

Q. Makt~ an actiye campaign? A .. 
'Yell, I ~hould judge SQ, 

Q. And brought to the attention of 
the pt'opl,> of Cumberland county such 
Ifacts a~ ",rere in your possession \\·ith 
regard to Sheriff )..Ioulton's administrJ.­
tion? A. As well as I .was able. 

Q. Through yourself 'and your frienus? 
A. Yes, sir. 

Q. \\'hat was the condition-w,hateyer 
the 'condition with regard to liquor sell­
ing obtain(>·d in the county at that Itime 
was ma(ie known to the people of the 
county by you and ihe 'men -~vho wert:< 
:-;llpportillg you, ",v:lsn't it"': ..: • .1.. ....-\8 far 
as we could. 

Q. In public meetings? A. Yes, sir. 
Q. And through t'hlt press: ~.\. X0t 

very much throug:h the press. 
Q. I mean, through the public print. 

I don't mean the newspaper in Portland 
called The Press, but through the public 

election? A. No, I wouldn't say. 

Q. It was 
,,'asn't it? A. 

somewhere around 3600, 
I hayen't the figures. 

Q. ::;omewherebetween 3000 and 4oo0? 
A. "'hat is the use to estimate, ()r say­
ing somewhere near? I say, I don't 
know. 

Q. I dicln't know but what you might 
be able to place it within some limits in 
the way of an estimate? A. I don't 
r8-{'o 11 ec-t ; T should ,be very glad to In­
form you if I knew. 

Q. L know ~'ou .w,ould. Do you recol­
lect whether y,(}U were second or third 
canclidate on the list? ~\. I belie,'e I 
was the thircl. 

ATTORXEY GEKERAL \\"ILSON: 
don't know as I quite see what tile bear­
ing of this last testimony i::i upon the 
question that is really bctore the ,con­
YC'ntioJ1. I know the nlatter is dragging 
out. anel I clon't want to object to any­
thing that my brothpr feels has any 
legitimatp bearing; 1JUt it does not seem 
to me tdat this can ha,"e any bearing 
upon the (lUestion of the enforcement (,1' 

the non-pnfor~ement of thb law. If my 
·brother will tell me what he is driving 
at. whether :\1r. Moulton was elected­
we will admit that. and that he was 
elected by a plurality vote, but to use 
up the time of the con,"ention ,on this 
matter. I want to object to it unless mv 
,brother can show wherein it has a bea;­
ing. 
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THE SPEAKER: You say you do ob­
ject? 

ATTORNEY GENERAL WILSON: 
Yes, but J don't want to be captious. 

MR. PATTANGALL: I will say to 
the SpeJ ker that I ,had asked everything 
on that line that I was gOing to ask. 

THE SPEAKER: You 'had not re­
ceived an answer to that last question, 
harl you? 

MR. PATTANGALL: Yes, 'he said he 
didn't know. 

THE SPEAKER: Then that matter 
£eems to have been closed up? 

;UR. PATTANGALL: Yes. 
ATTORNEY GENERAL WILSON: 

If my brother is all thrDugh ,on that 
line I will withdraw my objection. 

Mr. PATTANGALL: Yes, I am all 
through upon that. 

Q. NDW, Mr. Graham, at that time 
apparently because you had a per­
sonal interest in the matter yOU in­
formed yourself 'luite fully with re­
gard to the general cDnditiDns in the 
county? A. I tDDk nD more interest 
at that time than at other times; I 
have always been interested in this 
question. 

Q. At any rate, YDU were then fair­
ly well informed as tD general condi­
tiDns in the county? A. I was in­
formed; yes, sir;' I had been righ t 
alDng. 

Q. And did you make any request 
of Sheriff MDultDn to take any actiDn 
in regard to any places in your city 
of \Vestbrook? A. I had no time te, 
waste; I had no conference with the 
sheriff, 

The SPEAKER: You should an­
swer the questions categoricall~', i1 
you can, without inserting any sug­
ge-stions of that kind. 

:\11'. PATTANGALL: Will you 
kindly answer the question? A. Will 
you repeat it? 

Q. J ask you if yon made any com­
plaint to 'Sheriff Moulton? A. I did 
nfot. 

Q. Or with regard to any of the 
c(mditions that existed in your city 
of Westbrook? A. I made no com­
plaint; no, sir. 

Q. Did you cause any to be made? 
A. I did not. 

Q. Did you make any tD the cDunty 
attorne~.· ? A I did nDt. 

Q. Or did YDU cause any to be 
made 7 A. ND, sir. 

Q. Have you a municipal court in 
the city ,of WestbroDk? A. 'We have. 

Q. Did YDU make any cDmplaint tD 
the judge ,of that court? A. I did 
not. 

Q. \Vere you familiar with the con­
ditiDns in Cumberland county priDr to 
the meeting ,of the September grand 
jury? A. I was; yes, sir. 

Q. Did YDU go befDre the grand 
jury? I had nD'direct evidence. .:1 
didn't; no, sir. 

Q. Did you knDw when the grand 
jury met in September that there were 
several places in WestbrDDI{ running 
as ,open rum ShDpS? A. I had never 
made any purchases; I had never been 
in those places. I knew tha t they 
existed as we know that grocery 
stDres exist. 

Q. You had never been informed '? 
A. No. 

Q. But as you said ,on direct exam­
inatiDn, YDU have been by them? A. 
Yes, sir. 

Q. Anfj observed them? A, Yes. 
sir. 

Q. And knew them to be ,open rum 
ShDpS? A. FrDm my observatiDn. 

Q. Did you attempt tD get that in­
formation to the grand jury? A. I 
did nDt, I had nD direct evidence. 

Q. Hadn't you the same evidence 
that YDU have nDw': A. Oh, nD, I 
ha ve been in since then, yes, in De­
cember. 

(~. But YDU said in answer to a 
questiDn by BrD. Cleaves that th0~' 
had heen runnmg them as ,open runt 
ShDPS during the year 1912? A. They 
have been known as ,open rum shops, 
men went in and ,out ,of tnDse places, 
drinl{ing men, and men WhD appear 
intDxicated. 

Q. You didn't ha\'e any dDubt about 
thDse places' A. ;\iD, sir; none \\'hat­
(;Vel'. 

Q. In YDur cDunty criminal ('ases are 
tried before the superior CDurt and nDt 
lJefol'e the supreme court? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Are you acquainted with Judge 
Connolly? A. No, sir; nDt persDnally. 

Q. YDU knDw ,of him? A. Yes. sir. 
Q. You kn,)\\' that he had been coun-

ty attornty of YDur county? A. Yes, 
<;ir. 
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Q. Did YClU com'ey that information ~:':l,' grand jury, or to Judge Connolly': 
to the court, to Judge Connolly'? A. A. I haye confidence in Mr. Bates. the 
KG. sir' I had no direct information, county attorney, but I do not under-
110 eyideIlce. \Yhen the evidence was "tand that Mr. Bates swears out "'ar­
() btained, if I ml".y be allo,,'pd to say, rants and proceeds in searching these 
It ":as presented to the county attor- l'laces. 
r.ey and ;)efcre the grand jury when Q. And the evidence you lIad thL, 
we h8.d e,'idel1ce that we could hcld in came from Mr. Emery and upon which 
:,O'lrt. you made your campaign required no 

Q. Th~n up to December, 1912, you s':':en.ring out of warrants? A. I didn't 
hadn't allY eyiclence of liquor selling mal<2 my campaign on that evidence. 
ti1at you could have properly present- Q. You made your campaign on the 
€d to any officer? A. That is true. I pr0position that liquor was being sold 
had no direct knowledge. and if you were elected, you ,,'ould 

Q. Either in ,Vestbrook or any other stnp it': _-\.. I made my campaign on 
part uf Cunlberland county': A. No, the proposition that the law was not 
sir. enforced. 

Q. And in the campaign had you not Q. Did YOH complain to the county 
asscci,Cted ,,·ith you members of the <l ttorney or Judge Connolly or to any­
Civic League':' A. Mr. Ed. Emery. UHe :00 that the law could be enforced? 

Q. And di'1 you not talk over those A. No, ,3ir. 
matters with him? A. I don't remem- Q. \Vhy didn't you? A. I didn't con­
ber t:lat l had much talk with him. I sideI- that the county attorney would 
heard some of his statemen~s' on the :;;,';ear Ollt warrants and proceed 
stump. 2gainst those places unless the sher-

Q. On the stump. Didn't you hear iff took action himself. I have no re­
him describe the conditions in Septem- fioction to cast on County Attorney 
bel' as he describes them here? A. Bates. I have had dealings with him 
Yes, sir. 8.nd llave found him ready to do hi;; 

Q. You had the direct statement of duty. 
Emery as far back as September that Q. HaJe you had any dealings with 
t~1ose comliti0ns existed as you heare!, 811eriff Moulton which indicated that he 
them described here? A. I heard Mr. ,:,:ould ne-t do his (luty? A. No, sir. I 
Emery's statpment. have had no dealings ''lith him. 

Q. You had no 'luestion ab0l1t those Q. But you wish to cast reflections 
being true? A. ""0, sir. on him? A. Because of the conditions. 

Q. You heard r,jm state that he Q. You understand that the county 
bought liquor at tllose places just as attorney has certain duties to perform? 
he stated ;lel'(~? A. I don't think he had A. Yes, sir. 
hought any at that time. I do not reeol- Q. And if evidence is presented to 
lect that he stated he had bought Ii- him, it is his duty to present it to the 
qunr. grand jury? ... ~. Yes, sir. 

Q. But he saw it sold? A. Yes, eir. Q. And it was within your knowl-
Q. You haye stated that the reason edge that such conditions existed, but 

you did not conyey that information to you did not convey your information to . 
Sheriff Moulton was because you hail the county attorney? A. I had evi­
no confidence in him. Is that the reason dence that those conditions existed, but 
you did not convey it to the county ac- I had no evidence of my own. 
torney, Mr. Bates, Judge Connolly and Q. Did you ever know, Mr. Graham, 
the grand jury? A. As I understood of Sheriff Moulton refusing to act on 
the question you asked me, it was why any information brought to him of liq­
I didn't present this matter to him, uor selling? A. I have had no deal­
why I did not make complaint. ings with him. I may have heard of 

Q. You say that you made no com- other parties who have. 
plaint to Sheriff Moulton because you Q. Have you heard of other parties 
had no confidence in him. Was that the who went. to him and did not get any­
reason you made no complaint to the thing dor.e? A. I think I have but I 
county attorney, to Judge Pride or to would not be positive. 
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Q. ,Yho? A. I think some of the 
women in ,Vestbrook made complaints. 

Q. ,Yhat women? A. Some of the 
Christian Temperance ,vomen. 

Q. \\'ere they in ,\'estbrook or in Port­
land? A. In \Vestbrook. 

Q. ",ow who swore out the ,,'arrants 
against those places in \Yestbrool{'1 A. 

Q. ,Yhat one? A. 
ident. 

I think the pres- I swore out some. 
Q. \Yho else? A. Mr. Curry. He Is a 

Q. ,Vhat is her name? A. :\Irs. 
Knight. 

Q. \Vhat i'l the first name, the full 
name, I want to find out. A. I don·t 
know her full name, I could tell YOU her 

citizen of '" estbrook. 
Q. He is not an officer'? • .\. :\ 0, 'ir. 
Q. And between you and him were all 

the warrants sworn out or \Yas there 
someone else'! A. I am not sure. 

Q. You do not recall anybody else'! A. 
husband's name. )\'0, sir. 

Q. ,Yhat is the husband's name? Q. Against those six place,,? .\. It 
A. Mrs. "'alter V. Knight. seems to me there were eight, .ut I am 

Q. You say that she told you that not positive. 
she \yent to Sheriff :VIoulton with a Q. I am not positiYe. Those places 
complaint about places and he would were searched? A. They were. 
not take any action? A. No, sir; I Q. ,Vho did the searching if you 
didn't say that. know? A. The principal part of the 

Q. ,Yhat did you say? A. That searching was done by the city marsllal 
understood so. and his officers. 

Q. \Yho from? A. It has been re- Q. \Yere there any deplH,' sherit'f'l 
ported around. present? A. Yes, Mr. Leighton. 

Q. ,Yhat are you talking, just gos- "'Q . ..t~nd he had the ,"van'ant? ~-\. 1 
sip? ~~. No. gaY8 him a ,varrant for t,,·o places. 

Q. Have you heard it from anybody Q. And he showed no hesitation about 
(lirect? A. If I have heard it at all, using the warrant? A. He seemed to 
I certainly heard it from somebody. ha\'e other business of that time. 

Q. ,Vho did you hear it from? Q Did he use the warrant·? A. Yes. I 
A. I don't recollect now. urged him as it was necessary to move 

Q. Do you know :vII's. Knight? at once. 
A. Yes, sir. Q. And he got the goods'l A. They 

Q. Acquainted fairly well with her? were found, certainly. The place was full 
A. Yes, it may have been from her. of it. 

Q. ,Yas it? A. I am not positive. Q. You say that the goods were founu'! 
Q. Do you think it was? A. I A. There were police officers there with 

"'auld not say. him. 
Q. ,Vhen was it? A. don't remem- Q. He made two searches, did he? A. 

her. "'ith the assistance of the police officer. 
Q. ,Yhat place was it about? A. I Q. How many searches did he partici-

don·t remember. pate in? A. I think two. 
Q. Do you remember that :\1rs. Q. And those cases went to the court 

Knight ever said One single thing about and were taken care of by the COUl'C: A. 
having complained to Sheriff Moulton Yes, sir; the parties pled guilty. 
and he paying no attention to her com- Q. :vIr. Graham, were those places that 
plaint? A. I don't remE'mber that we have spoken of in \\'85tbrook run 
::\Irs. Knight toIc1 me that. under the pretence of being clubs? A 

Q. Do you rememher that anybody Some of them. 
tolel you that? A. I have the impres- Q. Is that true of how many Of them: 
sion, yes. A. I think two, possibly three. I think 

Q. And about when did you first get two. 
that impression? A. I think some time Q. And how many of those places have 
during the summer. been maintained for a considerable 

Q. During the campaign? A, I length of time? A. Those buildings, 
think before the campaign. some of them, were used off and on by 
• Q. Do you I,now what places they different parties for some number of 
were talking about? A. Oh, no. Years. 
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Q. For Ii'Juor selling? A. Yes, sir, so 
far as my knowledge goes. 

Q. And were all of them new proprie­
tors? Or were some used by the same 
proprietor for a considerable length of 
time? A. I think Mr. Dow 11ad useu 11i8 

place for some time. 
Q. About how many years'! A. 1 

would not say how many ;\,ears In that 
building. I think some number of years 

Q. In fact other seizures have been 
made there against him from tIme to 
time? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And after the seizures were made, 
he went into business again? A. It 
f'f'emS so. 

Q. And he has kept that up for a se­
ries of years? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Running back maybe 10 or 12 
Y8ars? A. Some little time, I would 
not say how long. 

Q. This Mr. Curry, who swore out 
part of those warrants, what if; his 
business': A. Superintendent in the 
cotton mill. 

Q. And located in Westbrook? A. 
Yes, sir. 

Q. And living there at the present 
time? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Do you know whether since thal 
time or before or about that time he 
had been himself arrested on a crimi­
nal warrant? A. Since that time. 

Tl18 ATTORKEY GEl'\ERAL: \Yc 
have not :Mr. Curry here. I onl:',. call 
3ttention to this matter to shorten the 
pr()ceedings. 

The I'lPEAKER: The Chair is very 
desirious of making the examinations 
as concise as pe.ssible. We do not 
wish to have anyone's rights preju­
diced. If it is possible to shorten thp 
examinations, we hope it mal' be done. 

Mr. PATTANGALL: Do you know 
'1nything with regard to the adminis­
tion of the sheriff's office other 
than 'what you have related, of your 
own knowledge? A. vVhat do you 
mean by that? 

Q. I mean have you had any thin",' 
further to do with the administr8tio'; 
of the liquor law during Sheriff Moul­
ton's administration other than what 
you have already stated, except those 
matters in Westbrook? A. I do not 
know as I understand. 

Q. Have you had occasion to com­
Jllain about other places outside of 

·Westbrook. A. I felt that a man's 
b'lsiness was in his own town. 

Q. As a matter of fact you have 
n;,t complained of other places? .\. 
Xo, sir. 

Q. Nor have you made personal in­
vcst.igationsC: A. Xothing than pass­
ing through t11e street, and I have 
not been investigating. 

Q. Your knowledge gained in pass­
ing' through the street was not suffi­
dent to act upon your own initiative" 
A. I have no evidence of course. 

Q. So that as far as you know with 
the exception of the 'Yestbrook mat­
ters, which have been closed up, there 
;s nothing; to complain of there': A. 
As far as I have been into places. 
Of course, I don't know-I should 
complRill of the conditions. 

Q. You should? A. Yes, I feel 
that the conditions are not as they' 
C'hould be. 

Q. You say you should complain of 
them hut yOU have not complained tl) 

anYb~dv e~titled to assist there? A. 
::-\0', sir: I df) not mean it that way. 
I mean that 1 was not satisfied. 

Q. T do not mean to sign a liquor 
complaint, hut you have not com­
plained, you have not made any com­
plaint to anybody who is in a posi­
tion to act, anybody with authority. 
haye YOU, the judge, t!le grand jury 01 

lhe sheriff? A. Exc~pt in these mat­
tprs 0 f seizures. 

Q. Except in Westbrool.;: ? A. Yt's, 
sir. 

Q. That you have told about. Y011 

do not know anything about the cir­
(ulation of a petition for :\-11'. Moul­
ton's removal, do you? A.' You mean 
at tlwt time? 

Q. Yes. A. I saw that in the pa­
per. that a petition haC. beC'n circu­
lated. It was not pres6nted to me. 

Q. Then you knew nothing about its 
cin'ulaUun until it ,n1S printecl in the 
papers? A. :\"0, sir. I didn't know 
ahout any petition. 

Q. Sin~e t,hose cases up in IVest.brook, 
has there been any trouble there. since 
December, with regard to enforcement? 
_-\. T,he eonditions ha\'e been "ery good. 

Q. SO that you would ha\'e no com­
plaint to make with regard to '\Yestbrook 
since the first of the y""r~ A. Our prin­
cipal trouble l1as been from men going 
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to the city ul1fl coming back intoxicat,=d. 
Q. \\'ith regal'Ll to liquor selling in 

\\'estbrook. you have had no trouble 
since the first of the yea" t A. It 'has 
been yery good. 

Q. And so far as tl1ecity of West­
hrook isconcernetl, you would find no 
fault with the work of Sheriff Moulton 
since the first of January? A. I do not 
recall that the s.heriff hb.n "one any worK 

Q. \Vill you. usln;, any memoranda 
that you may have had prepared under 
your direction, state t·he shipments of 
goods to ::VIr. !Brownrig during that time? 

lVLR. PATTANGALL: I should sup­
pose, :l1r. Speaker, that this was not yet 
,brought within the rules or evidence. 

THE SPEAKER: Not technically, un­
less hE can testify from knowledge of his 
o"\vn. 

there except to serve warrants when J"LDGE CLE.-\. YES: The attorney gen· 
they were pUt into his hands. eral can bring testimony of half a ~ar-

Q. Since the first oJ J,,:;ua"y IS there locccl cf liquors. We found when these 
any occasion so far as you know to com- matters 'were examined that it would 
plain of Sheriff ,:YIouHon s w·or'k in vVest- necessitate the -bringing down here of 
brook? A. No. sir. The conditions have eight or nine books three feet long, 
been very good. eightei~n incJhes .wide and five or six 

JUDG FJ CLEAVES: I wllI say, Mr. inches thick, and then we would have 
President, to ,'ou and through you to the to go through those .books, one ,by one. 
,conventIOn that .we have other West- It wa'; thought that if We nacla tran­
brook witnesses, but the attorney gen- script from which th-e witness could state 
eral feels that it would ·be a repetition to us the correct amounts that this 
and we shall cut them out to save time. might be avoided and save some time. 
The ,Vest-brook witnesses may all be ex- If it is desired that we should bring 
cu:;ed. these books in, I suppose we are ,com-

.'4~' PATT_-\'NGALL: If l\fTs. Knight peued to do it. 
is .,ere, 1 wou." like not to have her ex- The SPEAKER: Counsel can sat-
'cuseL!. isfy themselves as to the corractnes" 

of the books. 
Mr. Feeney and :\Ir. Dyer, State's wit-

nesses, sworn. 

lVII'. George .J..'. Feeney. having 
duly sworn, testified as follows: 

Mr. PATTANGALL: I did not l:n­
derstand the witness to testify th~t 
even ne had made the transcript. 

been Judge CLEAVES: Were they mane 

Examination by Judge Cleaves, 
Q. ,V'hat is your ful. name? A. 

under your direction? A. By a clerk 
employed by the corporation. 

The SPEAKER: If the clerks were 
George F. Feeney. here and would testify to the correct-

Q. And your home is in Portland? A. ness of the transcript, would counsel 
Yes, sir. 

Q. "Vhat is your occupation? A. I am 
chief cIerI, in the Eastern Steamship 
<.-orpora tion. 

Q. And has the Eastern Steamship 
Corpora tion in its own office a record of 
snipments into Portland 'by the Eastern 
Steamship .Company and the Maine 
Steams,hlp Company? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Have yoU recently examined the 
invoices of shipments to Thomas A. 
Brownrig and Patrick A. Sullivan for 

still object? 
Mr. PATTANGALL: Except for 

this: If any part of the records were 
to be put in, we might want to put in 
all of them. I do not know what tim~ 
the shipments covel' 0." to what peo­
ple the goods were shipped. I shoul':!. 
prefer the records, of course. 

The SPEAKER: Of cours~, this 
particular line of testimony is nut ad­
missible, strictly. 

Judg;'e CLEAVES: Counsel under­
stands that these are shipments tv 
Bro"'nrig only? 

Mr. PATTANGALL: Yes. 

eaher one of lhose lines during the six 
months beginning October 1st, 1912, and 
ending the last day of March, this year? 
A. I have caused the records to be ex­
amined from January 1st to lMareh 31st, 
inclusive. 

Judge CLEAVES: Mr. Feeney, you 
will have to return here tomorrow 
with the originals. A. ShaH we 

of goods -to either one bring them or send the clerks who Q. 8-hipments 
of t·hose ·men? A. Yes, sir. made up the record? 
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Q. You may !,roduce the original 10. The other I don't remember. I 
records yourself. Were they made said the Monticello would do, and I 
from knowledge which you have of paid forty cents for it and walked ou~. 
your own? A. Yes, I can tel! from the Q. Now where next did you go? A. 
way the sheets were made up. I went to the Preble House bar 01: 

Q. I mean the original books, wer'" Congress street. 
they made up under your directiorr Q. Preble House? A. Yes, sir. 
and supervision? A. Yes, t super- Q. "What did you do there? 'What 
vised it; I told him how to get those did you see? A. I went into the bar 
record~. room, there were three men drinking at 

Q. I mean the books themselves the bar. And I asked the bartender 
from which you have taken the~e for a half-pint of good whiskey. He 
transcripts, were those books made said Green River \Vhiskey was good. I 
up under your supervision? A. ThfoY said that would do. And he filled the 
are not written books. They are orl.g- bottle and gave it to me and I paid him 
inal invoices pasted In. 40 cents. And another man came in 

Q. You bring those; those are tht while he was serving me, and he was 
original records, and Mr. Dyer, you serving him with a bottle and glass as 
can bring the originals, can you? A. I went out. 
(By Mr. Dyer) I can. Q. Did you have any difficulty, Mr. 

Judge CLEAVES: You will have Seeley, in getting into the bar room at 
to do it. the Preble House? A. No, sir. Men 

.---- were coming out as I ,vent in, and go-
LINUS SEELEY, being first duly 

sworn, testified as follows: 
Examination by Judge CLEAVES. 
Q. Your name is Linus Seeley? A. 

Yes, sir. 
Q. Where do you live? A. Port­

land. 
Q. \Vhat is your occupation? A. 

Builder. 
Q. For how many years have you 

lived in Portland? A. I first came to 
Portland in 1870, and I was a way from 
Portland about 16 years. 

Q. Now during the present yellr 
have you made any observations Ir. 
Portland with reference to places 
where intoxicating liquors have been 
sold?· A. Yes, sir. 

Q. \Yill you state as briefly as yot, 
can, Mr. Seeley, those observation'> 
and in vestiga tions? Be as brief ai< 
YOU can. A. On the 17th of March 
I went into a barroom on the corn!':' 
of Union and Fore streets, southwest 
corner. I went in and found seven 
men at the bar drinking, other mtn 
coming and going, and I asked for 'l. 

half pint of good whiskey and the bar­
tender who was behind the bar serv­
ing in a white jacket, set up four sam­
ples on the bar, different kinds of 
whiskey, put up in bottles. One was 
the Mt. Vernon, the other was the 
Honor Bright, and one was Monticel-

ing in as I came out. 
Q. Where next did you go? A. The 

next bar room I visited was down on 
India street. 

Q. Where, in a definite way? A. It 
is almost opposite the Mason Dispen­
sary, it is No. 66 or 68, I think 66. 

Q. \Vhat did you do and observe 
there? A. I went in and there were 
three men drinking at the bar and two 
others standing around, and I inquired 
for a laborer that I was looking for­
and I didn't ask for anS-' whiskey-and 
walked out; and he ddvised me to go to 
a barber shop, an Italian barber shop. 

Q. Did you see any evidence of traf­
fic there? A. Oh, yes, there were three 
men at the bar with glasses drinking 
when I was there, and a bar fairly well 
stocked Witll liquor, bottles. 

Q. "Found it fairly well stocked with 
liquor? A. Yes. 

Q. "Where else did you go? A. I 
went to a barroom on the northeast 
corner of Fore and Franklin streets, 
and I went in and inquired for the 
Harne man, and there ·were 14 men in 
that place. Sev"n Ot chern were lined 
up at the bar drinking. There were 
two of the men were colored. One of 
the men had a letter carrier's uniform 
on, and was drinking down his drink 
as I came in. 

Q. Now did you see any stock of 
liquors there at that place? A. Yes, 
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sir. fairly good stock back of the bar, 
and the bartender had a white jacket 
on, as they all had. 

Q. Now where next did you go and 
what did you do? A. That was all. I 
think. 

Q. Upon that day-now did you make 
any investigation after that time? 
A. No, the first two that I visited, I 
should have said were on the 17th of 
March, and the other two places that I 
visited were on the 26th of March. 
That was about all the investigation 
that I made. 

Q. Now did you see any watchers. 
or did you find any locked doors, or 
doors that were closed against you? 
A. No, sir, everything was all open 
and easy of access. 

Q. Since the 26th, J,ave you made 
any ohservations, that is, during the 
past week, with reference to these same 
places? A. No, I haven't. 

Cross-Examination by Mr. Gulliver. 

Q. How long have you been living 
in Portland, since your return from the 
West, Mr. Seeley? A. After I return­
ed from the West, I lived about three 
months, then I went to Bangor, and I 
was down in that vicinity about two 
years, and last February- have been 
permanently a year ago last February. 

Q. SO since February, 1912. you have 
been living in Portland almost contill­
uously? A. Yes. sir. 

Q. Under whose instructions did you 
make these visits, on March 17th? 
A. I was not instructed by anybody. 

Q. At whose request then? A. 'Yell, 
I went-between three and four weeks 
ago, I wrote to Gov. Haines, complain­
ing of the situation and asking him to 
use his power according to his promise 
in his inaugural address to abate the 
nuisances, and to g-ive to those who are 
derelict in their official duty what thoy 
deserved; and others wrote the same. 
And I went for the purpose of furnIsh­
ing evidence. 

Q. You wrote to the Governor first? 
A. Yes. 

Q. And after writing that letter you 
made tllese visits un March J7tJ-? A. 
Yes. sir. 

Q. Now at whose sug'gestlon did you 
m:tke the visits on March 17th? A. At 

the suggestion of Home man, a couple 
of my neighbors. 

Q. 'Vho were they? A. Mr. Martin 
Smart was onC'. Mr. Sturgis was the 
nther. 

Q. 'Vhich Mr. Sturgis? A. I think 
Ins name is Herbert H. 

Q. Do you know whetller he had any 
communication with Gov. Haines, or 
not? A. I think he had. I understooll 
h8 had. 

Q. He wrote also? A. I think he did. 
Q. And was it your pnrpos," and de­

pire in collecting this evidence to se­
cure the removal of Sheriff Moulton? 
A. My purpese was to furnish to GOY. 
Haines, or any convention which 110 
might appoint, t]1(' evidence that he re­
Quireu, that he said he required. 

Q. '1'(, r(,TI10Ve "h('riff Moulton? A. 
Gov. HaineS' answer was, that h() 
could not act on hearS'dY or gossip. he 
,,,anied facts. 

Q. I ask you if your purpose in col-
10cting this evidence was to secure the 
removal of Sheriff Moulton'? A. My 
purpos," W::iS to have the law enforced 
eVeIl if it required the removal of 
Sherifi' :Yloulton. 

Q. Diu you. before you sought to 
have: Sheriff Moulton removed. mak", 
',,,y l:omplaint to him in person? A. 
N0, sir. 

Q. Hayp you (,vel' made a c·jmplaint 
t,) him in pcrson? A. No, sir. 

Q. Do you know auybody that has' 
"\. X o. ilir, not personally; I have 
neard t,,8 t complaints were made. 

Q. 'Vho have you heard of who ever 
~nade a complaint to Sheriff Moultun? 
A. ] hc'ard that NJ:r. 'Vatson did. 

Q. You lwnrd that he did? A. Yes, 
sir. 

Q. ·What is his name? A. William 
1.Vatson. 

Q. Who else A. I don't remember 
now. 

Q Anybody" A. J don't remember 
at present. 

Q. You ('an't recall anybody else? 
"7ou understood from Mr. Watson that 
'Ie went to Sheriff Moulton personally" 
A. I did. 

Q. And made a complaint; A. I did 
understand it. 

Q Did he report to you whether any 
action was taken by the sheriff on tha:t 
complaiut? A. I understood there was 
none taken. 
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Q. Xvw In·fon- writing to Governor 
Eaines, did you mak" complaint or 
rf'quest enforcement through any oth­
er c,ou i:'(,E'.s? .A .. " No, sir. 

Q. IJ· CUlnbrrland cuunty '.) ~~. Xo, 
sir. 

:,. Hacl J (,u ('Yer be'c'n refused assist­
;:nee by thE' e(juntO' a ttorney or any of 
the judgeR of the courts ot Pm't!and" 
A. H I had not made complaint I 
eOll!d not haYl"l "Lcen refused. 

Q. An~v;('r my queslion'! A. No J 
never had ca11se; I never nl~lde co~­
plaint. 

Q. Did you have :iny reason to be­
l:"vp that the courts or county altor­
lH'Y ,,'oldel not li,..ten to your ('omplaint? 
A. T Jl:ld no time to \\';,ste in making 
c()mvlamtH, ~lnrl T didn't make them. 

(:!. Would that bp wasting time to 
('all tJw;se single sales to the attention 
pi County Attorne:', Bates'! A. I ne\'­
t'r f..!CvV i_\lunty _~tt()rn0Y r'::ates ancl 
l{nc\\- n(!tJJing cf him. ' 

Q. -,,\n:~\Yf'), my flueRtiOTI, if th8t 
,,'puH lw wasting 1imC": A. thir.k it 
\v()ulu. 

Q. 'Vhy'.' Do you mean to say that 
YOU think he would pay no attention 
to your complaint '? A. I don't know 
the man. 

Q. Answer my question? A. I had 
no time to waste looking him up. 

Q. Ans'H'r my 'lupstion? A. \Vhut 
i~ it? 

Q. Do you or not say that yo', 
think he would not have listened to 
your complaint? A. I don't say that 
I don't think he WOUld. 

Q. Then why do yOU not present 
it to him'? 
think. 

A. I have tolel you, I 

Q. How ure yOU going to waste 
~'our time by presenting it to M:-. 
Bates? A, I had no time to do it. I 
am a busy man. 

Q. How much time would it hay<, 
tak(m" A. I don't know where he 
lives, or where his office is. 

Q. Do you Imow where the County 
Building is? A. Yes. 

Q. Do you know that he has an 
office there? 

Attorney General 'WILSON: Just 
one moment. 

The SPEAKER: The examination 
appears to be more or less futile. We 
do not desire to abridge any rights 

of the defendant, if he is to be called 
a defendant, but we urge again that 
counsel restrict the scope of their ex­
amination. 

Mr. GULLIVER: I will say again, 
Mr. President, that the purpose of th" 
examination goes to the good faith of 
the witness. 

Attorney General WILSON: It 
seems to me it has gone far enough. 

'rhe SPEAKER: It appears to be 
far from the issue. Notwithstandin~ 
that, we don't want to abridge an; 
rights, and we admit the examination 
with the suggestion that it be abridg-prj' 
as much as possible. 

Mr. GULLIVER: I will accept the 
suggestion. 

Q. \Vhat did you do with the haJJ' 
pints of liquor which you purchased '? 
A. I took them home. 

Q. ,Vhere are they now? A. Here 
is one of them (showing bottle); here 
is the date. Here is the other 011'2 

(showing bottle). 
Q. Produco the other one? A. That 

is all. 
Q, You never have exhibited these 

pints of whiskey to Mr. Bates, have you'! 
A. No, Bil'. 

Q. Or to the judge of the municipal 
court? A. No, sir. 

Q. 'Vas it your purpose, not to see the 
la w enforced, and not to bring criminals 
to justice, but to prejudice the enforce­
ment of Sheriff Moulton? A. No, sir. 1 
considered it more effective to bring 'the 
evidence hero, and here was where 1 
brought it. I got it for this purpose. 

Q. Do you think this Legislature can 
Impose any penalty on the man who 
sold you that liquor? A. I am not a 
lawyer. I don't know anything about it. 

Q. Answer that question? A. I don't 
know anything about it. 

Q. You knew very well, did you not, 
that the judge of the municipal court 
could impose a penalty? A. He might, 
yes, and he might not. 

Q. Did you ever know him not to'! A. 
No. I am not acquainted with the histo­
ry of law in Portland at all. 

Q. And you have not sought to make 
yourself acquainted with it? A. No, sir. 

Q. In all that you have learned, and 
all that you have testified here in respect 
to conditions in the city of Portland, you 
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have made no complaints eX':2pt the evi­

dence that you have submitted to Gov-

ernor Haines? A. That is all. 

Center str('ct, at the ba·ck entrance, Cen­

ter street side, there were several men. 

The one nearest to me was drinking out 

of a glass mug a darl{-colored liquid, or 

ATTORNEY GENEHAL WILSOX: 
1 ch0colate-colored liquid, with at least a 

half inch of froth on top. "\Vhat it was 
will state, in order to be perfectly fair 

T dOll't know. I am not acquainted with 
with counsel on the other side, I thini, 

that this side has concluded that we 
the sluff myself. 

Q ;>io\\' that same 
will only ask Mr. Dyer, who represents visi~ No. ~38 Federal 

day, did yOll 
street? A. I 

the Boston & Maine to return as far as did. 

we are concerned; because we find that Q. And is there a bar in that 
in order to bring back the documentary place? A. As I went down Federal 
evidence on the other side to make it street, I saw a door and pushed it 

open, and I thought I smelled some­
thing of a foreign nature. I went 
up stairs. I saw it led up to thE 
second story, and in the frGnt room 
tlla t op-ened from the landing, to be 
COn2eryative, I should say that ther'} 
was at least a llOrse load of empty 
half pint bottles, in the bacl{ room, 
there was a man pealing an HPpl, 
with a paring machine. I said "I 
would like a half pint of whisky." 
He said "Rig'ht down stairs, the firsl 
door beloW." The first door below 
had a blnck "ig-n beside it with letters 
and fig-urRs painted on it with yellow 
paint, . and it read "236" and under­
neath "Oyster House"? 

admissible, it will cause much trouble 

and difficulty to bring it here, and we 
do not consider it worth while. So that 
so far as this side is concerned, we shall 
only ask Mr. Dyer to come tomorrow 
morning. 

ISAAC H. JOHNSO]'l;, being first duly 
swo·rn, testified as follows: 

Examination by JLL/~""" CLEAVES. 
Q. Your name is Isaac H. Johnson? 

A. That is my name. 
Q. You live In Portland? A. I do. 
Q. On the 19th day of March, this 

year, did you visit a place at No. 1 
Pleasant street? A. I did. 

Q. Did you there make any purchase 
of intoxicating liquor? A. I did. 

Q. What did you purehase? A. Half 
·a pint of whiskey, wha, I called for. 

I.,!. And did you find the place presided 
over by any ,bar tender? A. It was. 

Q. And was there any bar in it? A. 
There was a long bar. I should think it 
extended the whole length of the room. 

Q. And what did you Inquire for? A. 
I asked for a half pint of Whiskey. 

Q. Diu. you meet with any hesitancy 
in filling the order? A. He said, "What 
kind do you .want, the twenty-five cent 
kind, or the thirty-five cent kind 7" I 
said, "Well, your twenty-five cent kind 
;s pretty good, Isn't it?" "Oh, yes, yes," 
So I laid down the twenty-nve cents and 
he rcached right under the flar-ne didn't 
have to step out of his traeks-he 
·reached under the ·bar and took it out 
and handed it to me, and I 'come away. 

Q. Now did you see anyon' drinking 
in there? A. At the further end of the 
bar from where I went In-I entered on 

Q. Was there a bar in there'! A. 1 
entered it. There was a bar there, the 
other end. 

Q. Bartender? A. Bartender. 
Q. Did you mal<e any request for any 

liquor there? A. I did. 
Q. And did you obtain any? A. I did. 

Q. What did you inquire for? A. 

Well, I simply laid down a quarter. He 

didn't asl, me any questions or say any­

thing one way or the other, only filled 

my order. 
Q. You laid do<\\'n a quarter, put it on 

tlle uar? A. And he handed me a hair 
pint of whiskey. A.bout middle w.ay . of 
the bar there were two men drmkmg 
from tall black bottles, round bottles, 
about three inches in diameter with a 

long neck. 
Q. That Is, two men were taking a 

drink that they had poured from a long­
necker! A. Yes, sir. 
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Cross- Examination by Mr. Pattangall. 
Q. Mr. Johnson, when ,vas it yo:.! 

made these purchases? A. On Wed­
nesday, March 19, 1913. 

Q. And for what purpose did you 
make them? A. \Vell, I had an im· 
pression-I was in search of knowl­
edge-I had an impression that one 
had to giVe some secret sign or 
cabalistic word to the bar tender in 
Portland in order to purchase in­
toxicating liquors. and the question I 
wanted settled \vas-does the pro­
hibitory law prohibit me and others 
not initiated, and 1 thought if it did it 
"vas doing SOIYle good. 

Q. Did you discover that it was do­
ing any good? A. 'Well, no, I didn't. 

Q. Mr. Johnson, do you live ;11 
Portland right along? A. I have 
lived in Portland smce the city of 
Deering was changed to Portland. 

Q. And in a general way you are 
'.yell acquainted \\'ith the city, of 
course. A. I am quite we'll acquaint­
ed, have been doing business there for 
eighteen years. 

Q. What business? A. am a 
joiner and ,york on concrete cellars 
and sidewalks. 

Q. That takes you of course into 
various parts of the city into different 
buildings and around different buil(l­
ings'! A. Around different llUil(lin"s. 

(;!. You li\'ed in Portland, did you, 
during all of the time of Sheriff Pear­
son's t\\'o years' adnlinistration'? .r\. 
I built the house where I am li\'in~ 
and have lived in it 35 years. 

Q. During that particular two 
years you were living there all the 
time? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And wcre generally famili'll' 
with conditions about Portland, wen. 
you not'? A. Generally. 

Q. And up to March 19, from wha'. 
you had observed in Portland, you be­
lieved that things were So conducted 
that the only way a man could get 01 

drink was by giving some signs or 
cabalistic words? A. I had never 
had any use for it, so I didn't know 

Q. You really believed that'? >\. 
\Ye seemed to han~ quite a slringen~ 

la w. and I didn't see how--
Q. \Vhen you testifipd-and of 

course your testimony is being given 

frankly and under oath-that you di,l 
believe that up to that time YOU had 
thought that the only way to get 
liquor was by signs and cabalistic 
\\'ords, you \veren't jesting, you 'vcr': 
telling what you believed? A. Yes, 
sir. 

Q. And the only purpose you had in 
buying these two half pints was tD 
find out whether that was So or not-· 
is that right? A. Partly. 

Q. That is the only purpose you 
ha\'e given us yet-what other pur­
pose did you have? A. A friend of. 
mine, knowing that I was a temper­
ance man, said to me a few days be­
fore "Are you satisfied with the way 
that the prohibitory law is enforced 
in this county? I answered "1 don't. 
know much about how it is enforced, 
only by hearsay." "'Veil," he says, 
"why don't yoU find out?" I sayc', 
"I haven't got the time. I -don't know 
how to find out." 

Q. vVho was this friends of your,,? 
A. Freeman Lamb. 

Q. So it was partly at his sugges­
tion that you went about to find thesp 
t,\-O half pints '? A. He informed me 
that Governor Haines was willing to 
see that the law was enforced if he 
had evidence that it wasn't enforced. 

Q. Oh, I see. A. I told him I 
didn't have time to attend to it. 

Q. Then it was at the suggestion-­
A. That was what started me, yes. 

Q. It was at the suggestion of 
Freeman Lamb that the Governo,· 
WGulc1 do something in Cumberland if 
he hUd the evidence that caused you 
to go and buy your two half pints Gf 
whiskey, was it? A. After I thought 
it over, why I began to think that 1 
would like to know whether it was en­
forced or not, and I thought it wouhl 
be quite an interesting trip. 

Q. You have lived there right 
along, and you hadn't seen any occa­
sion to go out and make any in­
(luil'ies or in,-estigations until you got 
word from the Governor that they 
wanted to be made-is that right ': 
A. I saw the evidence around of men 
intoxicated; I don't know where thpJ! 
got it. 

Q. 'Vhen your friend first askpd ~f 
you were satisfied with conditions in 
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Cumberland county, you answered 
that you didn't know much about it'" 
A. I meant that I never had investi­
gated it. 

Q. Haven't you Haid that you Llidn'l 
know much about it? 

Judge CLEAVES: He said by hear­
say was the condition he meant. 

A. Of course I knew also that J 
had seen drunken men around, h,lt 
where they got it I don't know .. 

Q. During the 35 years you lived ;0 
Portland, every year you saw some 
drunkenness around, without regard t," 
who the sheriff was? A. Yes. 

Q. And nothing that you havE' 
heard, no hearsay that had come to 
you prior to the 19th of March, caused 
you to either make any inquiries your­
self, or to request the sheriff or county 
attorney or anybody else to make any, 
isn't that true? You didn't go to the 
sheriff or make any complaint at any 
time? A. No, I didn't know any­
thing about what the law was. I 
didn't look into the matter enough to 
~know. 

Q. You never made any complaint 
.of any kind to the sheriff, did yon? 
A. I did not. 

Q. Nor to the county attorney'! A. 
I did not. 

Q. Not to anybody else', A. Xo, I 
did not, I didn't suppose I had got to. 

Q. \Vell, you didn't dill you'! A. 
No, I didn't, 

Q. Until your friend caUl(' to you 
and askE'd you to make this investiga­
tion in order that Governor Haine~ 
might be, supplied with some testi­
mony, you hadn't done anything in 
tl<e matter at nil, had you? A. 1 
hadn't, 

Q. And then you went to two places 
to buy liquor, How did you happen to 
go to those two particular places: 
A, \Vell, J went down Center stred. 1 
knew there were saloons down that 
way. I went down on the right hand 
side and I didn't see any evidenu s ot 
places being opene:l there until I got 
down to the corner. There was a 
tight board, sheathed Ul' fence. with 
the door open where they go in, and 
J went in there. 

Q. \Vhen you say you went down 
Center street, anrl didn't see any evi-

denees of places being open until yOU 
got to the corner, what corner do YOU 
mean? A. Th" corner of Center and 
Pleasant street. 

Q. And from what point did you 
enter Center street'? A. I entered the 
s:ctloon from the back entrance. 

Q. ~No, you misunderstand me. 
\Vhat street were you on previous to 
your going onto Center street? A. I 
came down from Congress street. 

Q. Did Y'JU pass Free streH; in go­
ing that way would you pass the cor­
ner of Center and Free? A. I did. 

Q. Will you look at this diagram 
that is marked House Document No. 
667. That is Free street at the top of 
the document. This (indicating) is 
Fore street, and Pleasant at the bot­
tom, Now as I understand it, you 
came down Congress right by Free 
street and along on Center street un .. 
til you got to the corner of Pleasant 
and Center-iR that right? A. Yes, 
sir. 

Q. Anel passed these places that 
are marked in black on the right hand 
side of Center street without seeing 
anything that would lead you to be­
lieve they were rum shops A. Those 
wpre on the left hand si<10; I came 
drown on the right hand side. 

Q. Did you see anything about 
those places that caused you to look 
at them or examine them or go into 
them? A. I didn't notice them at ali. 

Q. But you were looking for a bar 
room. A. .r was looldng for a bar 
room. 

Q. You went by four of these places 
that have been marked blacl~ in the di­
ngram looking for a bar room, and 
S[t'" nothing' at all about them, isn't 
tllat right? A. I didn't notice them 
at all. 2'.1y 1'on was ~with me and we 
were talking:. ""Vhen I was in th", 
milk business I knew that there was 
a saloon there. 

Q. What did you do with the two 
half pints of whiskey? A. ThICY are 
in the city and I can produce them. 

Q. I don·t want them. You mean 
in the city of Augusta'? A. I mean 
in thi" city of Portland. 

Q. \V-hat means did ~'ou take to in­
form the Governor of Maine that yOll 
had sucC'eederl in buying two halt 
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pints of whiskey in Portland? A. I A. I did not; I am not in the political 
had three. I visited another place. 1 businE'ss. 
visited three places and had three Q. I suppose your public officials 
samples. are known to sonle of your citizens 

Q. 1 want to know, 3.fter you got who are not in the political business. 
the three samples what means did you Did it eyer occur to you that if it was 
take to inf0rm the Governor of Maine your duty to do something to better 
that you had sUl!ceeded in buying conditions there that perhaps as much 
three half pints of whiskey in Port- could be accomplished by speaking to 
land? A. I went down to Lawyer County Attorney Bates about it as by 
Knowlton and I gave him the three going to saloons and buying three 
half pints of whiskey, and labeled half pints of whiskey to make evi­
each one from the place that it came dence for the Governor? A. I never 
from and the day that I got it. I sup- inquired the course of procedure in 
pose he has it now. such cases; I knew nothing about it. 

Q. \Vhat means did you take to in- Q. And you don't know anything 
form the Governor about it? A. Well about conditions in the city of Port­
I was informed that if I made an affi- land except in so far as you have re­
davit then;, that that was all that lated them and by hearsay? A. That 
was necessary, that he had that mat- is all. 
ter in charge. Q. Were you familiar with condi-

Q. Representing the people who tions in Portland in 1910, when the 
wanted the investigation? A. Yes, Sturgis deputies were there? A. I 

Q. Mr. Knowlton has be811 for years lived there in Portland. 
the attorney for the Civic League in Q. And had you any knowledge of 
Portland? A. I don't know. conditions then with regard to liquor 

Q. Had you ever, previous to that 
timE', been engaged in the work of a 
liquor 'spotter'! A. Never in my life. 
'l'hat was the first time 1 ever was in 
a saloon in the city of Portland. 

Q. And you wouldn't have done 
that it your friend hadn't made the 
request of you that day? A. I sup­
pose I shouldn't, but when I began to 
think it over, I didn't know but what 
it was my duty to do something if 1 
could. 1 had heard considerable talk 
about the lax way that t[,e law was 
enforced, and as I thought it over I 
thought perhaps it might b,; my duty. 

Q. Mr. Johnson, do you know Sher­
iff lI.loulton by sight. A. I don't, nev­
<:;r saw the man until I saw him here. 

Q. Do you know County Attorne) 
Butes by sig'ht? Sam Bates? A. 
\Vha t is his initial, S. B? 

Q. Samuel L. Bates, County Attor­
ney. A. I think I supplied the man 
with milk when .T was in the milk 
business. I had an S. L. Bates. 

Q. Did you know Judge Connolly, 
Joseph E. F. Connolly? A. I did not. 

Q. Don't you know who he is? A. 
I know who he is. 

Q. Did you know the Judg-e of your 
Municipal Court, John F. A. Merrill7 

sc>llers? A. Only what I saw in ac­
counts in the papers of seizures and 
such as that. 

Q. Your name is not among the pe­
titionenl for Sheriff Moulton's remov­
al, is it? A. No, sir. 

Q. And you have no knowledge 
a bout the circulating of that petition? 
A. No, I didn't happen to see it. 

Q. You never saw it? A. No. 
C!. You didn't know when it was 

drcula ted? A. No, sir. 
THOMAS I. JORDAN. called for the 

prosecution, sworn, in answer to ques­
tions by Judge Cleaves, testified as 
f,Jl!ows: 

Q. You live in Portland? A. I do. 
Q. You are a member of the firm of 

Jordan and Kimball? A. I am. 
Q. Engaged in what business? A. 

Fruit and produce. 
Q. And formerly and until recently 

at 11 Exchange street? A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Last fall did you observe that 

the place at No.9 Exchange street waE! 
being fitted up for a bar room? A. I 
did. 

Q. And without going into too 
much detail, what did you discover, 
what caused you to know that it was 
bdng fitted for a bar room? A. I 
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could see that the bar was being built 
th€re, and there was a partition put 
up across the room about half way 
back I should say ten feet from the 
front. 

Q. One of those familiar partitions 
that screen in the front part of thee 
building SC) that YOU can't see into th8 
bar behind? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Did Jordan and Kimball cor,l­
plain to Sheriff Moulton in regard to 
it? A. They did. 

Q. And sometime during the tim" 
it was being fitted up last fall? A. 
Yes, sir. 

Q. Has ever any seizure or ,earch 
or apparent effort to search or seize 
been made from the time you made 
your complaint until you went aWit,· 
from that neighborhood yery recent­
ly? A. Not to my kno\yledge. 

Q. During the time after it was 
fitted up and until you moved a wac:, 
was it being occupied? A. Do you 
mean previous to the time it was 
fitted up? 

Q. No, after it was fitted up. A. 
No, sir. 

Q. No. 9 Exchange street hasn·t 
been occupied during the fall and 
winter? A. Not after they began to 
fit it up until they went into it them­
selves. 

Q. That is what I mean. After it 
was fitted up they went into it? A. 
Certainly. 

Q. 'Vho? A. Ross and Carey. 
Q. ,\Vhat business did they carry 

on there? A. They carried all a rum 
business. 

Q. And up to how recent a time 
have YOU observed them carrying on a 
rum business there? A. I think it 
was some time in Decemoer whe.l 
they began, I couldn·t tell exactly but 
I think so. 

Q. And continued up to the time 
you moved a way, within a short time? 
A. Yes, sir. 

Q. How openly did they carryon 
that business? A. Anybody that 
wanted anything could go in and get 
it. There was no one at the door to 
prevent it, and the doors were open. 
I know of no restrictions whatever. 

Q. And as you observed it, did they 
appear to be getting a fair share of the 

trade? A. I think so, I was located 
so that I could see them going in th;:, 
back door and the front door. -

Cross-examination by Mr. Pattangall. 
Q. Now can you tell when it wa.3 

that you spoke to Sheriff Moulton 
about this? A. I COUldn't tell the ex­
act date, but I think it was along the 
first of December. 

Q. ,\Vhere did you see him? A. I 
didn't see him, I telephoned him. 

Q. Called him on the telephone 
from your place of business? A. 
Yes, sir. 

Q. And what did you say to him? 
A. ,\Ve asked for Sheriff Moulton and 
asked him if he knew there was H. 

place being fitted up at No. 9 Ex­
change street for a rum shop and he 
didn't allow that he knew it, but we 
informed him that that was the fact 
and that we would like to have hhn 
stop it, we didn't want it there. 

Q. Any further conversation about 
it, Of' is that the SUbstance of it? A •. 
Simply that he said that if we didn't. 
\\'tlnt it there we shouldn't have it 
there. 

Q. Xow at that time when you 
spoke to him nothing had been done 
tha t would have been a ground for 
complaint against these people? A. 
No, sir. 

Q. And that was about the first of 
the month'! A. About the first or 
December, 1 think. 

Q. At any rate in the early part of 
·the month. A. It was in the early 
part "f the winter. 

Q. Is that the place where there 
was formerly a bond office or insur­
anee office? A. As near as can 
recollect Hoyt's Express was there, 
followed by a man that had an agency 
for a filterer, and then I think Louis 
A. Goudy occupied it for a short time 
as an agency for an automobile con­
cern. 

Q. SO far as the front has bee.l 
concerned, that hasn't been changed? 
A. It hasn't been changed. 

Q. The changes that were made in 
December were in the interior of the 
building? A. In the interior. 

Q. Do you know who owns the 
building? A. James P. Baxter--T 
• 
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won't say ,,'hether he owns it or 
whether it is Perci\'al, his son. 

Q. Either James P. Baxter Or Per­
cival P. Baxter owns the building? 
A. One of them I think owns the 
building. I made a complaint to Per­
cival P. Baxter at about the same 
time, I think three or four days pre­
vious to that. 

Q. You made a complaint to Perci­
val P. Baxter before you complained 
to Mr. Moulton? A. Before I com­
plained to Mr. Moulton. 

Q. And what response did you get 
to that'! A. Practically that it was 
none of our business what was done 
there. 

Q. Did the Sheriff tell you that if 
anything of the sort started up there 
he would look after it '! A. That WilS 

all. 
Q. After they started in the liquor 

business, did you make any further 
complaint to anybody? A. I made no 
further complaint to anybody. 

Q. As I undel'stood you they start2'1 
some time the latter part of Decem­
ber? A. I am quite positive that it 
was the latter part of December. If 
I am not very much mistaken the 
place was closed up over Christmas. 

FRANKLIN K. DEEM, called by 
the pro~E.'eution, s\vorn. in answer to 
questions l:)Y Judge Clcaves, testified 
as fcllows: 

Q. You are a clergyn1an in Port­
land? ,\. I am. 

Q. On the 18th day of March (lid 
you makc any purchase of intoxicat­
ing liquors in the city of Portland? 
A. I did. 

Q. At what place? "\. Guppy's dru,; 
store. 

Q. \Vhat did you purchase'! A. Halt 
pint of whiskey. 

Q. A t any other places in the city ot 
Portland during the month of :March, 
did you make any purchases of liquor'! 
A. At a place which I understood is 
either 102 or 104 Preble street. 

Q. \Vhat did you purchase there? ,\. 

only question asked was 25 cents. I used 
the expression 25 cents in my request. 1 
asked "Let me have a half pint of 25 
cent whiskey," and the clerk didn't seem 
to quite catch that 25 cents, and he said 
"25 cents"? And that was the only woru 
he said. 

Q. lJid you notice where he got the 
liquor from'? A. He reached under the 
bar very near \vhere he ",~as standing, 
he didn't have to change his steps. 

Q. \Vere there any people in there 
drinking at the time? A. I two 
men leaving the bar just as I went in, 
but I can·t testify that they had been 
drinking. 

Q. Did you visit allY other places at 
that same time? A. No sir. 

Q. Did you in the month of 
A. No sir. 

Q. And }ulye.you during the 
year? A. No sir. 

::\larch .? 

present 

Q. Hav(~ you Hlade any observation 
with reference to any other places? A. 
Yes, sir, I have stood on the outside at 
places that ha\'e been said to be rum 
Hhop~. or ,,'here rum is sold in some 
other way, ",'hether there ,,'as a bar 
there or not, and have a bserved people 
going in and out in a way that seemed 
to indicate that they were getting some­
thing to drink. They were in there just 
about long enough and they would come 
out wiping their mouths with their hand-
l\:erchiefs. 

Q. Have you seen any people C0111e 

out under the influence of liquor? A. Not 
in particular, sometimes a little tall\:y. 
but not pel'haps intoxicated. 

Cross-Examination by Mr. Pattangall. 
Q. Mr. nf~eln, your 

Portland? A. Yes sir. 
residence Is 

Q. .And you are a clergynuln? A. 
sir. 

in 

Yes 

Q. ,Vhat churCh do you have charge 
of there? A. I have no church in Port­
land at the present time. I have been 
sick and in the hospital, but at the 
present time I have no church. I set­
tled in the town of Gorham a little 0\'('1' 

A half pint of whiskey. two years ago to have my daughter in 
Q. What did you inquire for'? A. Half school. 

pint of whiskey. Q. How long has it been since you 
Q. And did you meet with any resis- came out of the hospital? ,X. The 10th 

tance or refusal, or how were you of April, two years next. 
served? A. I was served promptly, The Q. 1911? A. 1911. 
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Q. What time in March was it that Q. And of course not only as ~ 
you made these two trips. A. MarCtl citizen, but in connection with your 
18 and 19, two different days, the 18th church work? A. Sure. 
at the Guppy drug store, and the 19th 
at the Hollywood. 

Q. Were you acquainted at th0 
Guppy drug store? A. I knew them 
by sight when I saw them, just knew 
that that was their place of busine,;s. 
I have no personal acquaintance with 
them. 

Q. Are you acquainted with Sheriff 
Moulton? A. No, sir. 

Q. Or with the county attorney, 
Mr. Bates? A. Not personally with 
either of them. 

Q. You know them both by sight? 
A. I don't think I would know the 

Q. You haven't been in there to attorney, I mean to say Mr. Bates, 

buy drugs? A. I have been in there 
occasionally, but I don't have occasion 
for that kind of trade much, and 
haven't been in their place hardly any. 

Q. How did you happen to go in 
there? A. The sugge;tion was made. 

unless there was something more to 
place him. If I saw him entirely 
a way from his place of business or 
out of the city I don't think I would 
know him. 

Q. There wasn't anything about 
Guppy's drug store that would lead 

Q. Who by? A. Martin Smart, anybody in going by it or into it tf) 
my brother-in-law, and he in connec- have any idea that it was a plac03 
tion with this same Mr. Sturgis whose where liquor was sold, is there? It 

name has been mentioned were 1001(- looks like any drug store? A. It 
ing for such evidence. 

Q. Mr. Herbert Sturgis? A. Yes, 
sir. 

Q. And he requested you to assist 
in it? A. Mr. Smart did. 

Q. So that you procured the two 
purchases of whiskey for the purpose 
of being able to testify in regard to 
it? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Now I take it that you hav~ 

made no complaint to the city au­
thorities with regard to liquor sellin3' 
in Portland? A. No, sir. 

Q. Or to the county authorities? 
A. No, sir. 

Q. Nor to the court? A. No, sir. 

Q. During the two years that you 
have lived there? A. No, sir. 

Q. And you are interested, are you 
not, in temperance work? A. Yes, 
sir. 

Q. And in having things in the city 
run as nearly right as possible? A. 
Correct. 

looks like any drug store. 

Q. A good, well furnished drug 

store? A. 0 yes, no sign up with 
regard to liquors or anything of tha~ 

kind. 

Q. Did anybody suggest to you 
what places you should go to? A. 
Yes, sir. 

Q. Who? A. Mr. Smart. 

Q. Told you to go to Guppy's? A. 
Yes, sir. 

Q. And down to the Hollywood? 
A. Yes, sir. 

Q. You don't know anything about 
a petition being circulated to have 
Sheriff Moulton removed? A. I un­
derstood afterward that such a peti­
tion had been circulated. I didn't 
know at the time. 

Q. You knew nothing about it at 
the time it was circulated? A. No. 

On motion of Mr. Wheeler of South 
Paris, a recess was taken until 8 P. M. 
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After Recess. 
The PRESIDE:-\T: The ~ecretary 

the convention will call the roll of 
convention. 

Q. Where do you live? A. No. 341 
of Congress street, Portland. 

tne 

PRESENT-Sen. Allan of Washington, 
Sen. Allen, of Kennebec, Allen of Ma­
chias, Austin, Sen. Bailey, Hass, BenD, 
Benton, Boland, Boman, Bowler, toen. 
Boynton, Bragdon of toullivan, Bragdon 
of York, Brennan, Bucklin, Hen. Bur­
leigh, Butler, Chadbourne, Sen. Chase, 
Chick, Churchill, Clark of Portland, 
Clark of N. Portland, Cochran, toen. Col­
by, Sen. Cole, Cook, Crowell, Currier, 
Cyr, Descoteaux, Doherty, Dresser, Dun­
bar, Dunton, Durgin, Sen. Dutton, Eaton, 
l~ldrldge, Elliott, Emerson, Farnham, 
Farrar, Sen. 1<'laherty, Folsom, Franck, 
Gallagher, Goodwin, Gordon, Greenleaf 
of Auburn, Greenleaf of Otis field, Han­
cock, Harman, Harper, Harriman, Has­
kell, Sen. Hastings, Sen. Hersey, Hig­
gins, Hogan, Hutchins, Irving, Jenkins, 
Sen. Jillson, Johnson, Jones, Kehoe, Kel­
leher of Portland, Kimball, Leader, 
Leary, LeBel, Libby, toen. Manslield, 
Marston, Mason, Mathieson, Sen. Max­
well of 8agadahoc, Maxwell of Booth­
bay Harbor, Maybury, McBride, McFad­
den, Merrill, Metcalf, Mildon, toen. Milli­
ken, Mitchell of Kittery, Mitchel! of 
Newport, Mooer~, Sen. Morey, Morgan, 
Morrison, Morse, 8en. Murphy, l\ute, 
O'Connell, Sen. l'ackard of Knox, Pack­
ard of :-\ewburg, Sen. Patten of Han­
cock, PeaCOCk, Pp.aks, Pendleton, Peters, 
Peterson, Pitcher, Putnam, Quinn, Sen. 
Reynolds of Kennebec, Reynolds of 
L,ewiston, Sen. Richardson of Penob~cot, 
Richardson of Canton, Ricker, Roberts, 
Robinson, Rousseau, Hanborn, Sanderson, 
Sargent, Scates, Skelton, Skillin, Sen. 
Smith of Penobscot, Smith of Auburn, 
tomith of Patten, Hmith of l'resque Isle, 
Snow, Spencer, Sprague, Sen. ::stearns, 
Stevens, Stuart, Sturgis, ':;witt, Taylor, 
Thombs, Tobey, 'fryon, Twombly, Um­
phrey, Violette, Sen. Walker, \Vashburll, 
Waterhouse, Wheeler, \,\,inchenbaugh. 
Sen. vYing, Wbe. 

ABSENT-Bither, Brown, Sen. Clark 
of York, Sen. Conant, Connor:;, I)avi.s, 
Donovan, Eastluan, gen. En1try, Estes, 
Gamache, Gardner, Sen. l-lagerthy, 
Haines, Hodsdon, Jennings, Kelleher ot 
Waterville, La"TY, Leveille, Morneau, 
Sen. Moulton, Newbert, Plummer, Price. 
Ramsay, Rolfe, Sherman, Smith of Pitts­
field, Stanley, Stetson, Swett, Thompson, 
Trimble, Yeaton. 

The PHl<~SIDE"T: A call of the roll 
l'(,\'tals the rref'en('e of 145 members of 

HARFlY A. KHAMER, called and 
HWU1'n, tt'Htitled: 

Fy Mr. eLF-AVES: 

Q. Whclt is your name? A. Harry A. 
Kramer. 

Q. \Vhere ~re you employeu? A. At 
thc Grand Trunk Raily\ ay, Portland. 

Q. And during the pr.csent year hav':! 
you been 'cmployed at tile Grand 
Trunk? A. For the last eight months. 

Q. Contining yourself to the present 
year, have you been to the Preble 
HOllse bar? A. I have, sir. 

Q. How many ti:nes? A. "'ell, about 
three times. 

Q. Upon those occasions what have 
you observed with regard to the sale or 
intoxicating liquors over that bar'! A. 
Well, there was quite a number of men 
In there drinking. 

Q. What kind of liquor? A. Beer and 
whiskey. 

Q. Beer and whiskey both? A. Yes, 
sir. 

Q. Ha \'e you been into the Temple 
Hotel': A. I will take that back. It was 
beer; I didn't see any whiskey. 

Q. Didn't see any whiskey at the 
Preble House? A. No, sir; no whiskey 
:It the Preble House. 

Q. H'LVe you been into the Temple 
H0tel thil') ypar? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. How many times'! A. I should say 
half a dozen times. 

Q. How many bar tenders Lave they 
got? A. rewu of them. 

Q. And have you known of both beer 
and whiskey being purcha.sed and 
drank therp'! .. A .. Yes, sir. 

Q. Upon each of those occasions? A. 
On (~ach. YE'H. 

Q. Now, at the corner of Fore and 
Imlla streets, have you been into that 
piaee'.' A. Yes, sir. 

Huw many times since the tirst of 
January'? .A. Two or three times. 

And upon any cr cdl of those occa­
sions have you seen intoxicating liquors 
sold and drank? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Now, have you been into the Hol­
)YW(}o<l on PreblE' street since the first 
uf Janwll'Y';' A. I couldn't tell you the 
namEO: I havE' been on one; I wouldn't 
know it hy that. name; I can give you 
the location of it if that is the place. 

(~. On Preble street about No. 102 or 
Xo. 104, place pretty well fixed up? A. 
OlI, on Preble street? 

Q. Yes, on Preble s1.ret·t. A. No. 
Q. Ha vE'n't been at the Hollywood? A. 

::'\0, I ha"c not. 
Q. Have you been at the New Adams 

House? A. I have, 8;1'. 
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Q. -Where is that located? A. Directly 
across from the Temple Hotd. 

Q. And at that place how many times 
hayc you been in there'? A. Four or fiv~ 
tinles. 

Q. And upon each of those occasions 
have you seen intoxica ting Iilluors sold 
and drank upon the premises': A. I have 

Q. I-Iav" you been into Pat Sullivan'S 
place, or at the Sullivan place on tl1" 
COl'llPr of C'cnter and Free streets'? A. 
I wouldr.'t ~ay for sure; I am rather 
iLciined to think I have been, but I 
wouldn't say. 

Q. P,'rhaps it might have been before 
tne first of January? A. I think it 
was; it has been a long time_ 

Q_ How long should you say" A. Wei!, 
I wouldr .. t say about that. 

Q. Prior to th" first of January, sa::. 
for three months befor" the first of 
January, have nil these lllHees that you 
have sp')kcr, of been used as places 
where intoxicating JiquC'rs "'(ere sold? 
1-\. r~ ('8" sjr. 

Cross- Examination. 
By Mr. PATT'ANGALL: 
Q_ '''11<1 t is your business, Harry? ,\. 

Railroading. 
Q. What doing in tlle railroad'? A_ 

Checking. s,\-itch chH;k.ing. 
Q. At the Grand Trunk? A Yes, :;ir_ 
Q. And v"U lin' in Portland right 

along'? A. Yes, sir. 
Q_ How long heLve you Iin·d there" 

A. A buut two years. 
Q. You ar" nnt an oflicer Gf tlle civ­

ic league, are yon? A. Sir? 
Q. Al·e you connected ,,-itll the civi,; 

lea gUl'? A. No, sir_ 
Q_ You didn't makc these trips tilat 

you have spoken of at the l'(·quest of 
the Gov<"l'nol', (lid you" A. No, sir. 

Q. And didn't preserve the sampl-.'s 
that you took at the different bars? A. 
No. sir. 

Q. Just went in to buy a drink, did, 
you"? A. Yes, ~ir. 

Q_ An, you 'lcqn'linted with Mr. SeE l­
ey'-· A. No, sir. 

Q. The man ,,'110 testified here? A 
No, sir. 

Q. Not aC(luainted with lvIr. Seeley 'n 
cdl? A_ Only jUi't met him at this con­
v(-ntion; outside of that I haven't 
known him. 

eX:.1ct date for the simple reason that 
I 'lidn'( go there with the intention 
of collecting any evidence for any par­
tieul:,r case; tloprefore I weuldn't make, 
note of it, and I couldn't tell you tll'2 
dale \,'h0n I hayp been there. 

Q- 'Vill yO~1 gi,'e me pretty nearlv 
the date".' A. 'Veil, it was the last ,,]' 
around the first of the year. 

Q_ Ei ther the last of last year c,r t1il' 
first of this year? A. Yes, sir: ar,)und 
that time. 

Q. "Vh~D you Wel'(, in there last? Pc­
Ye~. sir. 

Q_ And you have been there you say 
three times? A. 'r",o r,r th1'(-'(, times 

Q_ Two or three times and the other 
times of course WE're l1a2k 01 t!1at? A. 
-Y"es, s.lr. 

Q. In the fall? A. Y,-'s, sometime ill 
the fall. 

Q. Are you acquainted Wit'l Sheriff 
")oulton? A. No, sir. 

e;!- N·:'yfI' !lave mC't Ilhn? A. No, sil'; 
nev('r ha ye met him. 

Q_ I tc,ke it that you didn't make 
Hny complRint to him about thesc con­
ditions tll"t you found at the plRces 
you \YE'nt to") A. ~o, s,il". 

Q. Lr to anybody else? A. No, sir. 
Q_ ,yhen did you first communicate the 

fact to any official that you had dreLnk 
betel' at (,he Temple 'House, at the Preble 
House. at Eagan's place and the Adams 
House? A. T never did. 

Q_ Not until you just testified? A. 
FntiI-well, T was called over ·the phone. 

Q. ,'\\'ho ,loy'? A. By a lawyer. 
Q. \Vho was it? A_ It was the con­

~tahle T think. 
Q. \Vhat? A. It was the constable. 
Q. The constable? A. I didn't know 

who it was really, at first. 
Q. At first? 'Yell, did you find out 

afterwards who it was? A. I went up 
intcy lhebuilding to 'his office. 

Q. \Vho was it? 'Vhose office did you 
go UP into the building to? \Vhose offi·ce 
was it you were called up into? A. \Val­
lace-I t.hink the name is 'Va!lace; that 
is as near as I can tell you. 

'Yhat H his Dusiness? A_ 'Yell, under­
neath it is written ·constable, I think. 

Q. Constable where? A. Portland. 
Q. Constable in tho city of Portland-

A. Yes. sir. 

Q. "Vhpn werE' 
Hou:-;e last? A_ I 

you in the Prebl,~ Q- 'Yhat is his first name, do you 
couldn't give you any know? A. Frank, I .think. 
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Q. You are not acquainted with him 
at all? A. No, sir. 

Q. Or he with you? A. No, sir. 
Q. \\'hen was it he'called you up and 

aS'ked you to come to his office? ... ~. I 
don't know if he called me up or not; 1 
.'ihollldn·t say that he did. 

Q. \'v',hen was it that somebody called 
you up and in response to the call you 
went to his office'? A. The man th,lt 
callf'll me up? 

"l. Oh, no. I will try to make mysel: 
audible'. \Vhen was it tha' somebody 
'called you up? A. Oh, when it was. 

Q. And in response to the call you 
\'I,-"t'llt to Frank \V"al~ace's office? A. Fri­
day. 

(2. Last Friday? A. Yes, last Friday. 
Q. And ,,'as th"re any,body then, ex­

cept this 'constable? A. There ,was. 
Q. \\'ho was it" .\. A couple of gen­

tlemen tllere. 
Q. \\'hat were their names? A. I 

~ouldn't tell you. 
Q. Strangers to you? A. Yes, :;il'. 
'-t. Anu Frank \Vallace \vas a strang-('l' 

,to you? A. He was; yes, M,r. 
Q. AI"! tllPl'c you told those three' 

strangers ,whl~re you had been to buy 
Deer, did you'? .\. They asked me if I 
had been to these place;.;, that was alL 

Q. \\'hat ptec"s': .\. In thes(' differ­
ent places. 

Q. iell ,Inf', ·what plac(>s did they a~k 
you if you had be-ell in? Di(l thf'Y 'ask 
you if you hfHl he"'l in tlH~ Prr"ble 
House? A. Y('s, sir. 

Q. And into }~ag',ul'S pIa",,'? .\. \\'ell. 
1J;' the name [ couhln't tell you. 

Q. They aoked you the street probab-

in any other places'? A. Some other 
place::;; Y('.:::i, :::;ir. 

(1. Ane] you told them you had? A. 
Yl':-l sir. 

Q. "\!l(] e,'cry place they asked you 
thry struck a plaee you had been in, did 
they? A. Well, no; they Ctldn't. 

(.1. 'What place did they ask you about 
that you hadn't been in? A. \Vel!, there 
was some places 1 couldn't tell you an,'­
thing about; they spoke of names and 
numbers, anLl I couldn't tel! them any­
thing about it because I didn't go into 
those places ur pay any attention to the 
numbers: it ·was of no interest to me. 

Q. And ~'ou say tImt up to that time 
t hose men ,,-c're entire strangers to you­
A. Yes, sir; 1 never met the-m. 

Q. Th"y ,1idn't know you and you 
,lidn't know them? A. 'They must have 
kn(HVn sompthing about 11110. 

Q. They didn't know you-that is T 
mean to say that you didn't know th.lt 
they knew you? A. No, I didn't know 
that the-y knevl me. 

Q. This Frank Wallace 'was a deputy 
~Iht>nff under Trefetllan, ·wasn't he, two 
Yl:ars ago? A. r:rhat is more than I 
eoulLl tell you. 

Q. You rli,1n't know anything about it? 
"\. [don't know anything about it; No, 
sir. 

Q. He didn't have any trouble in 
"::iUl'stioning you <-lnd nn ming the differ­
ent ,bal'~ ,where yon han been to get a 
orink, dill he? .'c. No trouble whatso­
pVt.'r. 

Q. ~-\..nd about l'very time he named a 
bar he ~u'uC'k a placE:' \\'"here you had 

ly: .. A. I eouldn't tl'll y()U t,ht~ ~trct't been to hl1~' a (lrink? A .. Not every 
llurnbel's of lhe placps. 

Q. Did th!'y ask yllU if you had been 
in the TempI" Hoie]? .\. Yes, sir. 

Q. And you t,Jld them yes" A. Yes, 
.sir. 

Q. AmI dill they aSK :,ou if you had 
been in the place at the ~orner of Fore 
anel IlHlia streets? A. I think they did. 

Q. And you tole1 them yes. anel th('l1 
they asked you if yOU hac! beell ill the 
;'\pw .'<dams HouS(~? .l,. ] think-no. not 
thl' Ada,m~ Hnuse: I don't think so. 

Q. Didn't ask you about t,hat? A. :'\Oi 

time; no, Sil'. 

Q. Do yun know how they got your 
name, how those people did? A. \\'e11, if 
you \vill tell me. 

(1. If T knew T wO\lld tel! you. I am 
a~killg if you know? .... \. No, sir. 

Q. You haven't any idea? A. No, sir; 
] h,lve be(>l1 trying to figure it out. 

Q. An,1 YOLl can't? A. Not exactly, 
no. 

lo!. ('an you at all? A. Well, I 
,"vtJulcln't ~ay. 

(J. \\',hy llot': A. Not now. 
Q. \Vhy not? A. BeeauFJe I am not 

to lny recollection. ;.::url'. 

Q. Dill tl1C'Y ask :cml if >"OU hall been Q. \\'h" ( llo you surmise in regard to 
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it? A. wouldn't say unless I was sure, 
as I have said about everything rIse. 

Q. I would Hrl:e to have you tell me 
what your ,best judgment is upon t'hat 
point? A. I don·t know as I want to 
say. 

Attorney General 'VILSON: It doesn·t 
seem to me it is worth while to go into 
his guesses. 

i~fr. PATTANGALL: That might be 
proper. 

The SPEAKER: It seems rathf'r futile 
to pursue that line of inqUiry. 

Mr. PATTANGALL: Down at the cor­
ner of Fore anll India :-;;:reets, do you say 
you have been in there since the first of 
January? Yc;-;, sir. 

Q. 'Vhen were you in there? A. 'Yell, 
sOIme f(>\v 'weeks ago. 

Q. You are sure this was Frank 'Yal­
lelee you went to see? A. I have got 
nothing but the name; that is the name 
that was given to me. 

Q. Who gave it to you? A. Well, it 
was on the paper that they sen·ed. 

Q. It was on a paper they served on 
you? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And he told you what the case 
was? A. No, sir; I didn't know what 
the case was until I read the subpoena. 

Q. Do you quite mean that? Did he 
ask you what you knew about the case 
and you told him before you read the 
subpoena. You don't mean that, do you t 
A. I mean, he asked me if I knew the 
conditions, the liquor conditions in the 
city and if I had ever been in any of the 
places and how many. and then he 
served the papers, and then I knew w11at 
the case ,vas. 

Q. And he made the papers out while 
you were right there? A. yes, sir. 

Mr. PATTANGALL: I should lll{e to 
ask that Mr. Seeley remain here if he is 
here at present. 

Mr. CLF-AVES: He is present. 

Mr. PATTANGALL: There i~ a mat­
ter we would like to take up with him 
after you have finished your casc, but 
we would not care to interrupt tile order 
of proceedings. 

Mr. CL1<~A VES: Mr. Seeley will remain 
for a time, as Mr. Pattangall may wish 
to ask him a few questions. 

Mr. CLEAVES: It was on the 
poena. 

sub- Mr. James \V. Brown, having lwen 

Mr. PATTANGALL: They served a 
summons on you \vith ~""'rank vVallace B 

name on it? A. Yes, sir. 
Q. And this man Wallace served it·! 

A. That's the man I received it from. 

duly sworn, testified as follows: 

Examination by Judge Cleaves. 
Q. 'Yhat is your full name? /1.. 

Jalnes \V. Brown. 
Q. You live in Portland? A. Yes. sir. 
Q. What is your business? jL Dri\"-

Q. Was his name on the subpoena, on ing a coal team and in the yard. 
the summons? A. Yes, sir. Q. On March 19th, did you visit a 

Q. When did he serve that subpoena place down at 108 Preble street? A. 1 
On you? A. Late Friday. didn't get the number but I visited the 

Q. What time do you think you were 
in his office Friday when he asked you 
these questions? A. I should say it 
was about four o'clock. 

Q. And was It before you were in his 
office or after that he served the su b-
poena? A. He served it right then and 
there. 

Q. While you were in the office? A. 
Yes, sir. 

Q. As soon as you got there? A. Yes, 
sir. 

Q. Before he asked you any questions·! 
A. He asked me about what I knew 
about the case first. 

Q. And then you told him A. And as 
soon as I told him, why. he served it. 

Q. But he asked you what you knew 
about the case, did I.e? A. Yes, sir. 

lower saloon on Preble street, near tile 
foot of Preble street. 

Q. Is that the place they call the Hol-
lywood? A. No, sir; that is 1Q2. 

Q. Did you make any request 
bar keeper for whiskey or liquor 
sort. A. Yes, sir. 

Q. \Vhat did you ask for? A. 
key. 

of the 
of any 

Whis-

Q. \Vhat talk did you have with him 
about what kind of goods you wanted·1 
A. I asked him if he had some whiskey, 
and he said yes, and wanted to know 
what I wanted and I told him half a 
pint of whiskey; he wanted to know 
whether I wanted 25c. or 35c. whiskey. 1 
told him the 25c. would do and he passed 
me out the bottle and I gave him a quar­
ter. 
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Q. Where did he get the bottle from"! drinking~ A. There were three or [our' 
A. Off the shelf back of the bar. persons there. Some were drinking. 

Q. Did you see other quantities of Q. vVhat kind of receptacles did thel' 
whiskey on that same shelf back of the drink from? A. Some 10(Jked like 
bar? A. Yes, sir. \\-hiskt"y und some like beer glasses. 

Q. UPOn the same morning did you go Q. \Vero t1iey drinking some out of' 
to a place at the northwest corner at small whiskey glassE's? A. Yes, sir. 
Free and Centre streets? A. Yes, sir. Q. Did you yisit a place on t;1e north-

Q. What took place there? A. I went west corner of Centr? and Kranklin 
in and asked for half a pint of whiskey streets tl1at same day? A. Yes, sir. 
and he passed it to me and I paid him Q. "VhDt took place thf're? A. I went 
and went out. in the back door and asked for a half 

Q. Were there any people in there? A, pint of whiskey and he passed out and 
Fourteen men. I paid him for it. 

Q. "Vhat were they doing? :Some or Q. 'Vere there any people in tha: 
all of them? A. Some were drinking, place drinking? A. Four or five per­
some were talking with their glasses in sons. 
their hands. Q. "Vho hept the place''? A. vVI'ere I 

Q. Did you notice any stock of liquors went? 
on or about tIle bar? A. There was Q. Yes. A. Tlw fifth place? 
some on the shelves, back of the bar. Q, Yes. A. I don't know WI1') kept It. 

Q. In your plain sight? A. Yes, sir. (oJ. vVhl'rc w~w it'! A. It vvas th" 
Q. On the afternoon of the same day, corner or Franklin and Commercia I 

did you go down to the Hollywood? A. street". 
Yes, sir. Q. 1'<O\v at ;,ny 01' those places did 

Q, \Vhat took place there? A. Well, you find any watcher,,? A. Nnne at all. 
I went in and asked if I could get some Q. Any hesitancy upon the part of 
Montreal malt. He said he didn't have the bar keeper about sI'-l1ing to you? ,,\, 
but a little of that but had some Canada "Jot a particle. 
malt and that was just as good if not Q. Did any of tll<cm ],now ynu or wcr" 
better and he passed that bottle out, and vou a >;trangcr(,' th('m? A. I was ;t 

the first one was about half full, a long stranger to them. 
necker, and the Canada malt he called Q. An ahsnlut" strang-('r tn 8.11 of 
it, was a bottle full. thC'm? A. Y ps. sir. 

Q. Did you buy any'? A.} bought Cross-Examination. 
hH~[ a pint. 

Q. 'Vhat did he charge YOl' for it'! A. 
Forty-fiv,· c('nt8. 

Q. l\[ontrpal malt. That place '.\'as 
fixed up pretty well, \I asn't it, bouquets 
behInd the cl)nnter? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. But he didn't give you any bou­
'luet'! Just took YOll money :end ghVC 
VOll lJalf a vint? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Did he Ray anything to Y(JU abol1t 
ravll1g a drink of any sorl', A. Yes, 
hI' asked me to have some bepr. 

Q. Did you upon thai same day visit 
another place on the corner of Fore 
and Centre str·.'ets? A. The Jim Welch 
place, so called. 

Q. Did you have any dealings Dr 
transaction with the bar keeper there? 
A. Yes, r,ir. 

Q. State it. .\. I went in :md askhi 
for a half pint of wl1iskey. He passed 
it out and I paid him. 

Q. Did you notict; any persons there 

Tly ::1'1)'. PA'l'TAXGALL: 
Q. \Vllat is your business" A. I hay" 

been in the yard. wood yard most of 
the tim'~ lor dx or eight years. 

Q. For what ('on('0rn. A. For A. D. 
Morris & Company, and afterwards 
.JOSe & Company. 

(l. Are you in the ('mploy of either of 
tll(,;::'(' concerns no\v? A. ~o, sir. 

Q. "VhGse employ "re you in now? A. 
Yone at :Lll. I have been skk for ten 
')r 21evf'n ,vpeks. 

Q. \Vhcn you went out on the 19th 
of "'larch on this trip, somebody rf'­
qUE-sted vou to go? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Who did? Rev. Mr. Arters', 
Q. \,vas it on that day that he asked 

)OU to go out and buy this liquor? A. 
Yes, sir. On that day the 19th? 

Q. Yes. A. No, it wasn't that day. 
Q. How long before was it'! A. I don't 

remember exactly. Probably three 'Jl-
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fOUl ,bys beror", that, as near as I ca.n 
remember. 

Q. 'Vhere were you when he asked: 
you to geJ out ann huy liquor? A. At 
l1onH~. 

Q. He came to your house',' A. Ye.s, 
sir. 

ll. And made that request·? A. Yes, 
sir. 

Q. 
~'ir. 

And came there alone" A. 

to ask you to give the date. 
iun en't got it. 

A. I 

Q.What year? A. I couldn't tell you; 
I .1cu't remember. 

Q. Have you liYed there ten years? 
,,\. 1:-(='8, and rnore too. 

Q. And have yoU been in a general 
way aware during the past and a. 
q1larter years that then, were places 
along there where liquor was sold'? A. 
\Vhere? 

Q. In Portland? A. Yes. Q. 'Vho furnished you the money to 
buy it with"? A. He gave me the money. Q. Until you were paid to do it, did 

it ever occur to you to get any evi­
dence on that point to submit to any 

f'>r court or official? A. I have thought 
the of it a great many times. 

Q. How much did he give you? A. 
Five dollars. 

Q. I snppose that after p<lying 
these matters, you gav!' him back 
rest? A. Some of it. 

Q. Didn't YOll give him back tlle 
whole of it? A. No, sir. 

Q. What did yon do with what you 
did not spend for rum and ciidn't gi\'" 
back to him? A. I wanted a little for 
myself. 

Q. Ho,}" much did you get for your­
self? A. A c,)uple of dollars. 

Q. I see. For your services. Did Mr. 
Arters tell you what places to go to" 
A. No. sir. 

Q. No idea? A. No, sir. 
Q. Nothing in regard to streets? A. 

:!'\o, sir. 
Q. You are not yourself a drinking 

man'? A. No, sir. 
Q. And an' not in the habit of visit­

ing suloons in Portland or anywher'; 
else? A. No, sir. 

Q. ,Vhen you started out, what tim" 
ilas it? In the morning? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Did you go directly to this plaCe) 
on Preble street? A. No, I went down 
where I worked to Bruns and John· 
son's, coal dealers. 

Q. Did you go to the place 108 Preble 
stn'E.t without making any im[uiries of 
anybody as to where to go? A Yes, sir. 

O. You haye lived in Portland som" 
time': .. A ... Yes, sir. 

Q. You have lived there all througo 
the sheriff's administration? A. What 

Q. You never did it? A. No, sir. 
Q. In going' to those different plac­

es, as recall your testimony, you 
simply asked for half a pint of whis­
key and paid for it and went out? A. 
YAS, sir. 

Q. \Vhen 
Hollywood, 
and asked 
y(,s, sir. 

you went down to the 
you varied your request 
for Montreal malt? A. 

Q. \Vlly did you do that? A. Be­
cause the teamster told me, I had 
been with once in awhile, he told me 
he could get Montreal malt and that 
WDS tl1e best he could get and that 
he got it there. 

---
Judg'o CLEAVES: Mr. President, be­

fore we ca.ll our last witness, I want 
to sav that we reserve the right to 
put o'n Mr. Dyer, the Boston and 
Maine railroad man, who will be back 
in the morning; and alsO' Mr. Colby 
of Brunswick, summoned to be here, 
and chief of police at Brunswick. '.rhc 
attorney general learned this morning 
that his daughter has undergone a 
very critical operation and is at the 
pOi~t of death so that he could not be 
asked to come up here under those 
circumstances. Unless Mr. Colby i~ 

enabled to testify the other Bruns· 
wick witness we omit. We wanted 

sherifi'{ the two or none. 
Q Sheriff Moulton. A. I suppose S'), 

yes: ~ir. Mr. PAT'rANGALL: If it comes ws~ 
Q. How long have you lived there';' A. that .Mr. Colby can come in later, 

In Portland. will not object to his testifying. 
Q. Y2S. A. Ever since the reunion of Judge CLEAVES: 'Ve should be 

the. soldiers. very glad to avail ourselves of that 
Q. That is so indefinite that I will have privileg-e. 
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Mr. JOHN M. ARTERS, having been 
duly sworn, testified as follows: 

Examination by Judge CLEAVES: 
Q. 'What is your full name? A. 

John M. Arters. 
Q. You live in Portland? Yes, sir, 

I do. 
Q. And yOU are a minister, presid­

ing over what church'? A. Congress 
street Methodist church. 

Q. For how many years. A. For 
two years. 

Q. During the last three months 0:' 
the present year have you been more 
or less observant of the conditions in 
regard to the sale of intoxicating 
liq uors in Portland? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And have made quite an mves­
tigation? A. I have, sir. 

Q. ""ow if at ali were you at the 
northwest corner of Free and Center 
streets? A. I have been there thr;)e 
times within the present year. 

Q. 'Vill you state your experience 
briefly upon each of those occasions. 
A. The first occasion was sometime 
in the month of February, early in 
February, between the 5th and the 
10th. I walked in at the Free street 
door and stood there for perhaps fivG 
minutes within the bar room listening 
and observing conditions. I found as 
many as a half dozen men there som'" 
of whom were ordering beer and 
,yhiskey, so that I heard them order 
and I noted the general condition pI 
the place and then left. The next 
time r was there was sometime about 
March 5th or 6th. The only change 
in conditions was perhaps in the num· 
bel' of men ,yhich was increased teO 
eight or ten, and in the absence uf 
liquors displayed and about the bar. 
The final visit there was on last Sat­
urda \" ,veek about four o'clock in th·" 
after'noon. 'r stood at the stove at thE: 
bar room and counted thirty-four men 
drinking at the bar or about the bal'. 
standing somewhere within the COil­

fines of the bar room, heard them or­
der and saw them served by two bar· 
tenders, and stayed long enough tll 

see the conditions. 
Q. Did anyone pay any 

to you while you ~\\'ere there? 
sir. 

attentic,n 
A. Ko, 

Brownrig's place, corner of Franklin 
and Commercial streets? A. I have 
visited the place at Franklin and 
Commercial streets. I have no notic" 
that it is Brownrig's place except by 
hearsay. 

Q. 'Vhat was your experience 
there? A. On my first visit, some· 
time about March 5th or 6th, I found 
only one or two men in and about the 
place. They were drinking about the 
bar. They were in an intoxicatecl 
condition. At the last visit I made, 
last Saturday week, there were two 
men present drinking at the bar. I 
heard nobody order. r stayed long 
enl)ugit to observe conditil'ns, bought 
two cigars, thinking my presenc'c 
without buying anything would be 
noticed, and departed. 

Q. Have you been to 127 Commer­
cial street? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. State your experience and ob­
servation there? A. I was at 127 
Commercial street sometime about 
March 5th or 6th, within that ,,·eek. I 
there observed a considerable number 
of soldiers among others, there being 
eight or ten drinking at the bar. I 
heard them order beer and whiskey, 
stayed long enough to observe th" 
general places of the place and left. 

Q. ,Vere you there later? A. 
tried to get there last Saturday week, 
but found the door locked. 

Q. 'Vas it that place where you saw 
anything in referenec to throwing 01.;, 

some drunken men and breaking' 
glass? A. I have seen the accoun t 
in the papers. But r did not see it. 

Q. Ko\\' on Commercial street, next 
or near the Railroad Young ~\Ien';:; 

Christian Association': A. I \'isiterl 
that place once sometime early in 
February, at about the time that r 
made my first visit to Free and Cen­
tre streets, and found only t,\'o 0,' 

[l·r('e men there drinking; heard no 
orrlermg, but saw what 'tPpeared to be 
beer and ,yhiskey in glasses, observe<1 
the condition of the place, a considel" 
able alllount of bottled goods that I 
took to be ,,,hiskey about the plac~, 

without any particular arrangement 
as though used in sen'ing; listened t<, 
the con\'ersation of the men and then' 

Q. Have you visited Thomas A. Jeft. 
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Q. Did you visit 102 
Hollywood place? A. 
tl1ere in early March. 

Preble street, the not plainly visible from the baggage 
Yes, sir. l was room. You pas~, from the bar room into 

Q. \Vere you present .when someone 
gave a description of the bar room 
here? A ... Yes, 8ir. 

the pool room. You can go about the 
other way from the baggage room into 
the pool room. 

Q. Dill you notice any drinking there? 
Q. Does your recollection coincide A. On my first visit, :\Iarch 19th, there 

with that description so that you was one man drinking at the bal'. 
would adopt it? A. Yes, sir. Q. \Vhat happened on your second 

Q. State your experience and ob- visit? A. The date W:'lS last Saturday 
servation there. A. I was particu- week, and there were fifteen men in that 
larly impresseLl upon entering ~Yith place drinking about the bar or standing 
the' excf'llenct' of the furnishing3 a bout the phcc smoking. 
which remindell me of the way li- Q. On either of those occasions did you 
censed b~rs were fitted up in licensed make any purchases? A. On the first 
tern tory, which gave me tl1e impres- visit I did. I 'Isked the bJ'" tender for 
sian of what wt' know as the "gilded half a 'pint of good .whiskey, and he' pro­
:3<1100n." ThE' fioor was referred to cluced :l lonE.~· necked bottle from under 
here as mosaic. I suppose it is inlaid the bar and filled a flask from the same 
til~. An'1 tl1e bar is of highly polished location, put a stopper into it, and I 
wooel reBembling mahagnny, :lnd t~lere asked tlle pdce and he said 40 cents. I 
w"re mirror, back of the bar Llste- paid him and carried the wl1iskey out. 
fully ar1'an;';'ed and a display of wine Q. ,Vas there any door which led into 
glasses pyr~lnided on shelves, anel a:-:: th"lt bar room tha.t ~\'~las closed? A. They 
I rec[ll1, napki'1:s arranged about, and \Vere all open if tllere were any doors 
a cGl1sidera.1Jle. dieplay Olt' liquors! m')re there. I anl not positive there were 
than I h~Hl seen in ~ny other place. ·G.u\Jrs. The openings were' not obstructed. 

Q. Ho'\y openly were they dis- Q. At the cO('ner of Fore and Union 
'played? A. They were located, as I :,treets did you make a visit and a pur­
recall it, on a shelf b:wk of the bar. chase? A. 454 Fore street, on the· corner 
perl1aps about the height of tr.is desk of Fore and Union. I went in there and 
or a little lower. found the front door leading from the 

Q. Any of them labelled? A. Yeo. street into the bar room open and a part 
some of them. of the hal' visible from the street. the 

far end of the bar. I walked in and 
Q. And WhClt liCluors do you recall? A. found three men drinking at the bar. r 
do not recall the Y!.1mes. I saw the asked the bar tender for a half pint of 

work "wl1iskey" on one or two labels. 2,; ecnt whiskey. He asked H I had any 
Q. Did you see any drinking? A. particular brand in mind, and I said no. 

There- were perh,"])s half a dozen men He produced a bot:·]e already filled.­
drinking 'It the bar. turned arounel and got it from a shelf in 

Q. Fr0m the 2nrl to March 19t11 were the rear. 
you at the Preble House? A. Yes. sir. Q. 'Vere there other liquors on the 

Q. ,Vllere is the bar located in the "arne shelf? A. Yes, sir. 
Preble House,,! A. 1t is in tl1e basement. Q. \Yhat quantity? A. Several bottles 
It was at that time. full simil.1r :0 the one he sold to me, and 

Q. vV'hat else is in the :basement? A. others more highly decorated. a few that 
There is a toilet room and a baggage theY lnc1 been serving from. 
room and the pool room. Q. \Vhat W2.S the character of the fur-

Q. And the bar room is on the same nighings of that place? A. They were 
floor? A. Yes, sir. more nearly like the HoUywo·od than 

Q. _\.THl where is t"'-1e bnggag-p r·)om 10- Itho~e in 3ny other I had' seen. not so 
,cated? A. In order to get to thebi\ r lavishly furnished. but beUer tl1an tl1e 
rOOIn, ~ou go into the baseme!lt from the· orLlinary bar. 
street, you P:LSS through the ba.ggage Q. No. 9 Exchange street, the place 
room and enter the door at tl1e extreme which Mr. Gordon te3tified ,about. Did 
right of the bar room. In order to see you visit tl1at place and make a ])U1'­

the bar, you must enter that door? It is chDse? A. I did. 
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Q. When was it? A. The 19th of 
March. I went in there and 'Went 
through what looked to be an office in 
the front. thruugh a swinging door lead­
ing to the bar. ,Val ked up to the bar at 
which three or four men ,were standing 
drin'king and asked for half a pint of 
whiskey? The bartender said, "'Vould 
you like 35 cent or 40 cent whiskey." I 
saki 1 guessed the 35 cent was good 
"nough for me. He produced a long 
necked bottle and filled a flask, corked 
it and gave it to 'me, and I paid him 35 
e(~nts. 

Q. This p;,lce 9 Exchange street, did 
you observe much about it? A. I did. 

Q. From ahout what time? A. From 
someti'lne early in January. my atten­
tion was first ,called to it. 

Q. L:p to about what period? A. I ob­
served it within the last ten days. 

Q. ~o'W up to the last ten days, from 
the time you first observed it in Janu­
ary, was your observation such that you 
{'auld say that it was or ,was not open 
all the time apparently and in the same 
business that you found when you first 
went {here? A. I ,have never known 
any change of the general surroundings 
of the place since my attention ,was flrst 
callea to it. 

Q. Has it apparently been open all 
that time? A. So far as I kno,w. 

I..!. And was it doin;; the same busi­
ness? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Now this past fall, say the Jast 
three months of the last year, did you 
observe theso same places in regard to 
whkh you have given testimony. A. 
Very many of them I did, perhaps with 
one exception, the place near the rail­
rDad Y. M. C. A. 

Q. Those places with that exception, 
from your observation, what was the 
charader of the business they were then 
conductin;;? A. The same business they 
are now conducting, they 'Were conduct­
ing March 19th. The surroundings per­
haps are the same, except that at 3 Cen­
ter street. 

Q. What difference did you notice 
there? A. The difference, as I noticed 
it, was that it was not so open. 

Q. When"? A. Lust Fall. 
Q. As It has been since the first of 

January. A. Yes, sir. 

Cross- Examination. 
By .:vIr. l'ATTANGALL: 
Q. How long have you lived in Port­

land, ~iIr. Artel's? A. Two years. 
Q. And have you noticed more or Jess 

the conditions that have been described 
herE; during these two years? A. More 
or Jess. 

Q. Your attention was more eS{l€ciaJ­
Iy directed to them last Fall, then at 
a prior da te, \Va sit"? A. I think not. 

Q. SO that these places that you de­
scribe as having seen last Fall you 
would say had been going along about 
thdt way during the past two years? A. 
The,E; have been considerable differ­
ences that I would have noticed. They 
haVe. lJeen rum shops for the past two 
years. 

Q. And so known to you? A. Yes, 
sir. 

Q. During that time, have you made 
any compJant in the matter to any of 
the public officials? A. I have not. 

Q. You have had several Grand Juries 
meet in the mean time have you? A. I 
suppose so, I cannot say definitely. 

Q. Are you not aware that the Grand 
Jury mepts in Portland three times a, 
YPflr-three or four timeR a year? 
A. Following the custom of oth­
'1' communities, I suppose that is so, 
but 1 am not positive of it by any di­
rect information. 

Q. I take it, living in Portland, yo:] 
read the daily papers"! A. Yhy, I do 
nlo~t of the time, yes, sir. 

Q. And that you know that the Supe­
r;or Court meets from time to time. A­
I l:aH' been in th., sessions ,)f the Su­
,,,,'rior Court from time to time. 

Q. And heard criminal caRes tried '? 
A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Did you ever present any evidence 
wit" regard to theS€ matters to the 
Grand Jury? A. I did not. 

Q. Or request anybody else to do so:' 
A. I ila"e not. 

Q. Now up to March of this year, 
during those two years had you gath­
('red any direct evidence in regard to 
the matter,' A. I have from time to 
time during those two years. 

Q. Somewhat in the same w<\-y in 
which yuu have described gathering 
this evidence? A. Under very much 
gl ea tel' difIieulty. 

Q. Would that apply to the whol£' 
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of the two years? A. That would apply 
to at least sixteen months of the two 
years. 

Q. Bay up to last summer': A. Some­
time prior to last September. 

Q, So that up to somewhere near last 
Seplell1b'~r, it was somewhat difficult. 
'\7as It, to purcllase liquor in Portland 7 

A. I have had difficulties in making 
sim iI'll' investigations. 

Q. Up to that time'? A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Still you did succeed in making 
them, buying liquor? A. I did not buy 
any liquor, prior to the time stated' 
here. 

Q. '.Ycll, did you succeed in getting 
into the bar and seeing liquor soW and 
orullk? A. Once or twice, but I have 
teen refused adlnission more times 
than I succeeded in getting in. 

Q. And the times you suce-eeded in 
getting and getting some first hand in­
formation. you have already said you 
did not at such times, convey any in­
formation to the public officials? A. 
I did not. 

Q. Tha t is also true-·· A. c,f Judge 
Merrill and of County Attorney Bates" 

Q. You don't mean that you only 
k110w them by reputation? A. I know 
them as '.)fficials, I have not met them 
personally, but I havE' seen them in the 
discharge of their duties. I would know 
them if I saw them here. 

Q. And )'OU have seen Sheriff Moulton 
:11. that same way I suppose? A. Well, 
! have met Sheriff Moulton, personally. 

Q. Personally? A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Have you made any investigation 

0f cc,nuitions in Cumberland County 
outside of th'~ City of Portland? A. r 
have not. 

Q. Your observations haye been en­
tirely confined to P0rtland? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Mr. Arters, were you aware that 
thE're was. a petition to the Governor 
circulated in Portland, with regard to 
conditions there? A. Was I aware? 

Q. Yes? A. Not until its public:ttion 
in the ne\vspapers. 

Q. You knew nothing of the circu-
lation? A. I did not. 

Judge CLEAVES: Now Mr. President, 
Q. Not until this March, do I under- we used a sketch here for illustrative 

:Jtanu you, did you make any purchases purposes, and I apprehend there will be 
youreelf? A. I did not. no objection to using it, for that same 

Q. And on March 19 ycu went to sev- purpose during the argument in connec-
eral places and purchased liquor? A. tion with a similar sketch in House Doc­
r made three purchases on that day. umel)t 667, merely for illustrative pur­

Q. Now at whose instance was that poses. 
(\one? A. At my own. 

Q. And did it at your own expense? 
A. Certainly. 

Q. You furnished the money to Mr. 
BrOW!I, also? A. I gave Mr. Brown ~5 
as he has testified. 

Q. And did you employ any other 
men to make purchases? A. I did not. 

Mr. SEELEY, recalled. 

Examination 
Q. Mr. Seeley, 

for the Governor 
In Cumberland 
A. Yes, sir. 

by Mr. Pattangall. 
you signed a petition 
in regard to conditions 
county, did you not? 

Q. Now, who presented the petition to 
you for signature? A. Martin M. Smart. Q. You were· only concerned in the 

m~tter, in the investigation made by 
yourself and Mr. Brown? A. That is all. Q. And what official position has Mar­

Q. Do you know the County Attorney, tin M. Smart occupied there? A. No 
Mr. Bates '? A. I lenow Mr. Bates as a official position that I am aware of. 
County Attorney, yes, sir. Q. Not at present, but hasn't he been 

Q, Do you know Judge Merrill of th,~ an officer of some kind? A. I thInk not. 
Municipal Court? A. I do, as Judge of Not to my knowledge. 
the Municipal Court. Q. He also signed the petition? A. i 

Q. Do you know Judge Connolly of am not aware of that-<ion't know that 
the Superior Court':' A, [ do. in that ca· he did. 
pacity. Q. You only saw it as you signed it 

Q. I don't perhaps quite grasp that, yourself? A. Saw the petition? 
.Are you acquainted with them person- Q. Yes. A. Yes, sir. 
ally':' A. I am acquainted with him as Q. Now can you tell when it was that 
an ofllcial only. you signed that petition? A. No, 1 

Q. With Judge Connolly? A. Yes. shOUld think it must be about three or 
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four weei{s, but 1 am not sure of tlmt, Q. Chief of police of Portlanu. And 
1 am not positiYe, I rememlJf'r distinctly do you know Xeal D. Winslow of Port­
signing. land? A. Xeal D. \Vinslow-l am not 

Q. \Vas it before or after tlw 19th of aware that 1 do. I know some men by 
March? A. Before, 1 think. the name of \Vinslow, but I uon't know 

Q. How long befon,'? A. 1t could not whether I know Neal D. or not. 
have been more than four or liYe days, Q. 90 Pl'eble St.? A. 90 Preble, yes, I 
anyway I think. don't think 1 know him. 

Q. And you were the second man Wl10 Q. Do you know Lewis Goudy. A. 
signed. weren't you'? A. Yes, ~ir. Oh yes, I have met him. 

Q. Some four or five days before tile Q. He is a fairly well known man'! 
19th of March? A. I think so. A. Oh, yes, fairly well known man, he 

Q. Xow how soon after you signecl that ran for mayor. 
petition did you hear from tile Gov- Q. A man of prominence? A. I think 
ernor? A. I think it was the loth of so. 
March, Q. Do you know Charles A. Maxwell 

Q. And you signed the petition ('Ithel' of Portland? A. No, I think not. 
the 14th or 15th? A. \Yell, 1 am not Q. State detective? A. No. 
sure, it migllt have been a day or two Q. Do YOU know \Villiam E. \Vatson'! 
earlier than that. A. Yes, sir. 

Q. \Vell, llOW far back will you put Q. Is he here today? A. He was. 
it at the extreme? A. At the extreme? Q. He testified here, did he not? A. 

Q. Yes. A. I won't put it any farther Oh yes, he is here now. 
than that-I COUldn't put it anywl1Cre Q. Mr. Dresser hasn't been here, has 
positively, but it was a few days before he? A. I think not, haven't seen ,11m. 
I heard from the Governor. Q. XOI' .\1[1'. Goudy? A. Nor Mr. 

Q. And in the meantime had you per­
sonally written the Governor, besides 
signing the petition? A. Yes, sir, 
think-J don't know but I wrote tile Gov-

Goudy_ 
Q. Do you know Wilbur F. Berry of 

\Vaterville? A. I have met him a few 
times. 

ernor before the petition was signed, I Q. Has he been here today? 1\. Yes, 
am not sure about that. sir. 

Q. Somewhere nNtr that time? A. Q. To whom was the letter addressed 
Yes, sir. by the Governor, the Governor's letter 

Q. 1\nd received a reply from 11im on that you read? A. \Vell, I am not posi­
th .. 16th? A. I didn't rpceive a l'"ply ppr- tive whether it was addressed to Mr. 
sonally, but others who hae! written 81m- Smart or Mr. Sturgis. 
ilar letters, and the letter was brought to Q. By Mr. Sturgis, you mean Herbert 
me and I read it. Sturgis? .A. Herbert SturgiB, ex-::-Sena-

Q. You didn't have any lettpr from tor Sturgis. 
him? A. K 0, someone who wrote In the Q. 'Who showed it to you? A. Mr. 
same manner about the conditions at Smart and Mr. Sturgis came to my house 
Portland, and I wrote, and that was a and I don't remember whether Mr. 
very good answer to my letter, to the Sturgis handed me the letter or Mr. 
thing that-the Imbject that I wrote Smart. 
about. 

Q. The letter 
Yes, sir. 

was read to 
Q. That is immaterial. They were to­

you? A. gether? A. They were together and 1 
read it. 

Q. Or you were permitted to read 
A. I read it. 

it? 

Q. You say Mr. Smart handed you this 
petition? A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Do you know Walter H. Dresser of 
Portland? A. Slightly. 

<..!. 'What is his business? A. I have 
met him. He is, what is it? chief ot 
police do they call him? he is tile l1ead 
of the police department, I believe. 

Q. And were they together when the 
petition was handed you to sign? A. No, 
sir. 

Q. I find on the petition the name of 
H. H. Sturgis, you don't know of but 
one there do you of that name? A. 1 
know two. There is an Alderman '3tur­
gis that I haye recently got acquainted 
with. 

Q. That is Guy Sturgis, isn't it? A. 
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Guy. 
Q. H. H. Sturgis, the only one that 

you are acquainted with there, is the 
EX-Senator? A. That is the only one. 

Q. Mr. Seeley, In your investigation:;; 
there to which you have testified, In pur­
chasing liquor about the 19th of March­

A. 17th. 
Q. 17th was it? On the 17th of 

March, who if anybody, furnished you 
the money to buy the liquor with? 
A. I earned the money. 

Q. And paid it out of your own 
pocket A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And worked without recom­
pense? A. \Vithout recompense. 

Judge CLEAVES: The Attorney 
General rests. I will state our wit­
nesses, summoned by the Attorney 
General are finally excused, subject to 
telephone call, of course, if we need 
you. 

thE' case, and it makes it very difficult 
to open the case. 

The SPEAKER: How long will It 
take you to put in your case? 

Mr. PATTANGALL: I haven't any 
questiun but what we can put it all iii 
tomorrow, of course it depends a little 
on the cross examination. 

The SPEAKER: That is the two 
sessions in the day tomorrow without 
going into the evening. 

Mr. PA'rTANGALL: Oh, I think so. 
I don't see how we could use up any 
more than the day tomorrow, and vf 
course we are perfectly willing to ar­
gue in the evening. I has been a fair­
ly long day today. 

There is another matter which I 
want to speak of, but I brought this 
up first. 

The SPEAKER: You may speak of 
it now. 

Mr. PATTANGALL: I find myself 
Mr. PATTANGALL: If you please situated so that I want to bringanoth· 

Mr. President and Mr. Speak"r, we er matter to the attention of the At­
have no desire to do anything that torney General. This morning we 
,could in the slightest degree delay the had a little talk in regard to the or­
proceedings. Bro. Gulliver and I be- der of cases. Of course I know th0 
lieve we could materially shorten the order that the committee laid out. I 
defence if we had from now until mid- heard indirectly that there was some 
night to gO over the matter with our sickness in connection with Sheriff 
witnesses. The President, of course, Tolman's family yesterday, but my 
will be cognizant of the fact that we telephone was working so badly that 
-haVe had no opportunity to do that, I could not get at the thing definitely. 
to abLre\'iate our te~timony, until to- I spoke to Bro. Wilson about it to see 
night, and Bro. Gulliver, who wlll if he could transpose the Penobscot 
open the case, prefers very much not and Knox cases. That seemed to him 
to open it until morning, until 'I\'e can to be difficult, and we were talking it 
weed out our testimony, and see how over when we came into session this 
little we can use; that is, our pur- morning. I see by tonight's paper 
pose is to use as little as we possibly that the jail-and Sheriff Tolman's 
can. family live at the jail, have been quar-

The SPEAKER: How long wilJ it antined by the State Board of Health. 
take to open? That condition may not last more 

Mr. PATTANGALL: That would be than a couple of days perhaps, but it 
a little hard for me to say. Bro. Gul- precludes his coming here. I am of 
Ii"er is going to open it, but I should counsel, not alone but with local coun­
not anticipate he would make a very sel. I should want a little time for 
long oPE'ning. \\'e want to get an op- preparation. If there could be any 
portunity to get together and see how arrangement made by which some 
many people we will put on. We case-the order could be changed-­
thought we could eliminate some. that of course is a matter wholly 
Some facts haye been testified to. And within the power of the convention. 
Bro. Vernon, who is in the case with If that couldn't be done, I should fancy 
us has taken the minutes of the testi- that day after tomorrow would be too 
m~ny, while we have been working ill soon for me to possibly get Sheriff 
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Tolman here. I take it the conven­
tion would not want to proceed with­
out his presence, unless there was 
some vcry good reason for it, and T 
want to bring it to the 'l.ttention of 
the convention and Bro. Wilson to-

warn eO to be here anO in their seats 
by half past nine, because the session 
goes into convention at that time, and 
they will be expecteO to be in at­
tendance at half past nine, promptly. 

night, so you may take what action On motion by Mr. MAXWELL of 
you think wise. Sagadahoc the convention took a re-

ATTORNEY GENERAL \VILSON: cess until 9.30 o'clock tomorrow morn­
I will say Mr. President, I was ap­
prised of the fact that Sheriff Tolman 
was quarantined. Perhaps I ought to 
say that he is not under quarantine 
by the State Board of Health but by 
a local board of health. Dr. Young 
who has been in touch with the situa­
tion down there and been in com­
munciation with the local board uf 
health today, says he sees no reason-­
that would be his opinion if he were 
asked to give it-why Mr. Tolman 
would not be as safe to corne here as 
any other citizen of Knox county. He 
does not think that the exposure to 
which he has been subjected would 
render him in the slightest degree 
dangerous to anyone corning UP here 
to Augusta; all the other members of 
the court and jury down there ha vo 
been subjected to the same exposure 
that he has. 

The SPEAKER: Perhaps the mat-
ter will clarify itself by tomorro\'~ 

morning. 
Mr. PA'rTANGALL: I should say 

that I should want a little more than 
Dr. Young's affidavit, before sitting a 
couple of days at the table with 
Sheriff Tolman. The rest of the con­
vention can do as it likeS, but I should 
shy the smallpox. I think the best 
wav to do would be for us perhaps, 
to 'have some physician down there, 
that we could both agree on as a man 
of reputation to look into the matter 
and let us know about it. 

The SPEAKER: That probably will 
work itself out all right by tomorrow 
morning. 

The PRESIDENT: The Chair will 
state that when the recess is had th0 
Senate will pass into its own roOl,,] 
and the House will remain here. Both 
the Senate anO House will have to 
have a short session after the recess 
of the convention begins. 

The witnesses for tomorrow are 

ing. 

IN THE HOUSE. 

Papers from the Senate disposed of In 
concurrence. 

From the Senate: Resolve in favor of 
Fred F. Lawrence for services as stenog­
rapher to the sub-committee on public 
utilities. 

In the Senate this resolve received its 
two readings and was passed to be en­
grossed under a suspension of the rules. 

On motion by Mr. Mitchell of Kittery 
the rules were suspended and the resolve 
received its two readings and was passed ~ 

to' be engrossed in concurrence. 

From the Sena'te: An Act to amend 
section 50 of chapter 51, of the Revised 
Statutes, as amended by chapter 165 o'f 
the Public La>ws of 1911, relating to du­
ties of railroad commissioners. 

,In the House this bill was passed to 
be engrossed, and ;ame ,from the Senate 
amended by Senate Amendment A. 

vn moti,on ,by Mr. Nute of Wiscasset 
lue vote w·as reconsidered under a sus­
pension of the rules w,hereby this bill 
,was passed to be engrossed, and on fur­
ther moti'on by the same gentleman Sen­
"te Amendment A was adopted in con­
currence. 

The bill was then passecr to be en­
grossed, as amended by Senate Amen 1-
ment A. 

On motion by Mr. Putnam of H,oulton, 
under a suspension of the rules the vote 
was reronsiae. -- whereby the House 
voted to receue and concur with the Sell­
ate in the indefinite postponement of bill, 
An Act relating to t'he Houlton Munici­
pal C,ourt. 

On further motion by Mr. Putnam the 
house voted to insist upon its action In 
the passage o.f the bill to be engrossed 
and ask for a committee of conference. 

The SpeaKer t'hereupon 'appOinted as 
such committee ,o,f conference on tJ1e part 
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of Lne House, Messrs. Putnam of Houl­
ton, Mo.oers of Ashland and Smith of 
Presque Isle. 

Passed to Be Enacted. 
An Act to revise, 'collate, arrange a.d 

.,onsolidate the inland fish and game 
la ws of the State, :both general and pu:b­
lic and private and special, and the 
rules and regulations .of the commission­
ers of inland fisheries and game now in 
force; 

An Act to amend t-lcction ~ of chap­
ter two hundred fifty of the Public Laws 
o~ one thousand nine hundred and nine, 
relating to the payment of fees accru­
ing to State institutions and depart­
ments; 

An A<>t to establish a neutral auto­
mobile zone with adjacent states; 

An A~t to amend set tion eighty-eight 
of chapter fifteen of the Revised Stat-
utes, as amended by chapter forty-eight 
of thc Public Laws of nineteen hundred An Act to amend chapter 

and twenty .of the Priva~e 

OTIe nundred 
and Special five, as amended ,by chapter forty-eight 

of the public laws of nineteen hundred Laws of eighteen hundred a".d ninety­
nine relating to the est.ablishment of a 
municipal court in the town of East 
Livermore; 

All Act to amend the Act which consti­
tutes the poli~e cour, for the city of 
Ro~kland; 

seven, as amended by chapter one hun­
dred ninety .of the Public Laws of nine­
teen hundred nine, as amended by chap­
ter twen~y-three of the Public Laws of 
nineteen hundred eleven, relating t,o. 
school hoL ays; 

An Act providing temporary clerk hire 
for the clerk of courts in Aroostook 

An Act to amend cnapter one hundred 
and nlnetY-Llree of the Public Laws .of 
nineteen hundred and nine, creating the ~ounty; 
Maine Forestry District and providing An Act to regulate t'Ile business of deal-
for pro~ection against forest fires there- ing in securities; 

An Act providing temporary clerk hire in; 
An Act to amend sections two, three, 

four, five, six and nme of chapter sev­
enteen .oL the Public Laws of nineteen 
hundred and five, as amenaeo, regulating 
the practices of veterinary surgery, med­
icine and dentistry; 

An Act to amend sections two, nine 
and twelve of chapter one hundred and 
eleven in relation to the control of con­
tagious diseases among cattle. sheep and 
srwine 

An Act to supply the town of >Vin­
t,hr.op with pure water; 

An Act providing temporary clerk hire 
for tne clerk of courts In Cumberland 
county; 

An Act authoriZing the Secretary of 
State to prepare and publish a list of 
.,orporations delinquent in payment of 
their franchise taxes, and providing for 
the expense of such publication; 

An Act to provide for the preservation 
o. h 6!1'ways and bridges; 

An Act in relation to the safety and 
improvement of highwhYs; 

An Act to ,"mend section sixty-seven 
.of .,hapter fifty-two of the Revised Stat­
utes relating to accidents .on railroa<l.s; 

An Act providing temporary clerk hire 
for the municipal c.ourt of the city of 
Lewiston: 

for the register of pr·obate in Piscata­
quis county; 

An Act providing temporary clerk hire 
for the register of probate in Penobscot 
county; 

An Act to amend section sixty-nine of 
chapter twenty-nine of the Revised Stat­
utes, as amended by chapter forty-one 
.of ,He Public Laws of nineteen hundred 
five, relating to non-feasance of duty by 
sheriffs, deputy sheriffs, rrnd county nt­
torneys; 

Finally Passed. 

Resolve, in favor of the Appointment 
of Three Commissioners by the Gov­
ernor to Act with the Commissioners 
from Certain Other States in Proposing 
and Recommending a Uniform Code of 
Laws for Motor Vehicles to be Adopted 
by the Legislatures of said States. 

Resolve, in favor of Mary H. Perkins 
for Services as Stenographer to the 
President of the Senate and Speaker of 
the House and for Clerical Assistance in 
the Office of the Secretary of State. 

Resolve, Making an Appropriation for 
the Purpose of Obtaining Information 
in Regard to 'Vild Lands for the Pur­
poses of Taxation. 

Resolve, in Favor of Steward and 
Blunt for Extra Labor and Materials 
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'esed in tile Reconstruction of the State 
House. 

Resolve, in Favor of Benj. F. Sturgis 
for the Committee on State Prison. 

Resolve, in Favor of Cassie K. Tur­
ller for Services as Stenographer to the 
Sub-committee on the Public Utilities 
Commission. 

Resolve, in Favor of the Clerk, Ste.­
nographer and Messenger to the Legal 
Affairs Committee. 

Resolve, in Favor of T. 'V. Prince for 
Services Rendered as Clerk of the Sen­
ate Committee on Bills in the Second 
Reading. 

Resolve, in Favor of the Clerk, Ste­
nographer and Messenger to the Com­
mittee on Appropriatons and Financial 
Affairs. 

Resolve, in Favor of Louis O. Has­
kell, Clerk of the Committee on Agri­
culture, for Certain Committee Ex­
penses. 

Resolve, In Favor of Thomas J. Ly­
Ons for ·Services as Clerk and Stenogra­
phel' of tile Committee on Labor. 

Resolve, in Favor of Helen Gaffney. 
Resolve, in Favor of James W. Har­

Services, Clerk and Stenographer to the 
Committee on Towns. 

Resolve, in Favor of M. S. Hill for 
Services as Clerk, Stenographer and 
Messenger to the Cummittee on Taxa­
tion. 

Resolve, in Favor of Louis O. Haskell 
for Services as Clerk, Typewriter and 
Messenger to the Committee on Agri­
culture. 

Resolve, in Favor of Thomas J. Lyons 
for Services as Clerk, Stenographer and 
Typewriter of the Committee on Sea 
and Shore Fisheries. 

Resolve, in Favor of C. M. Conant, 
Chairman of the Committee on Ways 
and Bridges, for certain Stenographic 
and Clerical Expenses Authorized by 
said Committee. 

Resolve, in Favor of Louis O. Has­
kell for Services as Clerk and Type­
writer to the Committee on Education. 

Resolve, in Favor of the Maine In­
sane Hospital to Liquidate a Deficiency 
in Certain Accounts. 

Resolve, in :B'avor of Charles R. Kings­
bury for Services as Clerk and Messen­
ger to the Committee on Salaries and 

vey, Document Clerk for Preparing Fees. 
Weekly Printed Index. Resolve, in Favor of H. P. Hawes and 

Resolve, in Favor of Charles R. 
Kingsbury for Services as Clerk, Mes­
senger and Stenographer to the Commit­
tee on State Lands and Forest Preserva­
tion. 

Resolve, in Favor of Charles R. Kings­
bury for Services as Clerk, Messenger 
and Stenographer to the Committee on 
Interior Waters. 

Resolve, in Favor of T. M. Rollins, 
Mail Carrier of the House. 

Resolve, in Favor of the Commission­
ers of Pharmacy for the Liquidation of 
Certain Deficiencies. 

Itesolve, In Favor of C. A. Gage for 

C. A. Gage, Clerk and stenographer Re­
spectively, to the Comm1ttee on Ways 
and Bridges. 

Resolve, in Favor of the Children's 
Hospital for Maintenance. 

Resolve, in Favor of the Re-construc­
tion of the Easterly Span of the Old 
Town-Milford Bridge. 

Resolve, Waiving a Forfeiture of the 
Public Lots in the North Half of Town­
ship Number Twenty-seven in Washing­
ton County, Eastern Division. 

On motion by Mr. Sargent of Port­
land, 

Adjourned until tomorrow morning, at 
9 o'clock. 




